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“Focus for Success” —

China Resources Enterprise, Limited (“CRE”)

has continued to move towards its goal

of becoming the largest consumer goods

company in China. Backed by its parent

company China Resources (Holdings)

Company Limited, CRE exited its non-core

operations in 2009 to further focus on
three core consumer businesses:
retail, beverage, and food.
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CRE completed the acquisition of a supermarket chain of

81 stores atf the end of 2009 extending its leadership as a
major national retailer.
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As the supermarket chain in China,
CRE operated over 2,800 multi-format stores
in 16 provinces, municipalities and special
administrative regions.
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Continuing their rapid growth momentum on rising brand leadership, beer sales

volume reached a record of approximately 8.4 million kiloliters while that of purified
water increased by 16.6% to approximately 1.6 million kiloliters.
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As the brewer by volume in the
Chinese Mainland, CRE boasts an unrivalled national
beer brand “E ¢ Snow”. CRE owns another top seller
“I8Z Cestbon” which has been the

packaged water brand by
volume in Guangdong Province for
five consecutive years since 2005.
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As a high quality meat supplier, CRE has benefited from an increasingly
consolidated slaughtering industry in the Chinese Mainland with a
considerable increase in pig slaughtering volume in 2009.
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CRE is Hong Kong's LARGEST supplier of

Chinese foodstuffs. Our reputation for high food
safety and quality standards has favored our
expansion in the fast-growing mainland market

where we have reaped increasing gains.
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is a listed company on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, with business emphasis on the
consumer sector of the Chinese Mainland and
Hong Kong. Our mission is to become the largest
consumer goods company in China. To achieve
this, the Group has established leadership in
its three core businesses of retail, beverage
and food. The consumer-related businesses
offer strong synergy. The food and beverage
operations in particular are integral parts of the
supply chain of the retail business, and together
drive the Group’s overall development.

B0
CORPORATE STRUCTURE
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

—EEBhF —ETNEF T LF
2009 2008 2007
BETET BEEET BEEET
HKS million HK$ million HK$ million
(&%) (&%)
HE_TZTNF+=H=-+—HIEFJZ For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Restated) (Restated)
BERE Turnover
- FERE XS - continuing operations 64,131 57,220 44,881
- BRI E 2 ¥ — discontinued operations’ 7,498 7,408 17,242
71,629 64,628 62,123
AN FI IR FE R A Profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company
- BHEIRE 7 575 - continuing operations 2,785 2,050 2,121
- BRI E ¥ — discontinued operations’ 128 272 2,840
2,913 2,322 4,961
SREEARZF) BEIT) Basic earnings per share? (HK$)
~ FHEIRE 2 515 - continuing operations $1.17 $0.86 $0.89
- BRIbEE XK - discontinued operations’ So.05 $0.11 $1.20
$1.22 $0.97 $2.09
SRS (BEIT) Dividend per share (HK$)
- - interim So.14 $0.15 $0.15
- R — final $o0.35 $0.25 $0.30
$o0.49 $0.40 $0.45
- Rl Y - special interim - - $0.60
BREABRN(FHECHER)

EXRT(HREERYE)

Turnover (Continuing Operations)

A H BT HKS million
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R-ZBEAF RZTEENF RZZETAF
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As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December
2009 2008 2007
BEEER BERET BEEET
HKS million HK$ million HK$ million
AN FIRER FEIG T Equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company 25,847 25,159 22,871
DHR R R Minority interests 9,597 9,339 7,293
A Total equity 35,444 34,498 30,164
REEROFE Consolidated net borrowings 3,340 6,463 4,004
aELE Gearing ratio® 9.4% 18.7% 13.3%
POk JE =S Current ratio 0.90 0.98 1.05
GREEFE Net assets per share:
- BREE (B%T) - book value (HK$) $S10.79 $10.53 $9.59
BEE Notes:

1.

REZZENGF+ZA  AEBTRHELGBEBRER
BEEBALEANFRERERCHEBNEECENEE
i - RZFTLFAA - AEERKESERRRAMR
ERSHER - ZSEBCRBEBUBHMELERE 55
VEEARIEAS R -

HE-TINE  —FFN\ER-FTLET-A=—
HILFEZ SREERTFD B AEE 12170 - B o.977T
kA& 207t - BHEZZTTNF+A=+—RH =%
ENET AT -BRZEELFTA=+—HILHF
EZERIEEEER 2 FREERF B 0.057T - B
0.11 T KA 119 7T ©

BB RIS BRFRERRE RN

RO FRREM RS

Equity Attributable to Shareholders

of the Company

R EIT HKS million
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5,000
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1.

In December 2009, the Group completed the disposal of its textile operation and
entered into a sale and purchase agreement to dispose of its entire equity interest in a
joint venture business engaged in brand-fashion distribution operation. In June 2007,
the Group completed the disposal of its petroleum and related products distribution
operation. These operations are presented as discontinued operation according to the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 5.

2. Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2009, 2008 and 2007
are HK$1.21, HK$0.97 and HK$2.07, respectively. Diluted earnings per share of
discontinued operations for the year ended 31 December 2009, 2008 and 2007 are
HK$0.05, HK$0.11 and HK$1.19, respectively.

3. Gearing ratio represents the ratio of consolidated net borrowings to total equity.

BREEFE  RHE
Net Assets Per Share : Book Value

FEEETT HKS
12

1053 10.79

10 9.59

2007 2008 2009

Z=MAIEAFMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited ® Annual Report 2009 F3 11
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ANALYSIS OF TURNOVER AND EBITDA!

HE—TTNF+=A=+—HIEFZ For the year ended 31 December 2009

BIEEB 2 EXE
Turnover by segment

2009 2008

D 50%

BEEBZAFFE - HE - TERBHAEF
EBITDA by segment

10%

1%

49%

2009 2008

10%
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21% \ / \

36%

TE ® R ® RN T R A8

Retail Beverage Food Processing and Distribution

® REME ® RAENEMETR ® ERIEEERT

Investment Property Investments and Others Discontinued Operations



BEBRKRSFFR RE - MEREHIBF DR ANALYSIS OF TURNOVER AND EBITDA

ZBEAE  ZZTN\F EZOEL)
2009 2008 Increased/
BYEEERT BEESTT  (Decreased)
RIFHFR S 2T Turnover by segment HKS million  HK$ million %
BOER Core Businesses
T8 Retail 35,939 32,072 12.1%
/) Beverage 20,470 17,405 17.6%
BT R AEH Food Processing and Distribution 7,443 7,645 (2.6%)
wEME Investment Property 550 434 26.7%
INEE Subtotal 64,402 57,556 11.9%
B %% Other Businesses
"B REAET Investments and Others = - =
64,402 57,556 11.9%
HHEBR RS Elimination of inter-segment transactions (279) (336) (19.3%)
BEKSEER 2B Total from continuing operations 64,131 57,220 12.1%
ERIERE kR Discontinued operations
o R R 0 E R A 8 Brand-fashion Distribution 2,611 2,579 1.2%
FE Textile 4,887 4,829 1.2%
DRIMREEE BT Total from discontinued operations 7,498 7,408 1.2%
FEE-C) Total 71,629 64,628 10.8%
BIEEBZARFHE - Bi3E - EBITDA* by segment
HERBHAEF
BOER Core Businesses
TE Retail 1,544 1,438 7.4%
/) Beverage 2,660 2,141 24.2%
BT R 4AEH Food Processing and Distribution 707 624 13.3%
WA Investment Property 1,578 860 83.5%
INEE Subtotal 6,489 5,063 28.2%
p-vE S Other Businesses
®E R EA T Investments and Others? 179 240 (25.4%)
FEREER - BE Total from continuing operations 6,668 5,303 25.7%
DRI %K Discontinued operations
o R R 1 E A 8 Brand-fashion Distribution 384 496 (22.6%)
L Textile 347 440 (21.1%)
ERIEREER 2 EE Total from discontinued operations 731 936 (21.9%)
R Total 7,399 6,239 18.6%
LI Notes:
1. EBITDA AAR:HFIE « B8 - B REBHATEF) 1. EBITDA represents earnings before interests, taxation, depreciation and amortization.

2. RAPHEGEBREEEBER
ZR -

B FRR LB 2.

overheads.

Investments and Others include share of net result of associates less corporate

EMAIEBMR A A China Resources Enterprise, Limited ® Annual Report 2009 F 3k
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REEERMDITR
ANALYSIS OF PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

HE—TTNF+=A=+—HIEFZ For the year ended 31 December 2009

BIRER 2 RREEER
Profit attributable to shareholders by segment

2009 2008

4% 10%

16%

BEEBNBREVESERHETEHRVEE REFEZRREGTF
Profit attributable to shareholders excluding the effect of investment property revaluation and
major disposal of non-core assets/investments by segment

2009 2008
6%
12%

20%
20%
11%
=E ® K . R T M AE 8
Retail Beverage Food Processing and Distribution
o wEME ® ’E REAME ® BRI LTS

Investment Property Investments and Others Discontinued Operations



RREERFDITER ANALYSIS OF PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

—2RhE —TTNF  E/ORD)

2009 2008 Increased/
BIEHER 2 REEML R Profit attributable to shareholders BETERT BEBET  (Decreased)
by segment HKS million  HK$ million %
BOER Core Businesses
=5 Retail 296 392 (24.5%)
/) Beverage 684 409 67.2%
BN T R 485 Food Processing and Distribution 350 312 12.2%
B Investment Property 1,286 754 70.6%
INEE Subtotal 2,616 1,867 40.1%
pogiE 2 Other Businesses
A& R H M Investments and Others 321 396 (18.9%)
2,937 2,263 29.8%
NAEIREH S FEREA Net corporate interest and expenses (152) (213) (28.6%)
BEREER BT Total from continuing operations 2,785 2,050 35.9%
DRI RE ¥R Discontinued operations
on KRR 0 72E o AT 8K Brand-fashion Distribution 138 198 (30.3%)
FE Textile (10) 74 (113.5%)
CRIEREEK BT Total from discontinued operations 128 272 (52.9%)
FLE-C) Total 2,913 2,322 25.5%
BEEKNMBRIZEYEEM  Profit attributable to shareholders
RHEFERZROEE excluding the effect of investment property
REFE ZRREGEF revaluation and major disposal of non-core
assets/investments by segment
BOER Core Businesses
=& Retail’ 278 397 (30.0%)
/) Beverage 684 409 67.2%
RN R A8 Food Processing and Distribution® 230 227 1.3%
wEME Investment Property? 374 339 10.3%
INEE Subtotal 1,566 1,372 14.1%
B Other Businesses
& R EMET Investments and Others 321 396 (18.9%)
1,887 1,768 6.7%
NEBEHFEFENER Net corporate interest and expenses (152) (213) (28.6%)
BEKSEER B8 Total from continuing operations 1,735 1,555 11.6%
ERIERE 2R Discontinued operations
o R R 10 7 R A 8 Brand-fashion Distribution 138 198 (30.3%)
L Textile* (13) 40 (132.5%)
DRI RS M5 Total from discontinued operations 125 238 (47-5%)
FLE ] Total 1,860 1,793 3.7%
B 3E - Notes:
1 FERTEEBMBE 2 IERBEFHEERBEE 08B IT(ZF 1. Net valuation surplus of approximately HK$18 million arising mainly from industrial building held by
T)\F  FEEBEEY 0.05 BT ) ETBIEEEEET - the Retail division (2008: Net valuation deficit of HK$5 million) has been excluded from its results.
2. REMIEEHEBNEETRESBATNAE 120ET( =22 2. Net gain on disposal of non-core investments and valuation surplus with an aggregrate amount of
NE - B 0.85 870 ) M E IR OIRE FTSI3 A Rk B R 5 - approximately HK$120 million (2008: HK$85 million) have been excluded from the results of Food

Processing and Distribution division.

3. REVEEBOHEETBIEFHERBOEE . 2BTL(ZTEN 3. Net valuation surplus of approximately HK$912 million (2008: HK$415 million) has been excluded from

F B 4a518TT) ©

the results of the Investment Property division.

4. TERHBEBAFEZIEAEFEERTOEE 0.03fET(=% 4. Net valuation surplus of approximately HK$3 million arising mainly from industrial building held by

T\EF R HEBEEE 0.01
FRETRELEFROREA

JETBEEHERET - —FTFN the Textile division (2008: Net valuation deficit of HK$1 million) has been excluded from its results.
M 0.35 87T © Net gain on disposal of non-core investments amounting to approximately HK$35 million has been

excluded from its 2008 results.

EMAIEBMR A A China Resources Enterprise, Limited ® Annual Report 2009 F 3k
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MILESTONES IN 2009
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o AEERESRMETERTE o AEERZERLEL o MEIURAEAMEIUEETT200,000
EEGRE TR A REENR 1 P T R L S £ g2 FHIFREEE o
PRI E £ B A PR A RS B EEBHENEE The foundation stone laying
REXRGERNEE © The Group agreed to ceremony for a new brewery with
The Group agreed to acquire the brewing a production capacity of 200,000
acquire the respective assets of Shandong kiloliters was held in Fushan
brewing assets of Anging Hupo Brewery. District, Yantai, Shandong Province.
Tianzhu Beer Company
Limited and Liaoning o REITHARKERE I KERZER
Songlin Brewery Group BHEREAL -
Company Limited. Ng Fung Hong successfully

renewed its contract right to
operate and manage an abattoir in
Sheung Shui, Hong Kong.

FERTRE LK FREAVHTREEIN

T
-

AERYETT A TR 1Y

OCT NOV

o AEEBNNFER(KE) BRAREI —BEE o [F#E Chinese Arts & Crafts] B REA
Bk - AEIER DA A B S B A 58 SR R SR ER — Ho AR S ORI R o
TR AR B (A b O 8 S K B B T 27 I L LI BR S — R “th# Chinese Arts & Crafts” opened
TR © its first mainland flagship store
The Group entered into an asset swap agreement in Shenzhen.

with its parent company, China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited, to exchange its non-core textile
and container terminal operations for a hypermarket
chain in the Chinese Mainland and a brewery in
Shandong Province.

16
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“l6E Cestbon” was named
“Chinese Well-known
Trademarks” by the State
Administration for Industry
& Commerce of the PRC in
2009 and became the only
Shenzhen-based packaged
water brand to have
received the recognition.

+_ R

DEC

= 1= "'i: 2\ =

=
MAY

REMIRBEMIN T EER
PRGERIREE » ¥R F EEBEIE6S
ME - RERTHEIBE D15 ENE - 2
AIERAR R BREEDRS -
Zhejiang NF Refrigerated
Food’s new factory in Xiasha,
Hangzhou, the largest

frozen food manufacturer in
Zhejiang Province with an
annual production capacity
of 60,000 tonnes and a cold
storage capacity of 15,000
tonnes, was established and
commenced operation.

F=3 '-,___I'_:,'.—_|

LES Enterprise, Limind

“ESHEBERE MILESTONES IN 2009

J\
AUG

EEE R R MR IEBFIE
R  EEEREE S

1ZHBFT)E 8 E B IXEE|200% ©
The number of CR Vanguard’s
supermarkets in a single city,
Tianjin, has reached 200 for
the first time with the opening
of two new supermarkets in
the city.

;g ﬁﬁw‘ o

———

I

F'T'l -F e L .1—1"1‘:—"?‘-'

— L]

o ALEEMBATHR - FHR AR ‘r‘ﬁ%ﬁ?&%%%ﬂ’ﬂ%% . F E SnowJ ER S $H 2 22 B 7,000,000 T 7 -
BEHE TRRERRERERA BEHPHRBEWERE 2 —HHL -
The Group signed an agreement to sell its entire Sales volume of “Z1E Snow” beer
interest in the brand-fashion distribution business to exceeded 7,000,000 kiloliters, consolidating
Esprit Holdings Limited. its position as one of the leading beer

. EMERETEDED B ] RIERHEERY o e world.
BT MU EEET RRBERENREEFESNZ o TWITHMAHE — X 5 ISR ER R
LIRS R E L - B RARESANAE — BT o
CR Vanguard held a press conference in Shenzhen to Ng Fung Hong’s cold storage and trading
launch its shopping mall, “BX%448 Fun®” to highlight market in Hangzhou was established and
to the public its core concept and positioning as a relocated, and became the largest cold
regional lifestyle shopping mall that abounds with storage and trading market in China.
joyful ambience.

#EMAIXEMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited © Annual Report 2009 3 17
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AWARDS IN 2009

h R
MAY

N
JUN

o E(DMER) MTERPEANPRERES o E(DMEEER)MFTER MNKEDRE
AR EREREEBEBENFREZ — - BB ARlZ2— -
The Group was named one of the winners of the The Group was voted one of Asia’s Best
best corporate governance and best investor Companies for Corporate Governance by
relations awards in the China category by Corporate Governance Asia.
FinanceAsia.

1 F

DEC

T (2t 24 HRE ) B R IR AR AR S 1 74 52 Blinterbrand Bt & SR HHH) B
& [ B REmEERES ] HREST - EEREU [BEE - BEE] mBER
=0 RBEAE——RKE [ FhfEPEREREERREME]

Cestbon was the only winner of “The 5th China Best Brand-Building Case
Award” in the Mainland with its brand campaign called “the most responsible,
trust-worthy” in the sth “China Best Brand-Building Case” organized by The 21st
Century Business Herald and Interbrand, the world’s largest integrated brand
consulting firm.

B(HE) MR [MBRE - B8 X80 HE8EE  REEENKRESR
BARZEFHREASE] -

The Group was named a winner of “The Platinum Award for All-Round
Excellence in Financial Performance, Management, Corporate Governance,
Social Responsibility, Environmental Responsibility and Investor Relations” by
The Asset.



_EBSNERE AWARDS IN 2009

+F +—F
OCT NOV

o ETHTEHRERBNO (T |« EESEFSREHN [ BEEFLECEEAKERE 2000 T
ABsookBEREAE| Pl | BEAGHEBNTRLMAANZ— -

ERTHE_RTEDRE - The Group was named one of the top 10 listed companies in “The
The Group was ranked HKloD Corporate Governance Score-card 2009” by HKloD.

the second largest retail UV s
organization in China in Retail | * BAREBE—B) B RE s RhESEE 2 —-

Asia Pacific Top 500 Awards The Group was named one of the outstanding enterprises

by Retail Asia Publishing. among blue-chip companies in Hong Kong by Economic Digest.

o (IR Magazine) 5% [ ZEREEMFRELS R R [ERXFHIER 2 HEREEMERE]
The Group was awarded the “Most Progress in Investor Relations” and “Best Investor Relations for a
Corporate Transaction” by IR Magazine.

o HE(TMEE) MFERNPEEREPREL([EIE  REEEEN [REBBLOEER] K [&ERE
HBEER] SNEARNNE AL FM (TEEEAR) ES [HERMNEEERRR] B K [HERE
EFRR] F U FMEZE -

The Group was granted numerous accolades including championships in 6 categories such as “Best
Overall for Corporate Governance” and “Best for Investor Relations”, etc. in Hong Kong, and 4 other
awards such as a third place and second place in “Best Companies in Asia for Corporate Governance”
and “Best for Investor Relations” in Asia (ex-Japan) respectively on a Corporate Governance Poll
conducted by Asiamoney.

o E_TTNFETABExtel HETESHFALENREEBFFEMARNFE L -

The Group was named the No. 1 Firm for Investor Relations in Conglomerates sector in Asia-Pacific Extel
Survey 2009.

EHAIZXBMRAT China Resources Enterprise, Limited ¢ Annual Report 2009 F# 19
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FR®E CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

2009 was a key milestone year in the Group’s successful transformation
into a consumer goods company focused on the China market. Through an
asset swap with our parent company, China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited, completed at the end of December 2009, we disposed of the non-
core textile and container terminal operations and acquired a hypermarket
chain in the Chinese Mainland and a brewery in Shandong Province. With
a subsequent agreement in December 2009 to sell its interest in the
brand-fashion distribution business to Esprit Holdings Limited, the Group
has now evolved into a pure consumer play focusing on the three core
businesses of retail, beverage and food processing and distribution.

The Group’s continuous initiatives to consolidate its leadership position
in the fast-growing China’s consumer market have created a stronger and
more focused consumer business platform. Upon the completion of those
critical transactions, the Group will be in a better position than ever to
achieve quality growth in the years ahead.

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

In 2009, the retail markets in the Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong were
not spared from the negative impact of the financial crisis that began to
spread across the world in late 2008. The operating environment was
challenging for the Group throughout 2009 despite a gradual recovery in
some key economies in the fourth quarter of the year.

Retail sales in the Chinese Mainland grew at a slower rate of 15.5% year-
on-year in 2009, down from 21.6% in 2008, while consumer price index
declined by 0.7% year-on-year, compared with a 5.9% increase in 2008.
Consumers in general were more price-conscious in their purchasing
behavior.

EEBMED M
Turnover by geographical region
(included discontinued operations)

BRBi AT S F 3t & 2 16
Profit before tax by geographical region
(included discontinued operations)

H 7Lt Percentage (%)

66.7% 85.4% 86.3%
100
80
60
40
20 27.9%
9.8% 9.8%
5.4% 4.8% 3.9%
o
2007 2008 2009

B1DtL Percentage (%)

31.3% 64.8% 57.0%
100
R E A
80 Chinese Mainland
&E
Hong Kong
60 EAh
Others
40 67.3%
39.9%
20 33.8%
o 1.4% 1.4% 3.1%
2007 2008 2009

E=BPAIEAFMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited © Annual Report 2009 F ik
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ETRE®E CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

At - AEBDIKI B IAZ EET
E Bl - RZZETNGF - AEEHEER

é%m%%%ﬁﬁvﬂﬂﬁﬁ%&
EETHRAPE AT & EETTE

AEERZZEZENF+ZARETANEERIEZ
DEEEBR 2 R ERISENRE - 52
—ETNFFTA=THILEFE  RERFEL
BEIENIRE & ¥R HEE64,131,000,0007T
BRIFIER12.1% °

o~

EERLEREIHN  BEHRAEBEEBNRDY
BEEE HE_ZTZTEANF+-_A=+—HIL
FE AEBEFELEEBORRKREEGLS
B m A BB 2,785,000,0007T * B EFIE NN
35.9% ° RAFELEEBHTRELRRTAEE
11770 MZTEN\FEE0.867T °

ZETNEFERZZEEN\FHREMEEHLLE
FE2IFROEERKRENTRKZED BE HBE
1,050,000,0007C &5 ¥ 495,000,0007T * HIFRiZE
TR AEBEHE_TTENF+_A=1+—H
IEFERFELEEH TR N TR EE R
fRE T FEIE A011.6% ©

BExedZal —T—ZFA+HRBHAIE [
—E-EFRA-FOERIARARREAME
BHREEZZZNFERPIE - BIEo0.35
T (ZZEZENF  §RAE®o.257T) ° E[EH H
BB o4 —TETENFERNIRELE
HEFRE® 04970 (ZZEZENF : A K0.4
TL)  REBEENFIER23% °

Still, the Group successfully executed its strategy to focus on building
its consumer empire. The Group continued to grow the size of its core
consumer businesses and delivered an improved profit in 2009 while
consolidating its No. 1 positions in the supermarket and beer businesses
in the Chinese Mainland.

The Group completed the disposal of its entire equity interest in the non-
core textile business and container terminal investments at the end of
December 2009. Consolidated turnover from the continuing operations for
the year ended 31 December 2009 amounted to approximately HK$64,131
million, representing an increase of 12.1% from the previous year.

Driven by strong growth in the beverage business, the Group’s consolidated
profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders from the continuing
operations for the year ended 31 December 2009 was approximately
HK$2,785 million, 35.9% higher than that of the previous year, despite
the unfavorable operating environment. Basic earnings per share from the
continuing operations were HK$1.17, compared to HK$0.86 in 2008.

Excluding the after-tax effect of revaluation of investment properties
and major disposal of non-core assets and investments, which led to
aggregate gains of HK$1,050 million in 2009 and HK$495 million in 2008,
the Group’s underlying consolidated profit attributable to the Company’s
shareholders from the continuing operations would have increased by
11.6% for the year ended 31 December 2009.

The Board recommends a final dividend of HK$0.35 per share for
2009 (2008: HK$o0.25 per share) payable on or around 15 June 2010 to
shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of the
Company on 24 May 2010. Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.14
per share, the total dividend for 2009 will amount to HK$0.49 per share
(2008: HK$o0.40 per share). This represents an increase of 23% over
2008.
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FR®E CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

The Group has a clear goal to develop itself into China’s largest consumer
goods company. To this end, the Group has been investing in its core
consumer businesses for further expansion over the past few years, while,
at the same time, disposing of its non-core assets to make good use of
resources. For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group incurred
approximately HK$6 billion on capital expenditure with a majority on
beverage and retail businesses.

The Group has put more emphasis on increasing the market share and
profitability of the existing stores for its supermarket operation. At the
same time, we were quick to seize consolidation opportunities in the
market and opened more than 380 supermarkets in 2009 to reinforce the
Group’s leading position in target markets.

For the beer operation, the Group made investments in brewery acquisition,
greenfield projects and factory expansion. Major acquisitions during the
year included the six breweries in Anhui Province, Liaoning Province,
Zhejiang Province and Shandong Province. Efforts were also made to
expand its distribution network to boost sales. The Group’s purified water
operation has continued its expansion outside Guangdong Province and
new products were also evaluated.

Food safety has always been a crucial element in the successful business
model of the Group’s food business. It is also a priority concern for
consumers, the government as well as food retailers and manufacturers
in the Chinese Mainland. Therefore, we have strategically built a vertically
integrated high quality meat supply system to better control both food
quality and food safety from upstream to downstream segments of the
supply chain.

The Group continued to step up its investments in the Chinese Mainland,
where our growth opportunities lie. For the year under review, the mainland
market accounted for about 87.4% of the Group’s turnover and 55.6% of
its profit before tax, compared with 86.8% and 63.1% respectively in the
year ended 31 December 2008.
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The Group achieved solid results in 2009 despite the challenging operating
environment. Provided that the current recovery in the global economy is
sustainable, the Group anticipates both the macroeconomic environment
and consumer spending in the Chinese Mainland will continue to improve
in 2010. Our implementation of the strategy to further expand our core
consumer businesses and grow our leadership positions will help us ride
on the benefits emerging from the gradual economic recovery.

The consumer price index in the Chinese Mainland returned to positive
growth in the last two months of 2009, putting an end to the negative
growth in each of the preceding nine months. Retail sales growth reached
an eleven-month high of 17.5% in December 2009. These trends as well
as expectations of moderate inflation in the market bode well for our retail
business in the coming year.

In 2010, the Group’s operating environment is expected to improve further
on the back of a strengthening economy and the central government’s
policy in spurring domestic consumption. For example, it will keep
implementing policies to stimulate household consumption so as to allow
domestic demand to play a bigger role in the country’s economic growth.

2010 will be an important year in the development of the Group as we
move forward as a pure consumer play in the China market. With the
successful repositioning of our business components to focus on the
three core businesses of retail, beverage and food, our top strategic goal
is to create quality growth for the Group. For this reason, we have to
continuously strengthen our existing operations to improve our profitability
while actively expanding our presence in the China’s consumer market. We
are driven by our determination to become the largest consumer goods
company in China. Our outstanding track record especially in adjusting the
right business focus has given us confidence in our success and achieving
even more in the future.

Our achievements in 2009 were made possible only with the efforts of
our staff at all levels and | thank them sincerely for their dedication and
support. | also wish to extend my gratitude to our shareholders, customers,
business partners and other stakeholders for their support and the trust
they have placed in us.

Qiao Shibo

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2010
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To assist investors in making well-informed investment decisions about
our business, the Group is committed to maintaining open and effective
communication with the investment community and the media to facilitate
quality disclosure of its operation and business development. Our goal is
to provide the investment community with accurate information in a timely
manner, and on a platform that promotes the three-way communication
between the investors, operation managers and senior management.

Continuing the Group’s efforts in previous years, we conducted global
roadshows in 2009 where our senior management met with institutional
investors in Europe, the United States and Asia and presented to them
the recent business development in our core consumer businesses: retail,
beverage and food operations as well as the details about our corporate
restructuring. In July 2009, we held our annual Corporate Day for analysts
and fund managers. During this regular corporate function, we presented to
them our consumer business operations in Shenzhen, Beijing and Nanjing
in the Chinese Mainland. In addition to holding such activities, the Group’s
management is accessible to the investment community through channels
such as one-on-one meetings, plant visits, luncheons and conferences
arranged by financial institutions. In 2009, our senior management met
with over 1,100 analysts and fund managers in around 380 meetings. The
Group was granted numerous investor relations awards by Asiamoney,
Thomson Reuters, IR Magazine and The Asset in 2009.

In 2009, financial markets around the world began to slowly recover
from the financial crisis that erupted more than a year ago. Against this
backdrop, the Company adopted a proactive approach to communicate
with investors and analysts. Our share price surged 109.7% to HK$28.35
in 2009, which had outperformed the Hang Seng Index by 59.2%. The
Company’s shares closed out the year on a 12-month high at HK$28.35 on
31 December 2009. The stock recorded its lowest closing price for the year
on 2 March 2009 at HK$10.66. As a result of the share price recovery, the
Company’s market capitalization swelled by 110.3% to HK$67,914 million
in 2009.
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DIVIDEND PAYOUT RATIO

To show our appreciation for shareholders’ support, the Group is committed
to a respectable cash dividend payout ratio. In 2009 we maintained our
annual basic payout ratio at a similar level to that of 2008 in order to
reserve cash for future expansion. Sticking to that stated objective, we
maintained the ratio at 40% this year. We plan to pay basic cash dividends
that balance the cash generated from the growth of the Company’s earnings
with the cash needed to fuel future profit growth.
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Earnings and dividend per share of the Company for 2005-2009
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AARHZBERE-BENFHNELFRSREDIRILE
Basic cash dividend payout ratio of the Company for 2005-2009

H 7Lt Percentage (%)
50

41.1% 41.9%

40 39.2%
30
20
10
o

41.2%

B EE
Notes:
(1) HRITTBEIER T RNFREFRIRSREEGHRE
B URZZTLFREFHR KR EFREE
o 0.67T °
40.3% The chart has excluded the distribution of special

dividends of HK$1 per share in cash in 2006 and
HK$0.6 per share in cash in 2007.

(2 FAEERBRREMEEFNREE BRI TAHE
Calculation is based on profit attributable to

=

BHIH & Y -

shareholders less the disposal gain of the piped gas
and chemical distribution businesses.
SEEARRREEEMNRETEN A MEHEBD
HEIE ©

Calculation is based on profit attributable to
shareholders less the disposal gain of the petroleum
distribution business in Hong Kong.
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TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN

In consequence of the gradual repositioning of our business to focus
on the consumer market and our robust corporate governance practices,
which led to encouraging operating performance, the Company’s shares
achieved a total return of 175.6% for shareholders over the past five years,
as measured by share price appreciation and reinvested dividend. This
was noticeably higher than that of the Hang Seng Index and the Hang
Seng Commerce & Industry Index. The Company also posted a positive
total return of 114.1% for shareholders for the year 2009, which exceeded
the total returns of the Hang Seng Index and the Hang Seng Commerce &
Industry Index over the same period.
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Total shareholder return of the Company relative to market indices for 2005-2009
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The Group’s retail division comprises the supermarket and logistics
operation and other retail stores operation.

The turnover of the Group’s retail division for 2009 rose 12.1% to
HK$35,939 million year-on-year while its attributable profit amounted to
HK$296 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 24.5%.

The Chinese Mainland’s economy experienced a gradual recovery
from the impact of the global financial crisis in the year under review.
Benefiting from the central government’s economic stimulus program, its
GDP growth picked up steadily.

Due to the negative impact of the financial crisis in 2009, the Chinese
Mainland registered 15.5% year-on-year growth in total retail sales of
consumer goods, down from 2008’s rate of 21.6%. Against a relatively
subdued consumer environment, consumer price index for 2009 declined
by 0.7% year-on-year, compared with an increase of 5.9% in 2008.
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BE=FTEEKEER
Turnover of retail business
over the last three years
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In Hong Kong, overall consumer sentiment in 2009 was negatively
affected by the high unemployment rate and expectation of a slow
recovery of the global economy. Although the economic condition and
consumer confidence in Hong Kong showed initial improvements toward
the end of 2009, overall retail sales volume for 2009 declined by 0.8%

year-on-year.
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SUPERMARKET AND LOGISTICS

The turnover of the supermarket and logistics operation for 2009 was
HK$35,018 million, representing an increase of 12.5% over 2008. Its
attributable profit for 2009 amounted to HK$281 million, a decrease of
19.9% over 2008.

The increase in turnover was mainly attributable to an expanded
operational scale. As at the end of December 2009, the Group operated
a total of over 2,800 stores in the Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong,
of which approximately 62.1% were self-operated and the rest were
franchised stores. They are mainly hypermarkets, supermarkets and
convenience stores operated under the brands of “#£E&Z Vanguard”,
“ZE MR China Resources Suguo”, “EfE Suguo”, “Vango” and “Olé”.
In terms of geographical contribution, Eastern China, Southern China,
Hong Kong and Northern China respectively accounted for 63.0%, 26.0%,
6.6% and 4.4% of the operation’s turnover for 2009.

Both the macroeconomic environment and consumer spending remained
weak, negative same store sales growth was recorded in the first half of
the year. Following the improvements in the second half of the year, the
Group’s overall same store sales for 2009 were up 0.3% year-on-year.
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The impact of the economic downturn was exacerbated by intense
competition in the market where foreign operators gradually localized
their operations to raise their overall competitiveness. While the
industry became increasingly competitive, the Group adopted numerous
promotional campaigns to boost sales. Promotional activities inevitably
lowered the sales margin, however, through enforcement of stringent cost
control, the operation reported earnings before interest, tax, depreciation
and amortization for 2009 amounted to HK$1,510 million, representing
an 9.9% increase over 2008.

The Group took necessary steps to respond to such a challenging
operating environment. It continued to cater for customer preferences
and optimize its product mix to adapt to customer requirements in a
subdued retail market. Other initiatives included integration of its supply
chain and establishment of a risk management system.

The Group has been adopting a multi-format store strategy to effectively
expand into target markets. In addition to innovation of store formats,
it standardized existing store formats to further enhance the customers’
shopping environment. In 2009, the Group continued to expand its
supermarket operation into new markets in an attempt to strengthen its
national leadership.

The Group acquired a chain of hypermarkets, through an asset swap
agreement (the “Asset Swap Agreement”) with its parent company, China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. The acquisition, which was
completed on 31 December 2009, has considerably expanded the Group’s
supermarket operation by complementing its geographical coverage in
the northern and central areas of the Chinese Mainland.
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The retail industry of the Chinese Mainland will benefit from the
stabilization of the economy and rising consumer demand. The Group
plans to speed up the opening of new stores, and will proactively
explore acquisition opportunities in the fragmented market.

OTHER RETAIL STORES

The turnover and attributable profit of other retail stores operation for
2009 amounted to HK$921 million and HK$15 million respectively, down
by 1.3% and 63.4% year-on-year. As at the end of December 2009, the
Group’s chain of retail stores mainly consisted of 5 “F% Chinese Arts
& Crafts” stores and 47 “ZEHE CR Care” stores in Hong Kong and the
Chinese Mainland.

Responding to the challenging business environment after the economic
downturn, the Group’s other retail stores operation increased the
frequency and magnitude of promotional activities to stimulate sales.
However, weakened consumer sentiment in 2009 had a negative impact
on “FE Chinese Arts and Crafts” operation, which focuses on the sale
of high quality and premium products. While retail prices were lowered
according to market changes, rental levels remained unchanged, putting
pressure on the profitability of the business.
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BRESFHEDH MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year under review, “f#: Chinese Arts & Crafts” operation held
its soth anniversary promotional campaign which achieved encouraging
results. The Group also established a gems testing laboratory in Hong
Kong in June 2009 to further enhance its brand recognition of products
and service quality. Riding on our solid foundation in Hong Kong,
we opened the first mainland’s “f% Chinese Arts & Crafts” store in
Shenzhen in order to tap the huge potential of the luxurious goods
market in the Chinese Mainland.

BHEREXERED 2 BHE
Geographical turnover breakdown of the supermarket business
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With promotional campaigns and opening of new stores, “* 8= CR
Care” operation achieved a 2.4% increase in turnover for 2009. However,
promotional activities on premium products pushed down the gross profit
margin. To improve its profitability, proactive operational reviews were
conducted and certain non-performing stores were closed. The losses
from these store closures affected the profitability of the operation.

Although the economy and market conditions have shown signs of
gradual recovery, there are still uncertainties ahead which may influence
consumer sentiment. Lingering price sensitivity among consumers,
rising purchasing costs and potential increases in rentals will likely pose
challenges to the operation. But the Group believes its sales and gross
margin will improve when the market stabilizes. The Group will take
advantage of the well-established brand image and regional dominance
of its supermarkets in the Chinese Mainland to expand its other retail
stores operation, with “FZ Chinese Arts & Crafts” operation entering
the market in Eastern China and “Z£8%= CR Care” operation developing at
a faster pace in Southern China.



BREHEDH MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Geographical distribution of the Group’s supermarkets as at 31 December 2009
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BEVERAGE
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The beverage division reported a turnover of HK$20,470 million and an
attributable profit of HK$684 million for 2009, representing increases of
17.6% and 67.2% respectively over 2008.

BEER OPERATION

The beer operation reported a turnover of HK$18,878 million and an
attributable profit of HK$540 million for 2009, representing increases of
17.6% and 81.2% respectively over 2008.

Benefiting from the efforts in product mix optimization, product upgrade
and product display innovation, the beer operation successfully boosted
beer sales with growing brand awareness to compete with peers. Besides,
lower raw material costs helped deliver satisfactory profitability of
the operation.

—ZEThE
BYEET
2009
HKS million
B Turnover 20,470
FEAE & Attributable profit 684
KEHFE - BIE - EBITDA 2,660
e REBHR BT
BARAX R Capital expenditure 3,871
UEIEE and new acquisitions

—EENE
BEEST g
2008 Change

HK$ million (%)
17,405 18%
409 67%
2,141 24%

4,041 (4%)
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The sales volume of beer for 2009 rose by 15.3% to approximately
8,371,000 kiloliters as the warmer-than-usual weather for the first three
quarters favored our beer sales. In 2009, organic sales volume reported
steady growth of 6.0% while the sales volume of our national brand “Z¢
Snow” rose by 18.8% to approximately 7,244,000 kiloliters, accounting for
86.5% of the total sales volume.

BEZFBHHE
Sales volume of beer
over the last three years

’000FFF kiloliters

10,000
A
~
)
)
8,000 N
wn N
BN N
V)
6,000
4,000
2,000
o
2007 2008 2009

BE=F [F7E Snow | EHHE
Sales volume of “F{E Snow” beer
over the last three years

’ooo Tt kiloliters

,500 N
755 RS
[
s\
<
O
6,000
o
N
-+
[al
4,500
3,000
1,500
o
2007 2008 2009

#EMAIZEMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited © Annual Report 2009 3 37



38

FA - AEBERAZIHRE  UBEINHEE - K
SETTERAS BERBER  UIESAEER
BEETENEER -  ARERDERR - B
FRANERERDAREARETLR  KNWEERE S
7€ Snow | MEEH) G A1 E FOR B E BHE ©

A BRI TIB A - BAMEESE - RS
BHERBLEREE AEEDTREES R
URZHE BEE NIE LREREET
BHHEEOAMABNEE - RZZEZNF+A
K REBEFBRRDLLE D 70m B/ @ FE
£ 514,000,000 T FF ©

an>

Throughout the year, the Group strengthened its distribution channels
to boost sales. Product segmentation of premium beers was fine-tuned
in particular so as to strengthen our market share in the high-end beer
market. The Group’s endeavors in enhancing the brand image of “Z1E
Snow” through more up-to-date and brand-new promotional activities,
which were successful in consolidating the brand reputation and reinforcing
consumer loyalty.

In order to further strengthen our market position, widen geographical
coverage, enhance operational efficiency and optimize product structure,
the Group completed the acquisition of brewing assets in several new
breweries in different regions in the Chinese Mainland, namely Anhui
Province, Liaoning Province, Zhejiang Province, Shandong Province and
Heilongjiang Province. As at the end of December 2009, the Group
operated about 70 breweries in the Chinese Mainland with an annual
production capacity of approximately 14 million kiloliters.
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BEEHHEADH MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The economy of the Chinese Mainland has not fully recovered from the
global financial crisis. The beer operation will have to overcome the
negative effects arising from possible rise in raw material costs and
increased competition in the market. With these challenges ahead, the
Group will reinforce centralized procurement to minimize purchasing costs.
In view of our nationwide coverage in the Chinese Mainland, we will
consolidate our leadership in developed markets while enhancing our
profitability and competitiveness in markets where we are yet to develop
our strong presence.

PURIFIED WATER OPERATION

The purified water operation, with “/62 Cestbon” as its sole brand,
reported a turnover of HK$1,592 million and an attributable profit of
HK$144 million for 2009, representing increases of 17.3% and 29.7%
respectively over 2008. Sales volume of purified water in 2009 rose by
16.6% year-on-year to approximately 1,594,000 kiloliters.
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The growth in sales was mainly driven by the increase in market coverage,
expanded distribution networks in Hunan, Eastern and Northern China
areas as well as our development in the new markets such as Fujian and
Guangxi Provinces. During the year under review, the Group enhanced the
distribution channels for better penetration into South-Western China and
launched various promotional activities that successfully boosted sales.
The decline in crude oil prices and bulk procurement allowed us to lower
the procurement costs in respect of plastic packaging materials during the
year, contributed to a rise in profitability.

Operating in the increasingly competitive packaged water market in the
Chinese Mainland, we will strengthen our competitive advantage by
product mix enrichment and geographical coverage expansion. We aim
at enhancing our brand awareness in both developed and newly entered
markets. We will also refine segmentation of markets in order to explore
new ways to drive sustainable growth of the operation. In the future, the
Group will strive for organic growth and seek acquisition opportunities for
achieving steady profitability growth.
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Geographical distribution of the Group’s breweries and water plants as at 31 December 2009
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The food processing and distribution division reported a turnover of
HK$7,443 million for 2009, representing a decrease of 2.6% over 2008. Its
attributable profit for 2009 amounted to HK$350 million, representing an
increase of 12.2% over 2008. Excluding the gains from reducing certain
equity interests in strategic investment, the attributable profit for 2009
would have increased by 1.3%.

For the year under review, the Group maintained its market leadership
in terms of market share in the Hong Kong live pig market through the
synergy with its mainland livestock raising business that ensured a steady
supply of live pigs. However, intensified market competition further
lowered the gross profit and profitability of the livestock distribution
business in Hong Kong.

With the successful renewal of our contract right to operate and manage
the abattoir in Sheung Shui, Hong Kong for a maximum of another ten
years in 2009, the Group will further improve the food safety system
in Hong Kong’s slaughtering industry, kick off the management system
upgrade in aspects such as Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point
(HACCP) System, occupational safety and health and environment
protection, and consummate the platform for tracing food quality
information like the pigs and cattle tracking system for ensuring safety
of food supplies to Hong Kong. The Group aims at further improving the
operational management of the abattoir to enhance the added-value of
our services.
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The meat processing, branded food processing, storage, logistics and
distribution businesses in the Chinese Mainland delivered satisfactory
operating results for the year under review through active business
expansion. Desirable growth was recorded in the mainland slaughtering
volume of live pigs as well as the sales volume of fresh, chilled and
frozen meat businesses. The brands of the Group’s meat products,
frozen food and ice-cream were well-known in places such as Shanghai,
Hangzhou, and Shenzhen with higher market share and more brand
awareness. As a result, turnover from branded food contributed to
a higher proportion of the overall turnover of food processing and

distribution division for the year 2009.
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2008
HK$ million
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Through acquisitions, the Group has strengthened and integrated the
supply chain of livestock raising, slaughtering, meat processing, cold
storage, logistics and sales distribution. During the year, the Group made
use of the cost advantages provided by a newly acquired production
base in Shandong Province in December 2008 to further expand the
market coverage in Shanghai, establishing a vertically integrated high
quality meat supply system in the region. At the same time, the newly
acquired livestock raising business in Henan Province in August 2008
provided a stable supply for the livestock distribution business in
Hong Kong while serving as an exemplary model of a livestock raising
base for high-quality live pigs in the meat processing business in the
Chinese Mainland.

Through active expansions in the African, European and Japanese markets
as well as product mix optimization, the marine fishing and aquatic
products processing operation achieved a further increase in operating
profit. Various measures such as better deployment of shipping resources
in different regions, promoting resources sharing and enhancing
efficiency of the operation, coupled with the drop in fuel prices, helped
to ease operating cost pressure. Therefore, the overall profitability of the
operation was improved and the operation reported satisfactory profit
contribution for the period under review.

Looking forward, the Chinese Mainland is still a key market for the
division’s growth. The Group will continue to carry out and replicate
“Vegetable Basket” project in regional core cites and is dedicated to
becoming a leading integrated safe food supplier with capabilities in
research and development, processing, storage, logistics, wholesaling and
retailing as well as international trading. The Group intends to develop
and grow its business in the Chinese Mainland through acquisitions.
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Geographical distribution of the Group’s food business as at 31 December 2009
@D =75 Livestock raising

@Y = veat products

S RMEEM Delicacies and others

@=D =551 Marine fishing

A Henan

|Li% Shandong
JL%K Jiangsu
3% Shanghai
L Zhejiang

79)l| Sichuan
@Y =& Guangi

SIF Jiangxi
PHTMH R HT Las Palmas
EEHEEEE Mauritania
318 A Cape Verde

Z Y INFF Senegal
#ATELL AR Guinea-Bissau
# A2 Guinea

ZEHFIS Sierra Leone
RHFHEEL Cote d’lvoire
fn#A Ghana

&3 Guangdong

JEIMNFEER
West Africa

SNSNNY \

4“ 5% Pacific Ocean

KPE5¥ Atlantic Ocean

#EMAIZAEMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited * Annual Report 2009 3 4§



46

EYDZE INVESTMENT PROPERTY

WENMEEBETEZRRTEERMWERR - NEK
R-ETNFREERE A E 550,000,000 * =
TENFIENN26.7% : FEAEEF] A7 #1,286,000,000
TG ° S 478 ¥ 912,000,000 TR E Y ER B HER
#%(ZZFZ)\F : 4978¥ 415,000,00070) MR ZZEE
NFREBMNESHETAMBLD 2 BERIBAELOE
#52,000,0007014 + AEBHR ZEZENFREEREF
BAF FHIELIN30.3% °

RERRDEFEROYEOMBL - AEBOED
WARZZZAFRELT - AT EMENES R
A R TR RS E TR

REARE  FREEGRETESEET TN AESR
BEEEN - A BOTERRREEHRNER
VIR SRET B MBRAR OB A SR I HE i - P HIFE 2 RO Tt
18 o AEBHTEFEBER T TEMENES - A
RIESHA -

The investment property division, which mainly comprises the retail
property rental segment, reported a turnover of HK$550 million in 2009,
up 26.7% over 2008. Its attributable profit was HK$1,286 million. Excluding
an after-tax revaluation surplus of approximately HK$912 million (2008:
approximately HK$415 million) and the decrease in deferred tax liabilities
of approximately HK$52 million resulting from a reduction in the Hong
Kong profits tax rate in 2008, the attributable profit of the division in
2009 would have increased by 30.3% over the previous year.

Benefiting from new tenancy agreements of Silvercord property in Tsim
Sha Tsui, rental income of the division increased considerably in 2009.
Other retail properties also recorded slight increases in rental and
occupancy rates.

Looking ahead, we expect the traditional key tourism areas will continue
to benefit from the high purchasing power of mainland travelers. However,
the prudent expansion plans and stringent cost control measures of some
of the retail and food and beverage operators will hinder the increment
of rental rates. The division will from time to time evaluate the renovation
potential of its retail properties with a view to increase rental income.

BE R EAMZEFS INVESTMENTS AND OTHERS
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Its attributable profit for 2009 amounted to HK$321 million (2008:
HK$396 million).

CONTAINER TERMINAL

The Group transferred its entire 10% stake in the container terminal
business to its parent company under the Asset Swap Agreement on
31 December 2009.
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BRAND-FASHION DISTRIBUTION

The Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement on 17
December 2009 to dispose of its entire interest in a joint venture
engaged in brand-fashion distribution business in the Chinese
Mainland. The transaction will help the Group to focus on reinforcing
its market leadership in core consumer businesses.

The brand-fashion distribution segment reported a turnover of
HK$2,611 million and an attributable profit of HK$138 million for
2009, representing an increase of 1.2% and a decrease of 30.3%
respectively over 2008.

TEXTILE

In order to focus on the core consumer businesses, the Group
completed the disposal of the entire textile division to its parent
company on 31 December 2009 under the Asset Swap Agreement.

The textile division recorded a turnover of HK$4,887 million in 2009,
representing an increase of 1.2% over 2008. Its attributable loss for
2009 amounted to HK$10 million, compared to an attributable profit
of HK$74 million in 2008.
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CAPITAL AND FUNDING

As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s consolidated cash and bank
balance amounted to HK$8,803 million. The Group’s borrowings as
at 31 December 2009 were HK$12,143 million with HK$3,324 million
repayable within one year, HK$8,816 million repayable after one year
but within five years and HK$3 million repayable after five years.
Committed borrowing facilities available to the Group but not drawn
as at 31 December 2009 amounted to approximately HK$770 million.

On the basis of the Group’s net borrowings relative to the shareholders’
funds and minority interests, the Group’s gearing was approximately at
9.4% as at 31 December 2009 (31 December 2008: 18.7%).

The Group’s principal assets, liabilities, revenue and payments are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. As
at 31 December 2009, 22.5% of the Group’s cash deposit balance
was held in Hong Kong dollars, 71.5% in Renminbi and 4.9% in US
dollars; whereas 77.6% of the Group’s borrowings was denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and 15.4% in Renminbi with 6.9% in US dollars.
To mitigate the interest rate exposure, the Group entered into certain
interest rate swaps to hedge part of its borrowings.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2009, assets with a carrying value of HK$275
million (31 December 2008: HK$289 million) were pledged for bank
borrowings and notes payable.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2009.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2009, the Group, excluding its associated companies,
had a staff size of around 152,000, amongst which about 95% were
employed in the Chinese Mainland, whilst the rest were mainly in
Hong Kong and overseas. Remuneration packages are assessed in
accordance with the nature of job duties, individual performance and
market trends with built-in merit components, paid in the form of
cash bonuses.

By order of the Board
CHEN LANG

Managing Director

Hong Kong, 25 March 2010
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¥/1T¥E % EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MR. QIAO SHIBO aged 55

was re-appointed Executive Director of the Group on 6 March 2009 and has
been appointed Chairman with effect from 30 April 2009. He was appointed
Executive Director of the Group in July 2001 and Deputy Managing Director
in November 2001. He was re-designated as Non-Executive Director in March
2006 and resigned in February 2008. Mr. Qiao is the Director and President
of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and the President of China
Resources National Corporation. He is also the Vice-Chairman of the Board
of Directors and the President of China Resources Medications Group Limited
as well as the Chairman of China Resources Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. and Shan Dong Dong-E E-Jiao Co., Ltd., both of which are listed
companies in China. Mr. Qiao holds a Bachelor’s degree in Chinese Language
from the Jilin University, China. He joined China Resources National
Corporation and China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 1992.

MR. CHEN LANG aged 44

was appointed Executive Director and Managing Director of the Group in
January 2009. Mr. Chen is a Vice President of China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited, and Director of China Resources National Corporation as
well as the Chairman of China Resources Retail (Group) Company Limited,
China Resources Snow Breweries (China) Investment Co., Ltd., Ng Fung
Hong Limited and China Resources C’estbon Food & Beverage (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. He was previously the Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of China Resources Logic Limited (now renamed as China Resources Gas
Group Limited). Prior to that, he was the Chairman and General Manager
of China Resources Development and Investment Co., Limited and was in
charge of a number of substantial investments in Canada and Thailand of
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor of
Economics degree from Anhui University, China and a Master of Business
Administration degree from the University of San Francisco, USA. He is
currently the Council Chairman of the China Chain Store & Franchise
Association and the visiting professor of Anhui University, China. He joined
China Resources National Corporation and China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited in 1986 and 1989 respectively.
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¥/1T¥E % EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MR. LAI NI HIUM aged 48

has been an Executive Director and Deputy Managing Director of the Group
since June 2009 and Company Secretary since August 2009. Mr. Lai is also a
Non-Executive Director of China Resources Microelectronics Limited, of which
he was previously the Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary. Prior to joining China Resources Microelectronics Limited in May
2000, he served as the Chief Financial Officer of Eagle Brand Holdings Ltd.,
which is a company listed in Singapore and before then, he served as the
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of Logic International Holdings
Ltd. (now known as China Resources Gas Group Limited). Mr. Lai has a
Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of Western Australia and a
graduate diploma in Business and Administration from the Curtin University
of Technology of Western Australia. He is a member of CPA Australia. Mr. Lai
joined the Group in 2009.

MR. WANG QUN aged 53

has been an Executive Director of the Group since January 2000 and was
appointed Deputy Managing Director in March 2006. Mr. Wang is a Director
of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources
National Corporation. He is also an Executive Director of China Resources
Snow Breweries Limited and is responsible for the entire operation of the
Group’s beer operation. Mr. Wang has a Bachelor of Finance degree from the
People’s University of China. He has previously worked in the China National
Economic Committee and held key management positions in a Shenzhen
based conglomerate. Mr. Wang joined China Resources National Corporation
and China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 1994.

MR. LAU PAK SHING aged 60

had been an Executive Director of the Group since 1997 and a Deputy
Managing Director since March 2006 before he tendered his resignation
as the aforementioned positions with effect from 1 March 2010. Mr. Lau
graduated from the Hong Kong Baptist University (formerly known as Hong
Kong Baptist College) and is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He represented the Executive Committee of Hong Kong
Cold Storage Merchants Association Limited as Chairman for many years. Mr.
Lau has more than 30 years of experience in auditing, accounting, corporate
finance, property, godown and cold storage businesses and he is currently
in charge of the Group’s Hong Kong property division and logistics business.
Mr. Lau joined the Group in January 1994.
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MR. JIANG WEI aged 47

was appointed Director of the Group in July 1995. He is currently the Director
and Vice President of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and
China Resources National Corporation. Mr. Jiang is a Non-Executive Director
of China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited, China Resources Land
Limited, China Resources Microelectronics Limited as well as China Assets
(Holdings) Limited. He is also an Executive Director of Cosmos Machinery
Enterprises Limited, an Independent Non-Executive Director of Greentown
China Holdings Limited and is also a Director of China Vanke Co., Ltd.,
which is a listed company in China. Mr. Jiang obtained both his Bachelor's
degree in International Trade and Master's degree in International Business
and Finance from the University of International Business and Economics in
Beijing, China. He joined China Resources National Corporation and China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 1988 and 1990 respectively.

MR. YAN BIAO aged 48

was appointed Executive Director of the Group in December 1994 and was
a Deputy Managing Director before his re-designation as a Non-Executive
Director in March 2006. Mr. Yan is a Director of China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited and China Resources National Corporation and is the
Director of Legal Affairs of the China Resources Group. He is also a Non-
Executive Director of China Resources Land Limited. Mr. Yan has a Bachelor
of Laws degree from the Peking University, China and an MBA degree from
the University of San Francisco, USA.



BERSESEBAECEE BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BEE
Cheng Mo Chi

BRE B
Bernard Charnwut Chan

B
Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon

FFH1TES NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

TRELRE BEn+aE
RIBZNF-_AEZTAREEESE - thIR(E
EH(EE) AR A A BRSAEREIE S IE IR
By NAEBEEHARAR  BEMETEAR
NE - EERRERER AR REBKRIERSE
RARIZIERMITESE - TEREDFIR—NNEFE
E—NNZEFEILRZMEMARAKNBREEMEE
TRIZSZSLEG N TEELTEN - IR — NN
TEMAREEBEATTR— AN EMAE
H(EE) BRAFR °

HYREE BeEm+im
RIET+FNAREAARERES - A%
B(EM) BRATANBBAE - (TS
(£E) BB AFBIEE BB SDBCE -
HEEBBWARAT  EHMETARAD
EHRBERERD 7 REBKRIERARA A
THEMITEE  c HEAHAERESILAZRIN
TIBETER o R —AN\FEMAZE (&
) ARAT -

MR. LI FUZUO aged 45

was appointed Director of the Group in February 2008. He is currently
the Chief Strategy Management Officer of China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited and General Manager of its Strategy Management
Department. He is also a Non-Executive Director of China Resources
Land Limited, China Resources Microelectronics Limited, China Resources
Gas Group Limited and China Resources Cement Holdings Limited.
Mr. Li obtained both his Bachelor’s and Master’s degrees in Mechanical
Manufacturing Engineering from the Beijing University of Aeronautics
and Astronautics, China in 1987 and 1990 respectively. He joined China
Resources National Corporation and China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited in 1990 and 1992 respectively.

MR. DU WENMIN aged 46

was appointed Director of the Group in September 2007. He is the
Chief Human Resources officer of China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited and was previously the Chief Audit Executive as well as the
General Manager of the Internal Audit and Supervision Department
of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. He is also a Non-
Executive Director of China Resources Land Limited, China Resources
Microelectronics Limited, China Resources Gas Group Limited and China
Resources Cement Holdings Limited. Mr. Du obtained a Master’s degree
in Business and Administration from the University of San Francisco, USA.
He joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 198s.
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DR. CHAN PO FUN, PETER
BBS, MBE, JP, Chartered Accountant, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), FCPA (Aust),
aged 88

has been a Director of the Group since 1973. He practiced accountancy
in Hong Kong for 62 years. He has a doctorate in Offshore Petroleum
Technology and Modern Chinese Law and is an honorary fellow of the
Society for Underwater Technology. Dr. Chan is a trustee of the Hong Kong
Shue Yan University (also as its Research Professor) and the United College
of Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is also a Non-Executive Director
of Chuang’s China Investments Limited, Chuang’s Consortium International
Limited and VST Holdings Limited. He was the Chairman of The Kowloon Stock
Exchange, a founding Director of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited and
has served three terms as the Chairman of the former Hong Kong Federation
of Stock Exchanges.

MR. HOUANG TAI NINH aged 56

has been a Director of the Group since 1988. He is also a Director of Forcon
Investments Limited, Sino Petrochem Development Limited and China &
Overseas Resources Limited. Mr. Houang obtained his Bachelor of Business
Studies degree from the Polytechnic of North Staffordshire, United Kingdom.

DR. LI KA CHEUNG, ERIC
FCPA (Practising), GBS, OBE, JP, aged 56

has been a Director of the Group since March 2003. He is Senior Partner of
Li, Tang, Chen & Co., Certified Public Accountants (Practising), member of the
Eleventh National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and former member of the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong
SAR. Dr. Li holds directorship in a number of listed companies including
Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, Hang Seng Bank Limited, SmarTone
Telecommunications Holdings Limited, Transport International Holdings
Limited, Wong’s International (Holdings) Limited, RoadShow Holdings
Limited, Meadville Holdings Limited, Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.
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DR. CHENG MO CHI
GBS, OBE, JP, aged 60

has been a Director of the Group since November 2005. Dr. Cheng is a
practising solicitor and the senior partner of Messrs. P.C. Woo & Co.. Dr.
Cheng was a member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong. He is the
founder chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors of which he is now
the Honorary President and Chairman Emeritus. Dr. Cheng currently holds
directorships in K. Wah International Holdings Limited, China COSCO Holdings
Company Limited, China Mobile Limited, City Telecom (H.K.) Limited, Towngas
China Company Limited, Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, Kader
Holdings Company Limited, Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited, Guangdong
Investment Limited and Tian An China Investments Company Limited, all
being public listed companies in Hong Kong. His other directorships in public
listed companies in the last 3 years include Beijing Capital International
Airport Company Limited, Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited and Shui On
Construction and Materials Limited, all being public listed companies in
Hong Kong. He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of ARA Asset
Management Limited, a company whose shares are listed on Singapore
Exchange Limited, and an Independent Director of ARA Asset Management
(Singapore) Limited, which manages Fortune Real Estate Investment Trust, a
real estate investment trust listed on Singapore Exchange Limited.

MR. BERNARD CHARNWUT CHAN

GBS, JP, aged 45

has been a Director of the Group since November 2006. He is the Executive
Director and President of Asia Financial Holdings Limited and Asia Insurance
Company Limited. He also acts as an Advisor of Bangkok Bank Public
Company Limited, Hong Kong Branch. Apart from the roles in the business
community, Mr. Chan also serves as a Deputy to The National People’s
Congress of the People’s Republic of China and is a former member of the
Legislative Council and Executive Council of the Hong Kong SAR. In addition,
Mr. Chan holds directorships in a number of listed companies in Hong
Kong, including Chen Hsong Holdings Limited, City e-Solutions Limited, New
Heritage Holdings Limited, Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited and Yau
Lee Holdings Limited.

MR. SIU KWING CHUE, GORDON
GBS, CBE, JP, aged 64

has been a Director of the Group since November 2006. He had been a
career civil servant for over 36 years before retiring from the civil service in
2002. Mr. Siu rose to the rank of Secretary, Government Secretariat in 1993
and served as a number of high-ranking government positions, namely the
Secretary for Economic Services, Secretary for Transport, Head of Central
Policy Unit and eventually retired from his last posting as Secretary for
Planning, Environment & Lands. Mr. Siu now serves as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Transport International Holdings Limited and
two of its subsidiaries, ICEA Finance Holdings Limited as well as Television
Broadcasts Limited.

E=BPAIEAFMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited © Annual Report 2009 F ik

53



54

ESREEBEEASZEE BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

=

it

BESLLT nrmt+ms
R-TT\&E— RS ANEESBEE -
HWR BT FREEATLTERAFSE
E@EETE o R — AN —EMARLTERA
7 WR—ANANERERAT Y EEE AL
12 o BLEDRHEFELIMNEGEE 5 ALK
B ST R EA 2 T R IR 2
- RBSRALEEFED RS ST
(5 o

EREE nem+o%
REZBTAFNARE T AAEERIBLE -
MR —ETHESAREIAEEEREARA
TEEHTE o EEER— A ZEMAZERS
(£E)BRAT - MR -BEANENAZ
TEAGHANRHIEEERERATEE
ELT WELZMEA ST ARE
HEBBEIMEE - LA mamMNEeR G
HITIEAR) EESEL S - AFYE
MBS R ST o
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Bl 4312 VICE PRESIDENTS
MS. GUO JINQING aged 44

was appointed Vice President of the Group in February 2008. She has been
the Managing Director of Ng Fung Hong Limited since 2001. She joined
Ng Fung Hong Limited in 1991 and assumed the role of Deputy Managing
Director in 1996. Ms. Guo holds a Bachelor of Economic degree from the
University of International Business and Economics, China and a Master of
Business Administration degree from Murdoch University, Australia. She has
substantial experience in trading and corporate management.

MR. HONG JIE aged 42

was appointed Vice President of the Group since September 2009. He has
been the Chief Executive Officer of China Resources Vanguard Company
Limited since June 2009. Mr. Hong joined China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited in 1992. He was the Chief Operating Officer of China
Resources Vanguard Company Limited between June 2006 and May 2009
and prior to that, he had been its Chief Financial Officer since April 2003.
Mr. Hong holds a Bachelor’s degree in Economics from the Hangzhou
University of Commerce (now known as Zhejiang Gongshang University). He
has extensive experience in financial and corporate management.
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In alphabetical order

MS. CHAN SAU YEE, JOYCE aged 37

is the General Manager of the Group’s Corporate Development Department
and is in charge of corporate finance and public relations functions.
Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor’s and Master’s degree of Business Administration
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, and a OneMBA issued by five
partner universities in four continents. She is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Institute of Management Accountants. Prior to
joining the Group, she had worked for international accounting firms, served
as a Chief Financial Officer in a Japanese company and worked for a Hong
Kong regulatory body. Ms. Chan has extensive experience in audit and
advisory, corporate finance and regulatory compliance. She joined the Group
in December 2008.

MR. CHENG DAYONG, DAVID aged 45

is the General Manager of the Group’s Legal and Secretarial Department.
Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of
International Business and Economics, China. He is a member of All China
Lawyers Association and is qualified to practice law in the Chinese Mainland.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheng had worked in private practice and
has extensive experience in corporate and commercial legal work as well as
regulatory compliance. He joined the Group in July 2003.
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MR. LAI PO SING, TOMAKIN aged 43

is the General Manager of the Group’s Internal Audit Department. Mr. Lai
holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong and an MBA degree from the University of
Manchester, United Kingdom. He is a fellow Certified Public Accountant in
Hong Kong and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Prior to joining the Group, he had worked for international
accounting firms in Hong Kong and also acted as the financial controller
and company secretary for several listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Lai
has extensive experience in internal and external auditing, finance and
accounting, regulatory compliance and company secretarial matters. He
joined the Group in September 2008.

MISS TANG FUNG MING, MONITA aged 46

is the General Manager of the Group’s Finance Department and in charge of
the finance and treasury functions. Miss Tang holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Accountancy and a Master’s degree in International Accountancy from the
City University of Hong Kong. She is a member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants and has over twenty years of experience in finance
and accounting. She joined the Group in January 1993.

MR. TSE TAN HON, VINCENT aged 44

is the General Manager of the Group’s Strategic Planning and Investor
Relations Department. Mr. Tse holds a Bachelor’s degree in Electronic
Engineering from the University of Sussex, England. He also holds an MBA
degree from the University of Stirling, Scotland and a Master’s degree in
Finance from the University of Southampton, England. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Tse had worked for several renowned international investment
banks in areas of equity research and corporate finance. He has extensive
experience in financial analysis and strategic planning. He joined the Group
in March 2002.
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The Board believes that risk management is an integral part of corporate
governance. Effective and efficient corporate risk management will
facilitate the Group’s business development and operation by setting the
appropriate risk appetite, maintaining an optimal risk level and more
importantly, proactively responding to risks. It therefore helps protect
shareholder value and safeguard the Group’s reputation. Through putting
in place proper risk management control over key businesses and carrying
out regular reviews and updates, the Group strives to reduce the likelihood
and the effect of risks before they occur, and deal with problems effectively
when they arise.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Risk monitoring

Reoporting on monthly,
annual and ad hoc basis

BUSINESS UNITS

Step 1: Step 2: Step 3:

Risk Risk Analysis & Risk Monitoring &

Identification Mitigation Performance
Evaluation

While the Group’s risk management is the responsibility of every
management team member and is embedded in the daily operation of every
business unit, our risk management process is based on a decentralized
model with a centralized monitoring system. The Group’s strategy is to
maintain a streamlined risk management process to identify, analyze and
mitigate various risks in an efficient and effective manner.
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RERKEE CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT

Step One - Risk Identification

We identify and assess risks both at group and individual business unit
levels, and incorporate risk management into our business planning. At
the end of each year, each business unit undertakes a review of potential
risks which fall within their respective business and operation area. The
business unit then performs risk reviews including risk mapping and
evaluation of their probability of occurrence and impact. Identified risks
are reported together with the explanation of its nature and proposed
risk management strategies to the Group during the business plan review
session at the beginning of each year. In addition to the annual exercise,
our monthly reporting system of each business unit also facilitates ongoing
risk identification and the reporting of risks.

Step Two — Risk Analysis and Mitigation

When risks are identified, the assigned risk owner is responsible for
analyzing the probability of their occurrence and potential impact. Priority
will be given to risks with high probability and negative impact. The risk
owner then designs appropriate procedures and actions for risk mitigation
and acts accordingly. Implementation cost is also taken into account when
devising the action plan. During the implementation, we also emphasize
the balance of risks and benefits to ensure long-term business success.

Step Three - Risk Monitoring and Performance Evaluation

After risk identification, analysis and mitigation, evaluation reports are
submitted to the Group through the monthly reporting mechanism. To
prevent the same risks from occurring again, preventive actions and
procedures to improve operational efficiency are also incorporated into the
internal control system. To ensure the procedures were diligently followed
up, our internal audit department undertakes independent reviews, and
our management is responsible for ensuring appropriate actions are taken
to rectify any control deficiencies highlighted in the audit reports within a
reasonable period of time.
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The Group believes the long-term success of a company is built on its
strong sense of responsibility for its stakeholders and the society as a
whole. As a responsible corporate citizen, we have adapted our business
practices to the ever-changing environment in order to be socially and
environmentally responsible. We strive to integrate corporate social
responsibility (“CSR”) into every aspect of our business with a view to
creating a better environment for our customers and the community
while delivering better returns to our shareholders.

As one of the leading consumer goods companies in China, the Group
not only advocates environmental protection on a corporate level, but
also encourages its customers, suppliers and employees to engage in a
greener lifestyle. We have adopted environmentally-friendly measures and
launched various promotion campaigns to realize the initiatives. Different
businesses of the Group actively promote environmental protection in
the community and support the relevant programs introduced by the
local governments in China.

Energy Conservation

With over 2,800 stores in China, the energy conservation measures
adopted by our supermarket operation continue to contribute to the
conservation of our environment. In 2009, our supermarket division
initiated a trial run of LED lighting in its self-operated stores and the trial
was proved to be a success. The first store designated for this purpose
is located in Shenzhen. The trial showed that LED lighting saved as
much as 60% of electricity. In view of the encouraging results, it is going
to gradually implement such energy saving measures in its nationwide
network in the future on condition that they are technically stable.

On 28 March 2009, all our self-operated stores of the supermarket
operation joined WWF’s “Earth Hour” event to support energy
conservation. One-third of the stores’ lighting was switched off for
an hour at night. To continue the “Earth Hour” spirit, we have been
promoting energy saving at self-operated hypermarkets and superstores,
to encourage the switching off of non-essential power supplies during
non peak hours to reduce power consumption since July 2009; besides,
we have been switching off part of the lighting in all our Hong Kong
stores on the second Wednesday of each month since July 2009. Our
Hong Kong stores also participated in Friends of the Earth (HK)’s “Dim it”
campaign in June in response to the issue of light pollution.
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Our other retail stores operation, “@H % Chinese Arts & Crafts” and “Z£)f
% CR Care”, continuously introduce new energy saving measures to their
stores. Some of the initiatives include reducing lighting in the back-end
area of stores, using energy-saving decorative lights for window displays,
keeping air-conditioning use at adequate levels, and installation of
automatic time control for signboards.

The Group is committed to energy saving as a promoter as well as a
participant. Our mainland supermarket operation sponsored the National
Energy Conservation Week 2009 held in Shenzhen in June 2009. In
cooperation with the local government, it produced brochures on energy-
saving tips, posters and re-usable bags to raise public awareness of
environmental protection in the community.

Natural Environment Conservation

Besides suppliers and customers, the Group also actively encourages its
employees to support environmental protection initiatives. To protect
the natural environment, employees of our supermarket operation in
Suzhou joined the mountain cleaning activities led by a local volunteer
organization in May 2009. Our purified water operation also solicited
volunteers to visit the source of the Pearl River with experts, scholars
and the media so as to promote the awareness of river protection.

To promote water conservation, our beer operation has implemented
several measures to minimize clean water usage during the production
process. For instance, it has installed advanced process water recycling
systems at its factories. Recycled water is used for gardening, cleaning,
and as flushing water in the factory area. In addition, the water used in
the last round of rinsing for cleaning the production facilities is collected
and reused to pre-wash the facilities next time. Such measures helped
the operation to lower clean water usage by about 30%.

Waste Reduction and Recycling

Our supermarket operation introduced its first environmental protection
and energy conservation quarterly campaign in July 2009 to disseminate
waste reduction. It encouraged its suppliers to reduce packaging and
took the lead in cutting down on packaging for products of its own
brand “Simple Life” (“f§#J414"). In accordance with the environmental
protection regulations introduced by the government, our beer operation
has put in place systems to manage, monitor and assess its waste
reduction as well as energy saving.
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The Group is devoted to being an active, caring member of the society,
and is committed to serving groups in need in various communities.
Not only do we make cash and gift donations, we also encourage our
customers, employees and suppliers to take an active role in helping
the community.

The Group is grateful to the contribution the elderly have made to the
society and integrate into its operation its care to them. In October and
November 2009, our supermarket operation launched the nationwide
“The Warm Touch” (“E&ER E)&EIK”) campaign. In cooperation
with major suppliers, our supermarkets set aside a designated area to
display nutritious food and opened special cashier counters to make
shopping easier for the elderly. Free delivery service was also provided
for those aged 60 or above. Our supermarket operation in Hong Kong
was recognized by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service for its work
in this area. In addition, it is a long-standing practice of “ZEE=E CR
Care” to offer 50% discount to all patients aged over 65 for its Chinese
medical services.
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CR Vanguard joined the “Earth Hour” event
to support energy conservation.
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The Group pays attention to the underprivileged in the community as
well. On 20 June 2009, our beer operation in Jiangsu initiated a volunteer
campaign called “E FF38”. Volunteers were recruited in the community
and high schools to carry out various community services ranging from
home appliance repairing to legal consulting. In the first half of 2009,
our beer operation in Hubei also selected and employed 60 college
students in Jingzhou City who were in financial difficulties to provide
regular private tuition to 6o children from impoverished families.

Education

Education is one of the main foci in our CSR activities. Via the “C’estbon
100 Libraries Program” (“!/AE BFTEIZ8E5T3”), our purified water
operation appealed to the public for old books and physical education
equipment and raised funds in order to build libraries and physical
education facilities for children living in villages. During the year of
2009, 6 libraries were built in Guangdong, Hunan and Guangxi Provinces,
etc. For the fifth consecutive year, our beer operation has held “The
Great Expedition with SNOW” (“ZBEMEH B KXE”) campaign. In the
“The Great Expedition with SNOW - Mount Qogir Challenge” held in
September 2009, the adventure team visited a village school in Xinjiang
with a donation of books and stationery supplies.
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The adventure team of “The Great Expedition with SNOW” campaign distributed stationery supplies to primary school students.
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Our employees are our most valuable asset and the key to our continued
success. To provide our employees with a safe and friendly working
environment, each of our businesses has its own occupational health
and safety guidelines and policies in line with its own unique business
environment and needs. We are also devoted to providing development
and training programs to our employees, not only to cultivate and
retain talent, but also to enhance our competitiveness and productivity.
A wide variety of training programs was implemented throughout the
year, covering a comprehensive range of topics including management,
sales and marketing, workplace safety, customer service, technical and
interpersonal skills.

Our beer operation, for example, is committed to promoting life-long
learning among its employees, and has regarded training of its entire
workforce as a major objective. It regularly provides its staff with training
in work safety, ensuring all workers are familiar with the relevant safety
regulations on production and safety operating procedure. Any untrained
staff or unqualified staff will not be allowed to go on duty.
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CR Vanguard has obtained the HACCP certification and the Green Market System Certification for some of its stores in Eastern and Southern China.
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PRODUCT AND SERVICE QUALITY

Food Safety and Product Quality

As a trusted and renowned food and beverage supplier, the Group
understands the importance of ensuring the safety and quality of the
products it supplies. In order to safeguard public health and protect the
premium image of the “F1*2 Ng Fung” brand, food safety is of the essence
to the Group. We have established a food safety system covering the
whole supply chain from upstream registered mainland pig farms to
downstream retail market. Our product tracing system and product recall
system make us a leader in food safety in the industry.

Our beer operation and the Sheung Shui abattoir have obtained the
Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Points (HACCP) certification. Our
supermarket operation has also successfully obtained the HACCP
certification and the Green Market System Certification for some of
its stores in Eastern and Southern China. It is now in the process of
introducing the standards to all its stores in the country to enhance
management quality and to standardize the management process. As
a result of our best practice in management, our food processing and
distribution operation succeeded in renewing its contract right to operate
and manage the Sheung Shui abattoir in April 2009.
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While maintaining good management of its operation, the Group always
stays alert and responsive to any food safety crisis that may arise. During
the outbreak of the HiN1 Influenza A, our food business immediately
reported to the Hong Kong government on the emergency measures
that had been taken, including ensuring that imported pigs had health
certificates and were in good health, requesting all staff to wear masks
and use personal protective equipment at work and stepping up the
cleaning and disinfection work to protect environmental hygiene. We
proactively prepared for any potential issues and adjusted the measures
based on the latest situation. Such moves effectively ensured the health
and safety of our employees as well as our normal business operations.

The Group put emphasis on product quality as it is a reciprocal act to
reward consumers’ trust in our brands and products. Our other retail
stores operation, “fZ Chinese Arts and Crafts”, has established a
quality management department and “CAC (H.K.) Gems Laboratory Ltd.”
to assure the quality of its merchandise. In 2009, our gems laboratory
was accredited by The Hong Kong Laboratory Accreditation Scheme
(HOKLAS). It has also obtained the 1SO 17025 certificate from the Hong
Kong Accreditation Service and fulfilled the requirements set out in
ISO9001:2000 Quality Management Systems. The above accreditation
fully demonstrates our commitment to quality assurance.
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Customer Satisfaction

Customer satisfaction is paramount for every retail business that hopes
to retain customers and inspire loyalty. Our investment property and
purified water operations conducted customer satisfaction surveys
each year in order to take stock of their strengths and weaknesses.
Our supermarket and other retail stores operations in Hong Kong also
participated in the annual “Mystery Shoppers Program” organized by
the Hong Kong Retail Management Association. “/fHZ Chinese Arts and
Crafts” has been named the leader in the department stores category
every year since 2005.

All of our operations apply stringent criteria and rules in selecting
suppliers to guarantee all raw materials and goods sourced from them
meet the required standards. We have also conducted regular assessment,
on-site inspection and evaluation to ensure the production process and
products meet our specified standards. For example, “*H= CR Care”
investigated the background and track records of its suppliers through
the Hong Kong Chinese Prepared Medicine Traders Association Limited
and Hong Kong Health Food Association. It has also strengthened the
monitoring of the text on the packaging and promotional materials of
the suppliers’ products. Punitive measures have been implemented to
urge for improvements for those suppliers which failed in passing the
monitoring criteria.
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It is the firm belief of the Company that a good and solid corporate
governance framework is essential to the successful growth of the
Company and the enhancement of shareholder value. The Company
is committed to attaining and maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and adopts principles of corporate governance emphasising
a quality board, accountability to all stakeholders, open communication
and fair disclosure.

On 8 April 2005, the Company adopted the Corporate Governance
Practice Manual (“CG Manual”).
on 31 March 2009, incorporates almost all the Code Provisions of the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and includes
the implementation details for the Code Provisions and, where
appropriate, the Recommended Best Practices. The CG Manual can be
downloaded from our website and copies are available on request to the
Company Secretary.

The CG Manual which was revised

The Company has complied with all the Code Provisions in the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2009, with one deviation
from Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code as summarised below. The
Company has also exceeded the requirements under the Listing Rules
and the CG Code in various areas of its corporate governance practices.

In addition to meeting the requirements of the Listing Rules, the
inclusion of the Corporate Governance Report in this Annual Report is
intended to keep our shareholders abreast of the corporate governance
practices of the Company and their development throughout the
reporting year and to invite our shareholders’ views thereon.

The Board represents shareholders in managing the Company’s affairs.
The Directors recognise their responsibilities to enhance shareholder
value and to conduct themselves in accordance with their duty of care
and integrity.

The major issues which are brought before the Board for their decisions

include:

1. Direction of the operational strategies of the Group;

2. Setting the policies relating to key business and financial objectives
of the Company;

3. Monitoring the performance of the management;

4. Approval of material acquisitions, investments, divestments, disposal
of assets or any significant capital expenditure of the Group;
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5. Ensuring a prudent and effective internal control system;

6. Review of the financial performance and results of the Company; and

7. Recommendation to shareholders of the Company on final dividend
and the declaration of any interim dividends.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the accounts of each
financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period. Since
November 2002, to enable the shareholders to appraise the operations
and performance of the Group, the Group has been releasing quarterly
financial and operational review. The financial statements are prepared
and presented to enable a clear and balanced assessment of the financial
position of the Group. Regular management reports on the financial
position and prospects of each business unit of the Group are reviewed
by the Executive Committee to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the performance of the Company.

In the financial year ended 31 December 2009, and up to the date of

this Report, there were the following changes to the membership of

the Board:

(1) Mr. Chen Shulin resigned, and Mr. Chen Lang was appointed, as
Executive Director and Managing Director on 16 January 2009.

(2) Mr. Qiao Shibo was appointed as Executive Director on 6 March
2009.

(3) Mr. Song Lin resigned as Executive Director and Chairman, and Mr. Qiao
Shibo was appointed as Chairman on 30 April 2009.

(4) Mr. Kwong Man Him resigned, and Mr. Lai Ni Hium, was appointed, as
Executive Director and Deputy Managing Director on 30 June 2009.

(5) Mr. Wang Shuaiting resigned as Non-Executive Director on 3 September
2009.

(6) Mr. Lau Pak Shing resigned as Executive Director and Deputy Managing
Director on 1 March 2010.

As at the date of this Report, the Board comprises 14 Directors, including
the Chairman, one Managing Director, two Deputy Managing Directors,
four Non-Executive Directors and six Independent Non-Executive Directors.
The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 48 to
53 of this Annual Report and can also be found on our website. The
relationships (including financial, business, family or other material
or relevant relationships) if any, among members of the Board are
disclosed. There is no such relationship as between the Chairman and
the Managing Director.
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company has
received written confirmation from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors confirming his independence from the Company, and considers
all of the Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

The experience and views of our Independent Non-Executive Directors are
held in high regard and contribute to the effective direction of the Group.
The Company exceeded the minimum requirements under the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three Independent Non-
Executive Directors with six Independent Non-Executive Directors. Two
of our Independent Non-Executive Directors have appropriate accounting
qualifications, which also exceeds the requirement of the Listing Rules.
Throughout the year of 2009, the Company has maintained the proportion
of its Independent Non-Executive Directors to at least one third of the total
members of the Board.

The Company has put in place a tailored induction programme for its
newly appointed directors. Continuing development and information are
provided to the Directors to keep them abreast of the latest developments
involving the Group’s businesses and operations.

The structure, size and composition of the Board are reviewed from
time to time to ensure that the Board has a balanced composition of
skills and expertise appropriate for the requirements of the businesses
of the Company. Appointments are first considered by the Nomination
Committee. The recommendations of the Nomination Committee are then
put to the full Board for decision.

All Directors (including Executive and Non-Executive Directors) are not
appointed for a fixed term. The Board does not believe in any arbitrary
term of office and would like to retain sufficient flexibility to organise the
composition of the Board to serve the needs of the Group. All Directors
are subject to re-election by shareholders of the Company at the annual
general meeting following their appointment and at least every three years
on a rotation basis. The Articles of Association of the Company require
that one-third of the Directors (including Executive and Non-Executive
Directors) shall retire each year. The Directors who are required to retire
each year shall be those appointed by the Board during the year and
those who have been longest in office since their election or re-election.
A retiring Director is eligible for re-election.
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During the year of 2009, the positions of the Chairman and the Managing
Director were held separately. The role of Chairman was held by Mr. Song
Lin up to 30 April 2009 with Mr. Qiao Shibo serving as Chairman since 30
April 2009. Mr. Chen Shulin was the Managing Director up to 16 January
2009, and Mr. Chen Lang has been appointed as the Managing Director
since 16 January 2009. The segregation of duties of the Chairman and the
Managing Director ensures a clear distinction in the Chairman’s responsibility
to manage the Board and the Managing Director’s responsibility to manage
the Company’s business. The respective responsibilities of the Chairman
and the Managing Director are more fully set out in the CG Manual.

Mr. Qiao Shibo attended and was the chairman of the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 29 May 2009. In addition to the Chairman,
the Managing Director and either the chairman or at least one member of
the audit committee, compensation committee and nomination committee
attended the annual general meeting to ensure effective communication
with the shareholders of the Company.

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals to review the financial performance of the Group.
Between these regular meetings, the Board meets to discuss and consider
major issues (whether or not required by the Listing Rules) and also
on other occasions when bhoard decisions are required. With respect
to regular meetings of the Board, Directors usually receive at least 14
days prior written notice of the meeting and an agenda with supporting
Board papers no less than 3 days prior to the meeting. With respect to
other meetings called, Directors are given as much notice as is reasonable
and practicable in the circumstances. The Directors have full access to
information on the Group and independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary by the Directors.
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During 2009, 13 meetings (including meetings by way of circulation
of written resolutions) were held by the Board. The attendance of the
Directors at Board meetings and principal Board committee meetings held
in 2009 is set out in the table below:

4 BEZEZE® FWEEE® HNTEEY HKEEg REZEES
Board Audit Compensation  Executive Finance Nomination
R s w Committee  Committee Committee ~ Committee Committee
#HITEZE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
R Mr. Song Lin® 1 1 2
BHRELED  Mr. Qiao Shibo® 4 | 49 34
BREIMSEESD  Mr. Chen Shulin® 1
FBREASE4E®  Mr. Chen Lang® 4 | 5 | 1 6 34
FEREE Mr. Wang Qun 1 5 34
ZIFMREEY  Mr. Lau Pak Shing® 417 |1 7 36
B EHEE®  Mr. Kwong Man Him® 1] 3|1 3 21 3
RSLESLLED M. Lai Ni Hium® 2 | 3 3 15 1
F#H1TEE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BELE Mr. Jiang Wei 1
TEIFESAE®  Mr. Wang Shuaiting® 1
B Mr. Yan Biao 2 | 8w 1
/XL Mr Li Fuzuo 7 |1
MXERSTE  Mr DuWenmin 6 | 1
B IEFITESE INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
LML Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter 7 | 1 4 1
BARE%LE  Mr Houang Tai Ninh 8 | 1 4 1 5
ZR#EBL Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric 6 | 1 4 1 5
BREEE D Cheng Mo Chi 4 | 6 | 1 3 1
BREZ %% Mr Bernard Charnwut Chan | 3 | 3 | 1 3 4
BEIOMELE M Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon | 3®@| 769 1 1 5
ﬁiﬁﬁfﬁf’g oﬁfaﬁiigs held in 2009 = 4 : 7 . 5%
MHEE -
Notes :

R: EHIE:E Regular Meeting
S:  FFRIE5E Special Meeting
W:  ZERGEZ Written Resolutions

() AMELBRERTEEREIR  R-TTAFOA=TRER -

Mr. Song Lin resigned as Executive Director and Chairman with effect from 30 April 2009.

(@ BHREERZERVTESR R-TTAF=ARBER YR -_TTAFNA=+EREERER -

3)

(4)

(5)

)

@)

Mr. Qiao Shibo appointed as Executive Director with effect from 6 March 2009, and appointed as Chairman with effect from 30 April 2009.
BRI TER RERRLE RZTTAF AT BER .

Mr. Chen Shulin resigned as Executive Director and Managing Director with effect from 16 January 2009.
BREASEREERNTESREFTRLE RS NF— A+ BER -

Mr. Chen Lang appointed as Executive Director and Managing Director with effect from 16 January 2009.
ZIEREERIRTESLAIESEKE R 225 -A-B4EX-

Mr. Lau Pak Shing resigned as Executive Director and Deputy Managing Director with effect from 1 March 2010.
BXREEFTERTEERBEFELE  RoZTNEFRA=THER -

Mr. Kwong Man Him resigned as Executive Director and Deputy Managing Director with effect from 30 June 2009.
BUREREERPTEERIERELE  RoSTAFRA=ZTHER -

Mr. Lai Ni Hium appointed as Executive Director and Deputy Managing Director with effect from 30 June 2009.
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ERVELREBREFNTES R _TTAFAAZAER -

Mr. Wang Shuaiting resigned as Non-Executive Director with effect from 3 September 2009.

RBEARARERMAE 108K - EP—RGBB UL ENBFELARE -

At one of the board meetings, Mr. Qiao Shibo attended the meeting by way of telephone pursuant to Article 108 of the Company’s Articles of Association.
REANRERMANE 081K - AR —RSEBBLEUNBFELA2HE -

At one of the board meetings, Mr. Yan Biao attended the meeting by way of telephone pursuant to Article 108 of the Company’s Articles of Association.
BIEARARERMAF 108K EF—RGHFEMTLEUNBELALHA -

At one of the board meetings, Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon attended the meeting by way of telephone pursuant to Article 108 of the Company’s Articles of Association.
RBEADRERAAE1081F - ERZAGERMTLEUBFELASH -

At three of the board meetings, Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon attended the meeting by way of telephone pursuant to Article 108 of the Company’s Articles of Association.
ZEENFEIZATEEGRE - HRNAUGHRE AR HR—AUEBMRERHE ARG -

One of the Executive Committee resolutions was passed by way of written resolutions and six of the Executive Committee resolutions were passed by way of physical
meeting in 2009.

“ETNFEZUBEERRE - HP RASR T - ER=THANEMARRL A EBE -

Thirty-four of the Finance Committee resolutions were passed by way of written resolutions and two of the Finance Committee resolutions were passed by way of
physical meeting in 2009.

TERNFEZREZEERE - HPORAGSEET - BB —AUERER RSB -

One of the Nomination Committee resolutions was passed by way of written resolutions and four of the Nomination Committee resolutions were passed by way of

physical meeting in 2009.
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While the Board retains at all times full responsibility for guiding and
monitoring the Company, certain responsibilities of the Board are
delegated as follows:

(@) Committees — various committees have been established by the
Board to administer certain specified functions of the Company’s
affairs. The main committees include: the Executive Committee, the
Finance Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Compensation Committee. The terms of reference of the
Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Compensation Committee which set out, among other things,
the duties, functions and composition of these committees are set
out in the CG Manual and available on the Company’s website;

(b) Managing Director — the day-to-day management of the Company’s
business is delegated to the Managing Director who is accountable
to the Board; and

() Senior Management — certain responsibilities of corporate and
operating management are delegated to senior management of the
Company within the parameters as specified by the Board.

As at 31 December 2009, the Nomination Committee comprised four
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Houang Tai Ninh (chairman),
Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan and Mr. Siu Kwing Chue,
Gordon, and one Executive Director, Mr. Lai Ni Hium. The duties of the
Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board and to make recommendation after such review and to assess
the suitability and qualification of any proposed director candidate. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee are then put forward for
consideration and adoption, where appropriate, by the Board. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee which was revised on 31 March 2009
and set out its duties and procedures are available on the Company’s website.
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During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Nomination Committee

held five meetings. The work of the Nomination Committee included the

following recommendations to the Board:

— The resignation of Mr. Chen Shulin, and the appointment of Mr. Chen
Lang, as Executive Director and Managing Director.

- The appointment of Mr. Qiao Shibo as Executive Director.

— The resignation of Mr. Song Lin as Executive Director and Chairman, and
the appointment of Mr. Qiao Shibo as Chairman.

— The resignation of Mr. Kwong Man Him, and the appointment of Mr. Lai
Ni Hium, as Executive Director and Deputy Managing Director.

— The resignation of Mr. Wang Shuaiting as Non-Executive Director and
appointment of Mr. Hong Jie as Vice President of the Company.

As at 31 December 2009, the Compensation Committee comprised five
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter
(chairman), Mr. Houang Tai Ninh, Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, Dr. Cheng Mo
Chi and Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon, and one Executive Director, Mr. Lai
Ni Hium. The duties of the Compensation Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure of
remuneration of Directors and senior management, establishing a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policy on remuneration and
determining the specific remuneration packages for all directors and senior
management. The terms of reference of the Compensation Committee which
was revised on 31 March 2009 and set out its duties and procedures are
available on the Company’s website.

The remuneration of the Directors and senior executives is determined with
reference to the performance and responsibilities of the individual, the
performance of the Group, prevailing market conditions and remuneration
benchmarks from comparable companies. Directors and employees also
participate in bonus arrangements based on the performance of the Group
and the individual.

During the year under review, the Compensation Committee met once and

passed resolutions on matters including:

- Approval of the remuneration packages 2009 for Directors and senior
management of the Company.

As at 31 December 2009, the Audit Committee comprised five Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely, Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric (chairman), Dr. Chan
Po Fun, Peter, Mr. Houang Tai Ninh, Dr. Cheng Mo Chi and Mr. Bernard
Charnwut Chan. Two of its members have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise. No
member of this Committee is a member of the former or existing auditors
of the Company. The membership of the Audit Committee has exceeded
the Listing Rules requirement that the majority of its members must
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be independent and one of whom must have appropriate professional
qualification. The existing terms of reference of the Audit Committee which
was revised on 31 March 2009, are modeled on “A Guide for Effective Audit
Committee” issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and have also adopted the principles set out in the CG Code.

The duties of the Audit Committee include considering and making

recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and

removal of external auditors, review of the Company’s financial information

and oversight of the Company’s financial report system and internal control

procedures. During the year under review, the Audit Committee met on four

occasions. The work of the Audit Committee in 2009 included reviews of:

— the external auditors’ report to the Audit Committee in respect of 2008
audit;

- the 2008 annual report and annual results announcement;

- the external auditors’ internal control memorandum in respect of the 2008
audit;

- connected party transactions;

— the quarterly results for the three months ended 31 March 2009 and the
related results announcement;

- the 2009 interim report and interim results announcement;

— the quarterly results for the nine months ended 30 September 2009 and
the related results announcement;

— the quarterly reports of internal audit activities;

— the 2009 internal audit review;

- the staffing and resources of the Group’s Internal Audit Department; and

- the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions.

During the reporting year, the Audit Committee met with the external
auditors on four occasions .

The Audit Committee has considered the performance and independence of
the external auditors of the Company. The Audit Committee concludes that
the independence of the external auditors of the Company has not been
compromised by non-audit services performed for the Group. During the
year under review, audit fees paid and payable to the Company’s external
auditors amount to approximately HK$25 million (2008: approximately
HK$26 million); fees related to non-audit services paid and payable amount
to approximately HK$2 million (2008: approximately HK$1.1 million).

The interests held by the Directors in the Company’s securities as at 31
December 2009 are disclosed in the Directors’ Report on pages 83 to 89 of
this Annual Report. On 8 April 2005, the Company has adopted a Code of
Ethics and Securities Transactions (“Code of Ethics”) which incorporates the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Code of Ethics has
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been amended, approved and reconfirmed by the Board of Directors of the
Company on 6 April 2006, 4 April 2007, 31 March 2008 and further revised
on 31 March 2009 respectively. The prohibitions on securities dealing
and disclosure requirements in the Code of Ethics also apply to specified
individuals who include the Group’s senior management and persons who
are privy to price sensitive information of the Group. The Code of Ethics
is on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the
Model Code. Having made specific enquiry with the Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2009.

The Board assumes overall responsibility to establish and maintain sound
systems in risk management, internal control and governance to ensure the
effective and efficient accomplishment of corporate goals and objectives,
safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’ interests as well as ensure
the reliability of financial and corporate reporting.

The Group adopts the control framework consistent with the frameworks
recommended by the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the
Treadway Commission in the United States and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants as the standards in establishing risk
management and control systems among our Group companies. The Group’s
internal control system includes five key elements, namely the existence
of an effective control environment, risk management, communication
and information system, cost effective control activities and monitoring
mechanism.

Every business unit is required to identify and assess the risks and impact
on the respective business unit at least once every year. The executive
management team of each business unit is accountable for the conduct
and performance of each operation in the business unit within the agreed
strategies and similarly the management of each operation is accountable
for its conduct and performance. Policies and procedures are designed
for safeguarding corporate assets, maintaining proper accounting records
and ensuring transactions are executed in accordance with management
authorisation. Monthly management reports on the financial results and key
operation indicators are reviewed by the Executive Committee of the Board.
Regular meetings are held with the executive management team of each
business unit to review the actual performance against budget.

Our Internal Audit Department, reporting to the Audit Committee and
Managing Director respectively, is responsible for assessing the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, formulating an impartial opinion
on the effectiveness and efficiency of the systems, and reporting its findings
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to the Executive Committee and the Audit Committee. Follow-up audits will
be conducted in due course to ensure that audit recommendations are being
properly implemented. The Internal Audit Department conducts independent
reviews on the Group’s risk management and internal control systems on an
on-going basis.

Depending on the nature of businesses and risk exposure of individual
business units, the scope of work performed by the internal audit function
covers all material controls including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions.

Results of internal audit activities are reported to the Audit Committee
at least once every quarter and the corrective actions are taken by the
relevant business units. The Board conducts regular reviews of the Group’s
internal control system through the Internal Audit Department and the
Audit Committee.

Based on the assessment for the year ended 31 December 2009, the Board
and the Audit Committee believe that the system of internal control provides
reasonable assurance that the Group’s assets are safeguarded and there is
no significant area of concerns that may affect shareholders.

The Company’s Articles of Association was revised on 29 May 2009 by
special resolution in the 2009 Annual General Meeting in order to ensure
compliance with amendments to the Listing Rules, in particular, relevant CG
Code provisions in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and amendments to the
Companies Ordinance, and to bring the Articles of Association up to date
and in line with the current practice in Hong Kong.

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular communication
and fair disclosure of information to its shareholders. Accurate and fair
disclosure is necessary for shareholders to form their own judgment on the
operation and performance of the Group.

Based on this policy, legitimate questions arising from generally disclosed
information deserves a reasonable reply. The Strategic Planning and
Investor Relations Department is responsible for managing investor relations
and will respond to such shareholders’ and analysts’ enquiries.

The Company’s website provides shareholders, investors, existing and
prospective partners and counterparties with information on the Company’s
corporate governance practices. Copies of such information can be obtained
from the Company Secretary upon written request.

For and on behalf of the Board
CHEN LANG

Managing Director
Hong Kong, 25 March 2010
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The directors have pleasure in presenting to the shareholders their report
and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in retail, beverage, food processing and
distribution and property investment businesses. The principal activities
of the Company are investment holding and property investment. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are shown on pages
183 to 189. An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
business segments is set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

GROUP PROFIT
The consolidated profit and loss account is set out on page 103 and
shows the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2009.

DIVIDENDS
An interim dividend of HK$0.14 per ordinary share amounting to HK$335
million was paid to shareholders during the year.

The directors recommend a final dividend of HK$0.35 per ordinary share
amounting to approximately HK$839 million payable on or about 15 June
2010 to all persons registered as holders of ordinary shares on 24 May
2010.

FIXED ASSETS
Movements in the fixed assets of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

PROPERTIES
A schedule of the principal properties of the Group is set out on pages
190 to 193.

SHARE CAPITAL
Movements in the share capital during the year are set out in note 32 to
the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
note 33 to the financial statements respectively.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately HK$13 million.

DIRECTORS
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were as follows:

Chairman

Mr. Qiao Shibo (Appointed as Executive Director on 6 March 2009
and as Chairman on 30 April 2009)

Mr. Song Lin (Resigned on 30 April 2009)

Managing Director
Mr. Chen Lang
Mr. Chen Shulin

(Appointed on 16 January 2009)
(Resigned on 16 January 2009)

Deputy Managing Directors
Mr. Wang Qun

Mr. Lai Ni Hium

Mr. Lau Pak Shing

Mr. Kwong Man Him

(Appointed on 30 June 2009)
(Resigned on 1 March 2010)
(Resigned on 30 June 2009)

Directors
Mr. Jiang Wei
(Non-executive Director)
Mr. Yan Biao
(Non-executive Director)
Mr. Li Fuzuo
(Non-executive Director)
Mr. Du Wenmin
(Non-executive Director)
Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter
(Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Houang Tai Ninh
(Independent Non-executive Director)
Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric
(Independent Non-executive Director)
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi
(Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan
(Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon
(Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Wang Shuaiting (Resigned on 3 September 2009)
(Non-executive Director)
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DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with Article 110 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Houang Tai Ninh, Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Mr.
Bernard Charnwut Chan and Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon shall retire by
rotation and are eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Article 115 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Lai Ni Hium shall retire and is eligible for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its subsidiaries, its
holding companies or its fellow subsidiaries were a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Biographical details of directors and senior management are set out on
pages 48 to 55.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

During the year, the Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of promoting additional commitment and dedication to the
objectives of the Company by the participants (“New Scheme”). In
addition, certain outstanding share options were still held under a share
option scheme which subsisted until 31 January 2002 and was terminated
on 31 January 2002 (“Old Scheme”).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The New Scheme was approved by the shareholders in general meeting
on 31 January 2002, which was subsequently amended on 20 August
2004 by an ordinary resolution passed by shareholders, and shall expire
on 31 January 2012. The board of directors of the Company may grant
options to eligible participants including any executive or non-executive
directors of the Group (or persons proposed to be appointed as such),
any discretionary object of a discretionary trust established by any
employee, executive or non-executive directors of the Group, any
executives and employees, consultants, professional and other advisors
to the Group (or persons proposed to be appointed as such), chief
executive, substantial shareholder of the Company, associated companies
of the Group, associates of directors, chief executive and substantial
shareholder of the Company, and employees of substantial shareholder
and where a substantial shareholder is a company, employees of
subsidiaries of a substantial shareholder.

Subject to the requirements of The Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”), the exercise price shall be such price determined by
the board of directors at its absolute discretion. The maximum
entitlement of each participant under the schemes (including options to
be granted to the directors, chief executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or any of their respective associates) is equivalent to the
maximum limit permitted under the Listing Rules. The scheme mandate
limit under the New Scheme was refreshed and renewed by an ordinary
resolution passed by the shareholders at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 20 August 2004 which enabled the grant of further
share options to subscribe up to 210,462,321 shares representing 10% of
the shares in issue as at the said date. As at the date of this report, the
total number of shares available for issue upon exercise of all options
which may be granted under the New Scheme is 159,876,321 shares
which represent 6.7% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Share options are generally either fully vested or are vested over a
period of time up to a maximum of four years after the acceptance of a
grant and exercisable within a period of 10 years immediately after the
date of grant.

Save as disclosed below, no share options have been granted (or
granted in excess of individual limit), exercised, cancelled or lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the relevant share option scheme during
the year in relation to each of the directors or their respective associates,
employees, and other participants of the share option schemes.

EMAIRABMAT China Resources Enterprise, Limited © Annual Report 2009 3% 79
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R AESH &l (m) SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(FF) EBHBEA () Directors or their associates
NR-EBEENF+_A=1t—BEAFEH As at 31 December 2009 and during the year, the following
M- NI ESHERBRATNEED directors had interests in respect of options to subscribe for shares
AIREROAOEREREZ - BIEZIER granted under the New Scheme of the Company. Share options
g EEFANERENT held by directors granted under such scheme are set out below:

80

#ETRZ
.
iR Wi
Number of share optionst AL
P Rip B
RZZTNEF BT
RZETNF +-A Price of
ﬁﬁfg —A—H RAFE REAEE WWE b’@$¢f§' =t+—H  Companys
BB WARITE Bl 17f# i EN W AR THE shares for
Exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed Outstanding options
BEMA R BH Price at during during during during at exercised?
Name of director Date of grant HK$ 1/1/2009 the year the year the year the year 31/12/2009 HK$
BYEHITES
Independent Non-executive
Directors
3
=)
Chan Po Fun, Peter 02/06/2004 9.55 200,000 - - - - 200,000 -
BEAE
Houang Tai Ninh 02/06/2004 9.55 200,000 - - - - 200,000 -
EFRHE
Li Ka Cheung, Eric 02/06/2004 9.55 200,000 - - - - 200,000 -
&3t Total 600,000 - - - - 600,000
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BRRERTE e SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
(2) EERHEMBEE (b) Employees and other participants
METBIERMITESIN KRR ZFIBEES Except for all non-executive directors, all directors of the Company
HAREBZREE  BEEAZERER are employees of the Group and details of share options held by
BN EX(R)RIE - M TEAEEE them are disclosed in paragraph (a) above. Summary of share
B(TEEARRES ) NEMBEER T options granted to employees of the Group (other than directors of
ERAERIBLN o the Company) and other participants are set out below.
N EE(TEHFLALATESE) () Employees (other than directors of the Company)
BMEITE
pd e
AR A
Number of share options: HX@E#&Y
BT
RZZETNEF RZZETNE Price of
B —A—H RARFE AAREE RAREE WAEE +ZA=+—H Company’s
BT WARTTHE Bl (615 Bail R AT shares
Exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed Outstanding for options
HHBH Price at during during during during at exercised:
Date of grant HK$ 1/1/2009 the year the year the year the year 31/12/2009 HK$
Bt
Old Schemes
20/06/2000 7.19 248,000 - 20,000 - - 228,000 11.600
21/11/2000 7.08 461,000 - 111,000 - - 350,000 22.728
/N5t Sub-total 709,000 - 131,000 - - 578,000
Hatal
New Scheme
07/02/2002 7.17 284,000 - 100,000 - - 184,000 15.860
19/04/2002 7.40 244,000 - - - - 244,000 -
02/08/2002 8.32 250,000 - 100,000 - - 150,000 19.560
14/04/2003 6.29 4,000 - - - - 4,000 -
01/08/2003 7.10 30,000 - - - - 30,000 -
08/10/2003 8.90 122,000 - 50,000 - - 72,000 25.100
14/01/2004 9.72 3,628,000 - 1,574,000 - 28,000 2,026,000 21.393
20/04/2004 9.89 840,000 - - - - 840,000 -
25/05/2004 9.15 1,098,000 - 320,000 - - 778,000 20.779
22/07/2004 9.80 110,000 - 110,000 - - - 12.760
04/10/2004 10.35 8,788,000 - 4,098,000 - - 4,690,000 25.474
17/01/2005 11.40 40,000 - - - - 40,000 -
22/07/2005 12.50 250,000 - - - - 250,000 -
/Nt Sub-total 15,688,000 - 6,352,000 - 28,000 9,308,000
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BRETE ()

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

() EERHEMSEEH) (b) Employees and other participants (continued)
(i) HmzgEE (i) Other Participants
HEITE
10
INT
e L LR
Number of share options: HX@E&:
BT
NZZTTHE R-TTNE Price of
B —A—H WAFE RAREE RAREE WAFE +=ZA=+—8 Company’s
BT HARITHE il 1 B! N RARTTHE shares
Exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed Outstanding for options
A Price at during during during during at exercised?
Date of grant HK$ 1/1/2009 the year the year the year the year 31/12/2009 HK$
it
New Scheme
05/03/2002 7.35 605,000 - 174,000 - - 431,000 16.470
/Nt Sub-total 605,000 - 174,000 - - 431,000
B & - Notes:
1. MEARRE SN B R ARAEFT Y K 2 AN A RIAERANR (S © 1. Number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares in the
Company covered by the share options.
2. RFERNBITEBREMBEE 2 AARRNDERS - B 2. The price of the Company’s shares disclosed for the options exercised during
SR RRETTE B EIAT - RO R FTATIR 2 YT the year is the weighted average of the closing prices quoted on the Stock
B2 ETFHE - Exchange immediately before the date of exercise of options.
HERTEREMRANSTBER BN MBS The accounting policy adopted for the share options granted is set out in note
BizE =R - 2S to the financial statements.
3. EEER_ZEE_F—A=F+—HFULL B 3. The Old Scheme was terminated on 31 January 2002, and therefore no options
BEATE - AR RIBEEAR R E AT B (R REARAE o have been granted under the Old Scheme since then.
4. Pl B B 2 AR 2 B A R B B T 4. All the share options granted as mentioned above will expire on the date falling
F2HER  MEREEREZRERBE 17T - ten years from the date of grant and consideration for each grant is HK$1.00.
5. A 7 (O] R A 30 R H B AR - SRR AR LT 5. As no share options were granted during the year under review, no price
EA - disclosure is applicable.
6. B — AR AN 2 3 TR E IR LRI A & 6. Share options are generally either fully vested or are vested over a period of

FAME 2 BRART - I RERH 2 A L5 T
e AOATEE -

time up to a maximum of four years after the acceptance of a grant and
exercisable within a period of not more than 10 years immediately after the date
of grant.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2009, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations,
within the meaning of Part XV of The Securities and Futures Ordinance,
Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (“SFO”), which have been notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of SFO, including interests and short positions which the
directors and chief executive of the Company are taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of SFO, or which are required to be and are
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to section 352 of
SFO or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules were
as follows:

() RERQAFEBRITEEREEEROTES (@ Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of the
HORE R Company

HinkgEs

ERg

=0 =) AR EE « Aggregate

=y Long position/ L ] Number of percentage of

Name of Director Short position Number of shares underlying sharest interest? (%)

EHOF e 1,120,000 - 0.05
Qiao Shibo Long position

BREA 5= 800,000 - 0.03
Chen Lang Long position

B e 60,000 - 0.01
Wang Qun Long position

=129 wHE 160,000 - 0.01
Lau Pak Shing Long position

#E e 240,000 - 0.01
Jiang Wei Long position

2 B 5= 500,000 - 0.02
Yan Biao Long position

MXR A 100,000 - 0.01
Du Wenmin Long position

PeR 3 25 e 336,000 200,000 0.03
Chan Po Fun, Peter Long position

e 170,0003 - -
Long position

HEAE 5= - 200,000 0.01
Houang Tai Ninh Long position

s e - 200,000 0.01

Li Ka Cheung, Eric

Long position
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EEvESER )

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

() REQAFEBITEEREEBEROTES (@ Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of the
KRR (&) Company (continued)

FA5E Notes:

1. ¥ b (AT 8 | —&isf it B R H AR AT S 1. This refers to underlying shares of the Company covered by share options
RN TR 2 EERERENIE LT granted as detailed above under the section headed “Share Option Schemes",
BYRZBERALTETA © such options being unlisted physically settled equity derivatives.

2. SN AR D KRR () R Y aF B B EUE A A EIR 2. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares and
—TETAF+ A=+ HEETRALENE D underlying shares of the Company to the total issued share capital of the
Lt - Company as at 31 December 2009.

3. ZEEHRESE LS 88.25% CRITRAZA 3. Such interest is held by a company of which Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter is interested
AIFER © in 88.25% of its issued share capital.

4. FrHizE 3 BEATIREIN  AREAFEBEZHDHTS 4. Save as otherwise specified under note 3, interests disclosed hereunder are
EEUBRHEAAZHORHE - being held by each director in his capacity as beneficial owner.

(Z) RIEBEZECRITEERRBERG HE#E (b) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of
BHRER associated corporations
RIB > EFuEEHEEREEIE(EER As at the same date, certain directors had interests in the issued
(EERBEEMN)HNERITERBIRKRIE ordinary shares and underlying shares covered by options granted
BT 2 FTIR AT SR BB A1) 2 BR R A under the share option schemes of associated corporations (within
AL ZEERERSBNIELTU the meaning of SFO), such options being unlisted physically settled
EMRZRERALTET A - equity derivatives:

) R—EEEEE-ZEHEHERR ()  Interests in issued ordinary shares and options outstanding
AI([EHEM EBTEBRER under the share option schemes of an associated
BEEEMBERETE M AITEE corporation, China Resources Land Limited (“CR Land”):

[t 2t s -

BARTITIE Hih#ER

BEse e E Bkl

Number of BT Aggregate

WES ke s 4= share Exercise percentage

E5UA Long position/ Number of options Price HEHHE  of interests

Name of Director Short position shares  outstanding: HK$ Date of grant (%)

SR S5~ 700,000 - - - 0.01
Qiao Shibo Long position

2IEK e 250,000 - - - 0.01
Lau Pak Shing Long position

BE S5~ 892,000 - - - 0.02
Jiang Wei Long position

) [55=) 1,992,000 - - - 0.04
Yan Biao Long position

IEE e 1,000,000 - - - 0.02
Li Fuzuo Long position

HXR 55 790,000 250,000 1.230  01/06/2005> 0.02
Du Wenmin Long position



EEoRSERE )

(2) REBCEZEERITEBRREBERG P #
RS (e

Bt

1. BRER R EBREMS RN ERE MR RO
e

2 BERTSNSET  THRM-—TTN —TT
tCEE\R-EEAFAA-BE-T—EfF
A A=+— BRI « BHMAEREE T -

3. BERSRNEREBRN RAARRM RELE
HEMR -_ZTNAF+-A=+—BEBTRELE
B

4. EXFR R R R EEURSEAA LY
DFA o

(i) RIE-TEEEEE - BMRRER
BERABR(TEERR DERHTESR
P R AR 9 2 TR R SR A A 3 i R
TR R 2 et
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

(b) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of
associated corporations (continued)

Notes:

1. The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares of CR
Land covered by the share options.

2. Options are vested in four tranches and exercisable over a period from 1 June
2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009, respectively to 31 May 2015. Consideration for the
grant is HK$1.00.

3. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares and
underlying shares of CR Land to the total issued share capital of CR Land as at
31 December 2009.

4. All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his capacity as
beneficial owner.

(i) Interests in issued ordinary shares and options outstanding
under the share option schemes of an associated corporation,
China Resources Gas Group Limited (“CR Gas™):

W ARITIE HihigEa=s
SR TE(E ERi 4
Number of BT Aggregate
e e M&tn &1 B share Exercise percentage
B4R Long position/ Number of options Price B HHE  of interest?
Name of Director Short position shares  outstanding: HK$ Date of grant (%)
Bt e 400,000 - - - 0.03
Qiao Shibo Long position
IS e 51,000 - - - 0.01
Li Fuzuo Long position
MXE S 54,000 - - - 0.01
Du Wenmin Long position
BT Notes:
1. BRES R EBRER Y LN ERBRRAERN 1. The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares of CR
B o Gas covered by the share options.
2. BB ETS KR BRE RO RABER D @ EnE 2. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares and

ERRR -_ETAF+ - A=1+—BHEBTREE
BHOBANLL

3. EXFRBEz GRS AREFUERSRAEA LY
NFA e

underlying shares of CR Gas to the total issued share capital of CR Gas as at 31
December 2009.

3. All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his capacity as
beneficial owner.
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BEECESER) DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)
(Z) RIEBEZECRITEERRBERG P (b) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of
BHRER () associated corporations (continued)
(i) RE—EREEE - EBEENER (iii) Interests in issued ordinary shares and options outstanding
ARAR(EEENNEBEITLE under the share option schemes of an associated corporation,
f% AR EE T BB ARERT &I M R China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited

1T RGN 2 A (“CR Power”):
B AT HiGEE
EREse IEE Baotks
Number of BT Aggregate
(S} & B share Exercise percentage
BEEEH Long position/ Number of options Price BB of interest¢
Name of Director Short position shares  outstanding: HK$ Date of grant (%)
BitR e 888,0007 122,160 2.750 12/11/20032 0.03
Qiao Shibo Long position 203,600 3.919 18/03/20053
P A e - 305,4008 2.750 12/11/20032 0.01
Chen Lang Long position 152,7008 4.641 18/11/20054
203,6008 6.924 05/09/20065
T e - 509,000 2.750 12/11/20032 0.01
Wang Qun Long position
21/ HaE 101,800 - - - 0.01
Lau Pak Shing Long position
BE e 840,000 203,600 2.750 12/11/20032 0.03
Jiang Wei Long position 366,480 3.919 18/03/20053
2 B S~ - 244,320 2.750 12/11/20032 0.01
Yan Biao Long position 325,760 3.919 18/03/20053
S [SS=¥ 741,780 61,080 3.919 18/03/20053 0.02
Li Fuzuo Long position
MXR e 297,000 183,240 2.750 12/11/20032 0.01
Du Wenmin Long position
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)
(b) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of
associated corporations (continued)

Notes:

1. The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares of CR
Power covered by the share options.

2. Options are vested in 5 tranches of 20% each on each anniversary of the date

of grant commencing from the first anniversary of the date of grant. All options
expire on 6 October 2013. Consideration for each of the grants mentioned above
is HK$1.00.

3. Options are vested in 5 tranches of 20% each on each anniversary of the date
of grant commencing from the first anniversary of the date of grant. All options
expire on 18 March 2015. Consideration for each of the grants mentioned above
is HK$1.00.

4. Options are vested in 5 tranches of 20% each on each anniversary of the date
of grant commencing from the first anniversary of the date of grant. All options
expire on 18 November 2015. Consideration for each of the grants mentioned
above is HK$1.00.

5. Options are vested in 5 tranches of 20% each on each anniversary of the date
of grant commencing from the first anniversary of the date of grant. All options
expire on 5 September 2016. Consideration for each of the grants mentioned
above is HK$1.00.

6. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares and
underlying shares of CR Power to the total issued share capital of CR Power as
at 31 December 2009.

7. Mr. Qiao Shibo was deemed to be interested in 30,000 shares through interests
of his spouse.

8. Mr. Chen Lang was deemed to be interested in 661,700 underlying shares
through interests of his spouse.

9. Save as otherwise specified under notes 7 and 8, all interests disclosed above
are being held by each director in his capacity as beneficial owner.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)
(b) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of
associated corporations (continued)

(iv) Interests in issued ordinary shares and options outstanding
under the share option schemes of an associated
corporation, China Resources Microelectronics Limited
(“CR Microelectronics”):

B ARTTE HinwgEs
EhREsE B Ebalsd
Number of BT Aggregate
Sy} & B share Exercise percentage
E e Long position/ Number of options Price BH B of interest?
Name of Director Short position shares  outstanding: HK$ Date of grant (%)
PR A HE 5,000,000 - - - 0.06
Chen Lang Long position
Eregi:d e 14,650,605 - - - 0.17
Lai Ni Hium Long position
& 5] 537,614 - - - 0.01
Jiang Wei Long position
IErE e 918,000 - - - 0.01
Li Fuzuo Long position
MXR e 1,458,000 - - - 0.02
Du Wenmin Long position
BIRE - Notes:
1. fE RS B IR IRIEFT S R E B E FEER D 1. The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares of CR
4E - Microelectronics covered by the share options.
2. B A AT R E B E RS R B EUS 2. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares and

EBREFR_EENAF T A=+ —HZEB#T
BALENBEDLL -

EXABBE RS RS EEAESHEEAZS
DFA o

underlying shares of CR Microelectronics to the total issued share capital of CR
Microelectronics as at 31 December 2009.

3. All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his capacity as
beneficial owner.
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BEEC R SER ) DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)
(Z) RIEBEZECRITEERRBERG P (b) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of
BHRER () associated corporations (continued)
() IRIE—EAEBEE - = HKRIER (v) Interests in issued ordinary shares and options outstanding
BREAR(EENKE DB BEITE® under the share option schemes of an associated
% B AR 45 22 R 7K TE BE AR ME 5T 81 M R corporation, China Resources Cement Holdings Limited
1T RGN 2 A (“CR Cement”):
B ARITE HinkgEs
ERA TE(E ANtk
Number of BT Aggregate
0E/KE 4= share Exercise percentage
EE4A Long position/ Number of options Price g =p-12 of interest?
Name of Director Short position shares  outstanding: HK$ Date of grant (%)
25K LSy 300,000 - - - 0.01
Lau Pak Shing Long position
BT Notes:

1. BB R EBRER Y M ERIOREER N 1. The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares of CR
1ag o Cement covered by the share options.

2. R B TS KR RKORR ) RABER M B EnEE 2. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares and
HRKERZZENFT_A=+—B2ZEBEHITRAE underlying shares of CR Cement to the total issued share capital of CR Cement as
BEHBEDL at 31 December 2009.

3. EXRE AR EREEAEREEAZH 3. The interests disclosed above is being held by Mr. Lau Pak Shing in his capacity
[ESTEI as beneficial owner.

EMAIRABMAT China Resources Enterprise, Limited © Annual Report 2009 3% 89
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SHAREHOLDERS WITH NOTIFIABLE INTERESTS
As at 31 December 2009, other than the interests and short positions as

disclosed above, the following persons have interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as they fall to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of SFO or
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company:

R RE
Long position/

FAESTRER
AN EE

Number of
shares in which
the interested
party is deemed

BIREADL
Percentage of
shareholding

FaEER T AHE Name of interested party Short position to have interests (%)
B FC NG| China Resources National S5 1,232,764,380 51.46
(T#M4 A7) 1)(MtzT1)  Corporation (“CRNC”) (Note 1) Long position
=B (AR AT (KfFE1) China Resources Co., Limited e 1,232,764,380 51.46
(Note 1) Long position
CRC Bluesky Limited CRC Bluesky Limited (Note 1) [SS=¥ 1,232,764,380 51.46
(BfaE2) Long position
EH(EE)BRAR China Resources (Holdings) iE 1,232,764,380 51.46
(M REE D (M) Company Limited (“CRH”) (Note 1) Long position
HZIREBERE AT (HzE1) Globe Fame Investments Limited Ta 1,232,764,380 51.46
(Note 1) Long position
J. P. Morgan Chase & Co. ). P. Morgan Chase & Co. (Note 2) & 141,876,026 5.92
(M3t 2) Long position
Genesis Asset Managers, Genesis Asset Managers, LLP HE 121,675,645 5.08
LLP(P5E3) (Note 3) Long position
Ff5E Notes:
1 HEEREERATRERREENZENERFIA 1 Globe Fame Investments Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRH, held the

ERMEAZSNEE - EHEER CRC Bluesky
Limited #) % & fff & 72 7] » i CRC Bluesky Limited
AEBRRGARARZEREGHAR - MERHRG

BRARRIAFEHARFIFE 99.98% ##a © FEL

FEMEEE - CRC Bluesky Limited » FEEBRMNHBIRE A
AR E BB N BNAR BERNOIEE AR

2. BIE (BHFLBAEKRD) EXVHBE-_RE=HF
MEMARABEBENERBER uiﬁﬂxﬁﬁﬂ J.P.
Morgan Chase & Co. M H BE# sk EH A 100% 1%
HliE BT E D EE ¢

shares in the capacity of beneficial owner. CRH is a 100% subsidiary of CRC
Bluesky Limited, which is in turn owned as to 100% by China Resources Co.,
Limited, which is in turn held as to 99.98% by CRNC. So, CRH, CRC Bluesky
Limited, China Resources Co., Limited and CRNC are deemed to have corporate
interest in the shares.

2. According to the information disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of SFO, these shares were held by J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. and
corporations controlled directly or indirectly as to 100% by it in the respective
following capacity:

i1
Number of shares
e 9
1 Capacity Long position Short position
E=EAA Beneficial owner 1,954,745 -
B Investment manager 76,208,000 -
ARG Approved lending agent 63,713,281 -
3. Genesis Asset Managers, LLP SIS & 432 510 #HFH 3. Genesis Asset Managers, LLP held the shares in the capacity of investment

Bt7 o

manager.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS ON CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER
According to certain loan agreements, CRH is required to remain as a
beneficial owner of at least 35% of the issued share capital of the
Company or remain as a single largest shareholder (whether directly or
indirectly through its subsidiaries) of the Company. As at 31 December
2009, the aggregate amount of the facilities subject to such obligation
were HK$9.05 billion. Such facilities will expire from May 2011 to March
2013.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1. On 13 April 2009, FEHEIEEE (PEH) HEHBR2AA (China
Resources Snow Breweries (China) Investment Co., Ltd.) (“CRSBI”),
an indirect 51% owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement with JB5HEETER (Shenyang Shi Niang Jiu Factory)
(“Shenyang Niang Jiu”), the holder of 10% equity interest in
EZIEEE (GBFS) BT (China Resources Snow Breweries
(Shenyang) Co., Ltd.) (“CR Snow Shenyang”), for the acquisition of
its 10% equity interest in CR Snow Shenyang at a cash
consideration of RMB7o million. Upon completion, CR Snow
Shenyang will be wholly-owned by CRSBI. The acquisition is
believed to be instrumental to the expansion and consolidation of
the production facilities of, and the Group’s consolidation and
enhancement of ownership and control in, the Shenyang brewery
operation. Shenyang Niang Jiu is a connected person of the
Company by virtue of its being a substantial shareholder of CR
Snow Shenyang and therefore, the acquisition of 10% equity
interest in CR Snow Shenyang by CRSBI constituted a connected
transaction of the Company.

2. On 15 July 2009, CRSBI entered into an agreement with & 0 E%Z
TG APMR A A (Yingkou Guangfeng Heng Beverage Co., Ltd.)
(“Yingkou Guangfeng Heng”), the holder of 20% equity interest in
SRS A BT AR AT (Shenyang Huarunchuangye Beer Co.,
Ltd.) (“CR Shenyang Brewery”), for the acquisition of its 20%
equity interest in CR Shenyang Brewery at a cash consideration of
RMB48 million. Upon completion, CR Shenyang Brewery will be
wholly-owned by CRSBI. The acquisition is believed to be
instrumental to the consolidation of the production facilities of,
and the Group’s consolidation and enhancement of ownership and
control in, the Shenyang brewery operation. Yingkou Guangfeng
Heng is a connected person of the Company by virtue of its being
a substantial shareholder of CR Shenyang Brewery and therefore,
the acquisition of 20% equity interest in CR Shenyang Brewery by
CRSBI constituted a connected transaction of the Company.

E£MAIXABMAT China Resources Enterprise, Limited © Annual Report 2009 3§ g1
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

On 19 October 2009, EHEZRABR A7 (China Resources
Vanguard Co., Ltd.) (“CR Vanguard”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into an agreement with FZIIMEERES
[R /A 7] (Shenzhen City Shang Zhi Investment Co., Ltd.) (“Shenzhen
Shang Zhi”) and an independent third party, the holders of 35%
and 65% equity interest respectively in #RNERIEHBEEAR
/2 A)(Zhuzhou Shen Guo Tou Commercial Property Co., Ltd.)
(“Zhuzhou Shen Guo Tou”), for the acquisition of their respective
equity interest in Zhuzhou Shen Guo Tou at a total cash
consideration of RMB46,477,000. In addition, CR Vanguard has
agreed to repay certain designated liabilities of Zhuzhou Shen Guo
Tou in the sum of RMB7,183,000, which included an aggregate sum
of about RMB6,698,000 owing to Shenzhen Shang Zhi and other
associates of China Resources Co., Limited. Upon completion,
Zhuzhou Shen Guo Tou will be wholly-owned by CR Vanguard. The
principal asset of Zhuzhou Shen Guo Tou is a parcel of commercial/
residential land located at Zhuzhou City of Hunan Province in the
Chinese Mainland. The acquisition is consistent with the Group’s
strategy to expand its supermarket operation into new markets
where one of the targeted areas under study includes Hunan
Province. Shenzhen Shang Zhi is a connected person of the
Company by virtue of its being an associate of China Resources
Co., Limited which is the intermediate holding company of the
Company. Therefore, the acquisition of equity interest in Zhuzhou
Shen Guo Tou by CR Vanguard from Shenzhen Shang Zhi
constituted a connected transaction of the Company.

On 29 October 2009, the Company entered into an asset swap
agreement with CRH which involved a series of transactions to
enable the Group to transfer certain of its non-core businesses,
being its entire textile division and minority interests in two
container terminal operations to CRH and its subsidiaries plus the
payment of a cash consideration of HK$30 million, in exchange for
a hypermarket chain operating in northern, north-western, north-
eastern and central China and a brewery in Shandong Province
from CRH and its subsidiaries. Such asset swap has expanded CRE
Group’s supermarket and brewery businesses and simultaneously
streamline its existing operations through the disposals of its non-
core textile division and minority investments in container terminal
operations. CRH is a connected person of the Company by virtue of
its being a controlling shareholder of the Company and therefore,
the asset swap transaction constituted a connected transaction of
the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

5.

On 23 December 2009, Ng Fung Hong Limited (“Ng Fung Hong”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into two
agreements with each of San Jiu Pharmaceutical (HK) Limited
(“Sanjiu Pharmaceutical”) and Yaan Sanjiu Pharmaceutical Co.,
Limited (“Yaan Sanjiu”) for the acquisition of an aggregate of 55%
equity interest in ER=-NBARMAERAF (Hanyuan Sanjiu
Lihong Food Co., Limited) (“Hanyuan Sanjiu Lihong”) at a cash
consideration of RMB58 million. Ng Fung Hong’s development
strategy is to focus on meat, assorted foodstuff and seafood
distribution and such strategy includes acquiring distribution
businesses that have regional specialty food products of high
quality and well-known brands in certain districts. Hence, the
acquisition has provided Ng Fung Hong with a good opportunity to
expand its assorted food business in the Chinese Mainland. Sanjiu
Pharmaceutical and Yaan Sanjiu are both subsidiaries of Sanjiu
Medical & Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd, which is listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange and is in turn a subsidiary of CRH. As such, Sanjiu
Pharmaceutical and Yaan Sanjiu are connected persons of the
Company and the acquisition constitutes connected transactions of
the Company under the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Group conducted certain transactions with
connected persons which constituted “continuing connected
transactions” under the Listing Rules. Details of those continuing
connected transactions which are subject to the reporting
requirements under Rule 14A.46 of the Listing Rules are
summarized as follows:

(@ Facilities management agreement and godown management
agreement
On 28 June 2006 and 26 June 2009, China Resources
Logistics (Yuen Fat Wharf & Godown) Limited, formerly
known as Yuen Fat Wharf & Godown Company Limited
(“Yuen Fat”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
renewed facilities management agreements with CRH, the
controlling shareholder of the Company, for the provision of
management services by Yuen Fat on the port premises and
facilities developed on a site owned by CRH in Kowloon.
Under the two agreements, Yuen Fat had paid CRH a monthly
fee of HK$1 million and HK$o0.7 million respectively in
consideration for the right to keep, as the service fee payable
by CRH to Yuen Fat for that relevant month, all cargo
handling fees, service charges and other payments collected
by Yuen Fat at its own expenses from independent third
parties. The two agreements were for a term of 3 years
commencing on 1 July 2006 and 1 July 2009 respectively.

ZEMAIZAER DA China Resources Enterprise, Limited © Annual Report 2009 F 3k
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

@

Facilities management agreement and godown management
agreement (continued)

On 28 June 2006 and 26 June 2009, Yuen Fat also renewed
godown management agreements with Dragon Rider
Development Limited (“DRDL”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
CRH, for the management, by Yuen Fat, of a godown owned
by DRDL in Kowloon. Under the two agreements, Yuen Fat
had paid DRDL a monthly fee of HK$2 million and HK$2
million respectively in consideration for the right to keep, as
the service fee payable by DRDL to Yuen Fat for that relevant
month, all license fees and other payments collected by Yuen
Fat at its own expenses from independent third parties.
These two agreements have the same term as the above
facilities management agreement. The above facilities
management agreements and godown management
agreements are vital to the operation of Yuen Fat.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the aggregate receipt
of service fees payable by CRH and DRDL to Yuen Fat
amounted to HK$173,786,000 while the aggregate payment
of monthly fees by Yuen Fat to CRH and DRDL amounted to
HK$34,200,000.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)
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Foodstuff agreements

On 18 December 2007, Ng Fung Hong Limited (“Ng Fung
Hong”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the foodstuff agreements for a term of three years
ending on 31 December 2010 with each of the connected
persons below in relation to the sale and/or purchase of
foodstuff products with these parties. Under the foodstuff
agreements, Ng Fung Hong and each of these connected
persons agreed that in the event that Ng Fung Hong and any
of its subsidiaries (“Ng Fung Hong Group™) and any of these
connected persons or any of their associates entered into a
foodstuff transaction, such transaction would be conducted
on normal commercial terms. The prices paid or received by
any member of Ng Fung Hong Group to or from the above
parties or their associates would be either at market prices
or at prices no less favorable to Ng Fung Hong Group than
those available to or from independent third parties. On 23
April and 22 May 2009, Ng Fung Hong also entered into the
foodstuff agreements for a term commencing from the date
of the agreement to 31 December 2011 with each of the
connected persons below in relation to the sale and/or
purchase of foodstuff products with these parties. Under the
foodstuff agreements, Ng Fung Hong and each of these
connected persons agreed that in the event that Ng Fung
Hong Group and any of these connected persons or any of
their associates entered into a foodstuff transaction, such
transaction would be conducted on normal commercial terms.
The prices of the transactions will be either at market prices
or (if such prices are not available in the market, or if for any
special reasons, the parties agreed that the market prices
cannot or should not be used) at such prices as the parties
shall fairly and reasonably agree on the basis that each of
them is dealing with the other party as an independent third
party. Details of these transactions for the year ended 31
December 2009 are summarized below. The above foodstuff
agreements will enable Ng Fung Hong Group to have better
control over the quality of the foodstuff products purchased
or sufficient demand for the foodstuff produced.
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BEXRS @) CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
b)) EBRBEE) (b) Foodstuff agreements (continued)
HE-ZTTNEF
+ZA=+—H1t
FENRSEH
Amount of
transactions
B AT ELER T HHE for the year ended
Connected person Relationship Nature of transactions 31 December 2009
(B¥T)
(HK$)
BHE_Z—ZTF+_A=T—HIE=F0RMHH
Foodstuff agreements for a term of three years ending on 31 December 2010:
PREERAERAT FHAERET—AMEA T 20% =AY BERM 57,041,000
Ceroilfood Development o) IN Purchase of foodstuff
Company Limited An associate of a 20% shareholder of
a subsidiary of Ng Fung Hong
FEIKEB AT BHALIT—EMB AT 40% ERME HEARSR 221,411,000
China National Fisheries Corp. A 49% shareholder of a subsidiary of Sale of foodstuff
Ng Fung Hong
WEAEE T ——F+_A=+—BIHWERRE
Foodstuff agreements for a term commencing from the date of the agreement to 31 December 2011:
FERE FRRMERAR RAEITHIERE M E A SR B HERmM 106,968,000
Shanghai Ng Fung Shangshi (LB ERAT(HEALAEENWE Sale of foodstuff
Food Co., Ltd. NAMEZIER ) A
Non wholly-owned subsidiary of Ng Fung
Hong and an associate of Jinjiang
International Group Co., Ltd. which
in turn is a substantial shareholder
of subsidiaries of the Group
I REHERRAR ARLITHIERENBARTIASA KERAR 65,481,000
Jiangxi Wufeng Stock-Raising BhREREHNOAR(EALEER Purchase of hogs
Co., Ltd. MRS AR E EARR ) HEEEA

Non wholly-owned subsidiary of
Ng Fung Hong and an associate of
Jiangxi Cereal Oil & Food Import &
Export Company which in turn is
a substantial shareholder of
subsidiaries of the Group
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Tenancy agreement

On 18 December 2007, the Company announced that the
Group intended to continue to enter into new tenancy
agreements under the framework terms with China Resources
National Corporation (“CRNC”), the ultimate holding company
of the Company, and its subsidiaries other than the Group
(“CRNC Group”) for three years ending 31 December 2010.
The CRNC Group is a conglomerate with significant property
investments including residential, commercial and industrial
premises in Hong Kong and the Chinese Mainland. According
to the framework terms, each of the lease arrangement to be
entered into by a member of the Group with a member of
CRNC Group would be documented in a separate written
agreement with a lease term of not exceeding three years
and would be on normal commercial terms with the rent,
management fees and other charges received by members of
CRNC Group from any member of the Group being either at
market prices or at prices no less favorable to the Group
than those available from independent third parties. The
Group, with a well-diversified portfolio of consumer
businesses in Hong Kong and the Chinese Mainland, has
needs to lease office and retail outlet premises for its
operations.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the aggregate amount
of the rent, management fees and other related charges
payable by the Group to CRNC Group was HK$63,863,000.

Decoration agreement

On 18 December 2007, the Company announced that the
Group intended to continue to enter into new contracts for
the design, decoration and furnishing of the Group’s offices,
retail outlets and investment properties under the framework
terms with Uconia Company Limited (“Uconia”), a non
wholly-owned subsidiary of CRNC, and its subsidiaries
(“Uconia Group”) for the three years ending 31 December
2010. According to the framework terms, each provision of
decoration services by Uconia Group to members of the
Group would be documented in a separate written agreement
with duration not exceeding three years and each contract of
decoration services would be entered into on normal
commercial terms and the prices would be either at market
prices or at prices no less favorable to the Group than those
available from independent third parties. The granting of
contracts to Uconia Group for the design, decoration and
furnishing of the retail outlets, supermarkets and offices are
in the usual and ordinary course of business of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the aggregate amount
charged by Uconia Group totaled HK$72,533,000.
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Textile agreement

On 23 April 2009, China Resources Textiles (Holdings)
Company Limited (“CR Textiles”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company up to 30 December 2009, entered into the
textile agreement commencing from the date of the
agreement to 31 December 2011 with CRNC. Under the textile
agreement, when any member of the CR Textiles and its
subsidiaries (“CR Textiles Group”) enters into a textile
transaction with members of CRNC Group or its associates,
they should procure that the textile transactions will be on
normal commercial terms. The prices of the textile
transactions will be either at market prices or (if such prices
are not available in the market, or if for any special reasons,
the parties agree that the market prices cannot or should not
be used) at such prices as the parties shall fairly and
reasonably agree on the basis that each of them is dealing
with the other party as an independent third party. The
transactions of textile related merchandise will also broaden
the customer base of CR Textiles Group. The textile
agreement will enable CR Textiles Group to take advantage
of the extensive distribution network of CRNC Group and
widen the distribution channels for its products in the PRC.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the aggregate sales
of textile related merchandise by CR Textiles Group to CRNC
Group and its associates totaled HK$21,968,000.

Supply agreement

On 22 May 2009, CR Vanguard entered into the supply
agreement commencing from the date of the agreement to 31
December 2011 with FY TR BREMEFEHFEERA
A] (Shenzhen Min Run Agriculture Products Distribution Chain
Store Co., Ltd.) (“Min Run”). Under the supply agreement,
when CR Vanguard enters into a supply transaction with
members of Min Run and its subsidiaries (“Min Run Group™),
they should procure that the transactions will be on normal
commercial terms. The prices of the goods involved will be
either at market prices taking into account various factors
(including, without limitation, the quality and the quantity of
the goods involved) or (if there are no comparables in the
market at that time) at such prices which are not less
favourable to CR Vanguard than those available to or from
independent third parties. The supply agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder will broaden the
customer base of CR Vanguard and enhance its bargaining
power and its ability to source goods from other suppliers on
more competitive terms. Min Run is a connected person of
the Company by virtue of its being an associate of Cheung
Kong Investment Company Limited which in turn is a
substantial shareholder of a non wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company.
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EESHS REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(/)  Supply agreement (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2009, the aggregate sales
of the goods to Min Run Group by CR Vanguard totaled
HK$276,828,000.

The directors engaged the auditors of the Company/subsidiaries to
perform certain agreed procedures in respect of continuing
connected transactions of the Group. The procedures were
performed solely to assist the directors of the Company to evaluate
in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules whether, the
above continuing connected transactions:

(@ had received the approval of the directors of the Company;

(b) had been entered into in accordance with the terms of the
relevant agreements governing such transactions;

(© had been entered into in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Group if the transactions involve provision of goods or
services by the Group; and

(d) had not exceeded the relevant cap amounts for the financial
year ended 31 December 2009.

The auditors of the Company/subsidiary have reported their factual
findings on these procedures to the directors of the Company that
the samples the auditors selected were in agreement in respect of
items (a) and (b) above. In respect of item (c), the samples
selected were, where applicable, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group. In respect of item (d), the auditors compared
the aggregate amount for each type of connected transactions as
set out in section 6(a) to 6(f) above and reported that such
aggregate amounts had not exceeded the relevant cap amounts for
the year ended 31 December 2009.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these transactions and confirmed that the continuing
connected transactions have been entered into:

(@ in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions, on terms no less favorable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

(© in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES
Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries and associates as at 31
December 2009 are set out on pages 183 to 189.

TRANSACTIONS IN SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the share options issued or granted during the year by the
Company are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its directors, as at the date of this report, there
is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the respective percentage of the aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers and the aggregate
turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers was less than
30% of the Group’s total value of purchases and total turnover.

AUDITORS
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
QIAO SHIBO
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2010



BRI RS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Deloitte.
=2)

HEHRXARAAZEBRR
(REBEMA B ER 2 E])

AZBENTTE TR B RN E 103 25189 HH)
EHEEARAR(ERR DREMBEAR (S
W EEE DEAVBHRE - WREMBHRRE
ER-_ZFFNF+_A=1T—HANGRREERE
xh BERREEABREEEZALFENS
BEAX  SFEZHEER  SAaRRER®
REGERENER AR ESHABERMER
HADP FEARRE -

EERGAMBRRARENEE
BERAREFARERBEREGHAGRMNE
B BREEI LB RAAGRINDERLEER
MAFHIREFEEMBERE - BEEBER
it BiekgERGELAEBMAFHIREE
M HRAAEONTIES) - UEFHERRIFE
KRR SR RR MG B EASE R R AL + JE A
EREENGHEEK » RZBER MEHEENE
FHEET ©

BB EE
ATHEERREANTOBRZH AV HHRKIE
HER - YREEERREDFE 141 ERAER
EABRMBRRIRE o BRI - AITHORES
TARERMAR - ATHTERARSENA
B BEMEMATBESRDEREE - K17
ERBEEBSHMASHANEBEER T
Bz o EUERBRAITETEERE - WRE
NMITER - LA BEENSEEMBERRES
M BEMERBRRAL

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Resources Enterprise, Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 103 to 189,
which comprise the consolidated and Company’s balance sheets as at 31
December 2009, and the consolidated profit and loss account, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of principal accounting policies
and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2010
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

HE—TTNF+=H=+—HILFZ Forthe year ended 31 December 2009

—EENF ZTEN\F
2009 2008
B E BEEET BERET
Notes HKS million HK$ million
(&75))
(Restated)
BERE 2% Continuing operations
e Turnover 6 64,131 57,220
SHEKAR Cost of sales (47,291) (43,242)
EAH Gross profit 16,840 13,978
EH A Other income 7 1,982 1,527
HERDHER Selling and distribution expenses (11,014) (9,317)
—MRITRE A General and administrative expenses (3,505) (2,819)
BATEPRR Finance costs 8 (195) (491
JEAR B & A B Share of profits of associates 324 369
BT AR A Profit before taxation 4,432 3,247
Bim Taxation 13 (916) (763)
SIBICE 2 ¥ 2 Profit for the year from continuing
AN 5 A operations 9 3,516 2,484
ERIERE XK Discontinued operations
BRI 2 EK 2 Profit for the year from discontinued
AN i A operations 9, 15 267 477
REERF Profit for the year 3,783 2,961
DER Attributable to:
RATRER Shareholders of the Company 2,913 2,322
DEIRER Minority interests 870 639
3,783 2,961
sRER Earnings per share 16
BEKE RIS From continuing and discontinued
e operations
R Basic HKS1.22 HK$0.97
e Diluted HKS1.21 HK$0.97
FEIRE 2 ETS From continuing operations
BN Basic HKS1.17 HK$0.86
BE Diluted HKS$1.16 HK$0.86
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE—TTNF+=H=+—HILFZ Forthe year ended 31 December 2009

—EENF T N\F
2009 2008
BEHET BEBEET
HKS million HK$ million
REEEF Profit for the year 3,783 2,961
Hit2mEE : Other comprehensive income:
HOINERS 2 ERER Exchange differences on translating foreign
operations (53) 1,430
AIEREARBEAR Fair value adjustment on available for sale
investments 142 41
PTHESRMITARNRBEAR Fair value adjustment on derivative financial
instruments (5) @)
b Ry Surplus on revaluation of properties 13 1
i NI T e Share of other comprehensive income/
(BA) (expenses) of associates 30 (50)
ENEAE Reclassification adjustments:
— A EBE QR mE L2 - release of exchange differences upon
EXRZER disposal of associates 8) )
—AHEEREME L2 — release of valuation reserve upon disposal
hERE of available for sale investments (47) -
YR B RMBRIAREA TSR Income tax relating to surplus on revaluation
of properties (4) -
AEEHMEEKE(BREE) Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 68 1,416
rEEREKEARE Total comprehensive income for the year 3,851 4,377
DEER Attributable to:
RABINRER Shareholders of the Company 2,964 3,324
DEIRER Minority interests 887 1,053
3,851 4,377
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

RZZFZTNF+=H=+—H At 31 December 2009

—EEhF —ETNEF
2009 2008
Bt BEEET BEEET
Notes HKS million HK$ million
FRBEE Non-current assets
EE &= Fixed assets
— B — Investment properties 17 8,699 7,653
—EEE AR E: — Interests in leasehold land held for own use
T+ RS under operating leases 17 4,278 3,783
—EAhE - R R — Other property, plant and equipment
By 17 25,181 24,917
EES Goodwill 18 9,225 6,385
HthEpEE Other intangible assets 20 95 68
N YN g 2o Interests in associates 21 395 1,953
AERE Available for sale investments 22 142 40
RAREEEF AIB25H  Financial assets at fair value through profit
TREE or loss 23 419 -
PTEEmITA Derivative financial instruments 27 10 -
B FRIE Prepayments 24 261 198
EERIBEE Deferred taxation assets 30 333 164
49,038 45,161
REEE Current assets
A Stocks 25 11,133 11,509
B 5 Kk H M EKGRIR Trade and other receivables 26 5,212 5,444
AERE Available for sale investments 22 13 71
PTESRTA Derivative financial instruments 27 1 -
AR B IE Taxation recoverable 37 75
BIEHRITES Pledged bank deposits 275 21
e RIRITHET Cash and bank balances 8,528 7,576
25,199 24,696
PERFHENEE Assets classified as held for sale 15 1,230 -
26,429 24,696
piah= Current liabilities
B 5 N E b EN TR Trade and other payables 28 (25,121) (19,302)
HAEER Short term loans 29A (3,324) (5,485)
JES IR Taxation payable (329) (433)
(28,774) (25,220)
D AFHERNEEZ Liabilities associated with assets classified
HEaE as held for sale 15 (544) -
(29,318) (25,220)
REEEEE Net current liabilities (2,889) (524)
REERTBDERS Total assets less current liabilities 46,149 44,637
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
RHIEHK Long term loans 29B (8,819) (8,575)
EEFRIBEE Deferred taxation liabilities 30 (1,624) (1,338)
PTHEERMIT A Derivative financial instruments 27 (26) (12)
HEiIEREAaE Other non-current liabilities 31 (236) (215)
35,444 34,498
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RZZFZTNF+=H=+—H At 31 December 2009

—EEhF —ETNEF
2009 2008
Bt BEEET BEEET
Notes HKS million HK$ million
BRA R i Capital and reserves

A&7 Share capital 32 2,396 2,389
] Reserves 33 23,451 22,770

AATRRELERS Equity attributable to shareholders of
the Company 25,847 25,159
DR RER Minority interests 9,597 9,339
mES Total equity 35,444 34,498

FREf Chen Lang
& Director

B34 Lai Ni Hium
E F Director



SEBEX
BALANCE SHEET

RZZFZTNF+=H=+—H At 31 December 2009

—EENE T N\F
2009 2008
Bt BEHET BEBEET
Notes HKS million HK$ million
FRBEE Non-current assets
BEE&E Fixed assets
—REME — Investment properties 17 51 51
—EfbE - SN — Other property, plant and equipment 17 4 4
NP NG 35 Interests in subsidiaries 19 16,535 17,408
16,590 17,463
REEE Current assets
B 5 K E M FEURIR Trade and other receivables 26 1,021 1,113
e RRITHET Cash and bank balances 400 88
1,421 1,201
b= Current liabilities
B 5 R EMERFIE Trade and other payables 28 (502) (89)
JER 1A Taxation payable - @)
(502) (90)
REBEEFE Net current assets 919 1,111
REERTBHEE Total assets less current liabilities 17,509 18,574
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
BEEFRERE Deferred taxation liabilities 30 @8 ®)
17,501 18,566
BRAR F#E Capital and reserves
&N Share capital 32 2,396 2,389
HE Reserves 33 15,105 16,177
17,501 18,566

BREA Chen Lang
& 5 Director
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

[ ZR T T NF+=H=-+—HILF/Z Forthe year ended 31 December 2009

—EENF T N\F
2009 2008
Bt BEHET BEBEET
Notes HKS million HK$ million
RETH2RERE Cash flows from operating activities
KEFS S Cash generated from operations 34A 8,861 5,096
BEREBFEH Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (121) (131)
B B A SRR Chinese Mainland income tax paid (853) (585)
BEAREINIAS TR Overseas profits tax paid (5) (@
REBRBNGEH Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded 42 1
REAFRE A TSR Chinese Mainland income tax refunded 15 11
RETHRETAEHE Net cash from operating activities 7,939 4,391
RETHZRERE Cash flows from investing activities
HEEE & EMMERIEA Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 145 626
HE R B E TS RIA Proceeds from disposal of available for
sale investments 83 43
B & A R FTSRIA Proceeds from disposal of associates 96 113
HEMB AR, ¥Rk Disposal of subsidiaries/business (net of
ﬁ’?EZIﬁ/i\&iﬁ/\%ﬁ) cash and cash equivalent disposed of) 34B 1 5
BN Dividends received from associates 95 166
EH&Z?FJ:I‘DT%&Q%% Dividends received from unlisted
available for sale investments 3 6
= &RS) Interest received 101 216
BT ED Receipt of government grant 66 152
EEYNE ha =S Purchase of fixed assets (4,764) (7,086)
BARMERLEE Purchase of other intangible assets 6) -
HENEA R ER Purchase of additional interests in
subsidiaries (146) (123)
B AR N T Acquisition of associates - (185)
BHEFRITEIT2E Changes in pledged bank deposits (272) 17
& =NV Acquisition of subsidiaries/business
(RBRKEMEzHE R (net of cash and cash equivalents
ReEE) acquired) 34C (502) -
WAL EIEE TR EE  Net cash from asset swap transaction
EMRG2FRE involving entities under common
control 38B 252 -
ARBREETB82FEE Net cash used in investing activities (4,848) (6,050)




mEREMER CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

—EENF T N\F
2009 2008
BEHET BEBEET
HKS million HK$ million
RETBZRERE Cash flows from financing activities
AR E Dividends paid (932) (1,075)
ERHERARLHRRZRE Dividends paid to minority shareholders
of subsidiaries (342) (281)
=YNEAISE Interest paid (241) (571)
AT BTSSRI S Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 66 39
BIRIT R EMEEMBRIE Proceeds from bank and other borrowings 12,721 14,311
ERRITREMEE Repayment of bank and other borrowings (12,798) (12,927)
DEREFE Contribution from minority shareholders 4 1,202
BMETE(FH) EE2ERE Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (1,522) 698
FHERBESSEEM RD) Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents 1,569 (961)
ERREIZE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (42) 136
ENEANEAGHENEE Reclassified to assets classified as held for
(MIzE+3) sale (note 15) (574) =
R—RA—BzBekR&EEB Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 7,575 8,400
R+-A=+—HBZzBE&RELZE Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 8,528 7,575
ReRBASEELEHBR 2N Analysis of the balances of cash and
cash equivalents
Re RIBITHETT Cash and bank balances 8,528 7,576
RITESZ Bank overdrafts - @
8,528 7,575
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RO RRERBEK
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

E 2 T TNF+ = H=+—HI-FEZ Forthe year ended 31 December 2009

HHURR
B AR
RAARFEGER Minority ~ Total
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company interests  equity
EERHR
RiEkE
Employee
RE ROEE (hERE sharebased ¥HEE ERRE FEER
Share Share Valuation compensation ~ Hedge Exchange Retained fit
capital ~ premium  reserve reserve  reserve  reserve  profits Total
BYEER AYEER AYEER BMEER BMEER BMEER BMRER BMAER BMAER AYEER
HKS million HKS million HKS million  HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million
R-ZTHNE—F—B  At1anuary 2009 2389 12,864 60 172 () 2404 7281 25,150 9339 34,498
AEERENE Total comprehensive income for
the year - - 106 - (10) 6) 2929 2964 87 3851
RREEIRN Shares issued at premium 7 59 - - - - - 66 - 66
KEHBAR Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - - - _ - - 6 6
NG 2 Purchase of additional interest
in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - (2 (2
HERBAT Disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 6] )
e Dividends - - - - - - b 03 G G
PREFEHTEES  Adjustments arising from asset
BERARFHE swap transaction involving
(WE=FAZ) entities under common control
(note 388) - - (20) - - W) 68 w9 G 7w
SHRFEE Contribution from minority
shareholders - - - - - - _ _ 4 4
7 59 86 - (10) (468) 1,014 688 28 946
RZZTNE At 31 December 2009
TZA=+-H 2396 12,923 146 172 (@) 1936 8295 2847 9597 35444
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IREREREREER CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

fER
Total
equity

SHRR
s
RARRR N ER Minority
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company interests
SR
fikE
Employee
RE RAEE (bERE shaebased HibRE EXEE REE
Share Share  Valuation compensation ~ Hedge Exchange Retained e
capital  premium  reserve reserve  reseve  reserve  profits Total

REAEL AYNEEL ANEEL  A¥EET BMAERD BKEEL A¥AET BYAET BEEEL A¥AET
HKS million HK$ million HK$ million  HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

RZZE\F-F—-H At 1 January 2008 2,385 12,829 10 172 0] 1,397 6,082 2287 7293 30464
REERENSR Total comprehensive income
for the year = - 50 = M w07 2274 33% 1053 4377
BAERTRG Shares issued at premium 4 3 = - . - - 39 . 39
WERBAR Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 159 159
RN B S Purchase of additional interest
in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 87) 87)
RE Dividends - - - - - - o) (o) (28)  (1,350)
SHRFTE Contribution from minority
shareholders - - - - - - - - 1,202 1,202
4 3 50 - @ 1007 1199 2288 2046 4334
i )3 At 31 December 2008
TZA=1-H 2389 12864 6o 172 @ 2404 728 25859 9339 34498
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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D(i)

General

Ultimate holding company

The Company is a public company incorporated in Hong Kong and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The directors regard the ultimate holding
company as at 31 December 2009 to be China Resources National
Corporation (“CRNC”), a company established in the Chinese
Mainland. The address of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company is disclosed in the annual report.

Principal activities

The Group is principally engaged in retail, beverage, food
processing and distribution and property investment businesses.
The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and
property investment, and the activities of its principal subsidiaries
and associates are shown on pages 183 to 189.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. Save as specified in the principal
accounting policies as set out in note 2, the financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Adoption of new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants has issued
a number of new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations on Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) that are
effective or available for early adoption for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2009. In the current year, the Group has
adopted the following new and revised standards, amendments
and interpretations.
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D(i)

B BEMEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General (continued)

Adoption of new and revised standards, amendments and

interpretations (continued)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 32 & HKAS 1
(Amendments)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment)
HKFRS 8
HKFRS Interpretation 9
& HKAS 39
(Amendments)
HKFRS Interpretation 13
HKFRS Interpretation 15
HKFRS Interpretation 16

HKFRS Interpretation 18

Apart from certain presentational changes, the adoption of the

Improvements to HKFRSs 2008,
except for the amendment to
HKFRS 5 that is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after
1 July 2009

Amendment to paragraph 8o of
HKAS 39 as part of improvements to
HKFRSs 2009

Presentation of Financial Statements

Borrowing Costs

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligation Arising on Liquidation

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate

Share-based Payment — Vesting
Conditions and Cancellation

Improving Disclosure about Financial
Instruments

Operating Segments

Embedded Derivatives

Customer Loyalty Programmes

Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate

Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation

Transfers of Assets from Customers

above new and revised standards, amendments and interpretations
has had no material effects on the Group’s results and financial
position for the current and prior accounting years. Accordingly, no
prior year adjustments are required.
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D(i)

D(ii)

General (continued)

Adoption of new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations (continued)

HKAS 1 (Revised) requires the disclosure of consolidated balance
sheet as at the beginning of the earliest comparative period when
the Group makes a retrospective restatement when presenting the
results of discontinued operations. As the retrospective restatement
has no impact to the consolidated balance sheet, accordingly, no
such disclosure is made in the consolidated financial statements.

Accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective.

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Financial Instruments: Presentation —
Classification of Rights Issues

HKAS 39 (Amendment)  Eligible Hedged Items

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part

of Improvements to HKFRSs 2008

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS Interpretation 14

(Amendment)

HKFRS Interpretation 17

HKFRS Interpretation 19

Improvements to HKFRSs 2009

Additional Exemptions for First-time
Adopters

Limited Exemption from Comparative
HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters

Share-based Payment — Group
Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions

Business Combinations

Financial Instruments

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement

Distributions of Non-cash Assets
to Owners

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instruments



T (i) HRERBEHER

# [

—RER @
EATRREGE)

i3
iz

BB REENF3RUERT) A
AEBHWBERMA —_T—FF—
KNRZEBAFET TR - %ﬂ?r
27 (BRT) IS B AN K BN E
Bm BFHRIE o

R
o O m o

D +m DJJ N
2 &

ARREFRRARA R RERTER -
BRSBTS H AR B FE KM HAR
TEREAZE -

FTESTHER

=N

$EIZ BEVBREREARRRES
HEEZRMEZEWNE LR ZHBHRE - B7F
R XM aE =T el B2 S AN & B R Bk
NEIZ Rem—HAGTE - RFEAMKIEDS
HEZHBARREERNRZEETIHE
?F%HQE%E!HH?L?JFEJZEYIHj’%E?ﬁE%E
(RIERME)VAAGE - FIEEERNE 2
EK%%&ND%EE@%E)\%@%%T% :

FBRAREHTEERNEEERISZZE
AEsEt
BRAREHTERNEEERRZHRE
et AR - REBEAES, BFGELE
EHEEME BRR P BNREENGS
B 15 5 W AR S P B S BB AT SR S S T R
R e WIHERRREE R UKLIETT AERE
1B, MERWEETT M EQRIREE M
B ERERRELREBEMN, ERREE
AR EAEENFE -

1.

B BEMEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General (continued)

D(ii) Accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not

yet effective (continued)

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the accounting for
business combination for which the acquisition date is on or after
1 January 2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting
treatment for changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised standards, amendments or interpretations
will have no material impact on the Group’s results of operations
and financial position.

Principal Accounting Policies

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include the
financial statements of the Company and of all its direct and
indirect subsidiaries and also incorporate the Group’s interests in
associates on the basis set out in note 2D below. The results of
subsidiaries and associates acquired or disposed of during the
year are included from the effective date of acquisition or up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. All material intra-
group transactions and balances have been eliminated on
consolidation.

Restructuring accounting for asset swap transaction involving
entities under common control

Asset swap involving entities under common control are accounted
for using restructuring accounting. Under restructuring accounting,
assets and liabilities transferred to the Group are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements at their carrying values on the
transaction date and no goodwill or discount on acquisition is
recognised. The consideration for the disposal companies is the
carrying values of the acquirees, while the difference between
carrying value of the acquirees and the disposal companies is
charged or credited to retained earnings, as an adjustment arising
on restructuring of companies under common control.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an enterprise in which the Company, directly or
indirectly, holds more than half of the issued share capital or
controls more than half of the voting power, or where the Company
controls the composition of its board of directors or equivalent
governing body. In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment loss. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an enterprise, not being a subsidiary nor a jointly
controlled entity, over which the Group is in a position to exercise
significant influence through participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee. The results and assets
and liabilities of associates are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the
consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associates,
less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that
associate, the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability
is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate. In the consolidated balance sheet, interests in associates
are stated at the Group’s share of net assets of the associates plus
goodwill arising on acquisitions taking into effect the policy on
goodwill in note 2E.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost
of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquired subsidiary/associate at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is
tested for impairment at the reporting date and whenever there is
an indication that the cash generating unit to which the goodwill
relates may be impaired. Such goodwill is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. An impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account and is not
reversed in a subsequent period. On subsequent disposal of a
subsidiary or an associate, the attributable amount of goodwill
capitalised is included in the determination of the amount of profit
or loss on disposal.
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B BEMEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January 2001 continues
to be recognised as a deduction from equity and is not recognised
in the consolidated profit and loss account when the Group
disposes of all or part of the business to which that goodwill
relates or when a cash generating unit to which the goodwill
relates becomes impaired.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions on or
after 1 January 2001 and prior to 1 January 2005, the Group has
discontinued amortisation from 1 January 2005 onwards, and such
goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting date, and
whenever there is an indication that the cash generating unit to
which the goodwill relates may be impaired.

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary
or an associate represents the excess of the Group’s interest in the
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquired subsidiary/associate at the date of
acquisition over the cost of acquisition. Discount on acquisition of
a subsidiary is recognised immediately in the consolidated profit
and loss account. A discount on acquisition arising on an
acquisition of an associate is included as income in the
determination of the Groups’ share of results of associate in the
period in which the investment is acquired.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities

The Group’s financial assets are classified as “financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss”, “loans and receivables”, “held-
to-maturity investments” and “available-for-sale investments”
dependent on the purpose for which the assets are acquired.
Financial liabilities are classified as “financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss” and “financial liabilities other than financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (other financial
liabilities)”. Details of classifications and measurements are as
follows:

@

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value and have two sub-categories:
financial assets held for trading and those designated at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition. At each
balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in
the profit and loss account in the period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market which are initially measured at fair value. At
each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
Objective evidence of impairment includes significant
financial difficulty of the debtors, the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.
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B BEMEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(b)

©

Loans and receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when
an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Group’s management has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity
investments are initially recognised in the balance sheet at
fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are
stated in the balance sheet at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss
account when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate
computed on initial recognition.

Objective evidence of impairment includes default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with the operations of the investment.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through the profit and loss
account. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

()

(e

Available for sale investments

Available for sale investments are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories.

The Group holds certain investments in equity securities, that
do not have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be measured reliably. These
available for sale investments are stated at cost less
impairment losses. Apart from this, available for sale
investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs. At each balance sheet date the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
directly in equity, until the financial asset is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in equity is removed from
equity and recognised in the profit and loss account.

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss
account when there is objective evidence that the equity
investment is impaired.

Objective evidence of impairment includes significant
financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty and
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with the operations of the investment.

For those investments carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the equity investment and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment losses will not reverse in subsequent
periods. For those investments carried at fair value, any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such equity
investments is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in valuation reserve.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised directly in the profit and
loss account in the period in which they arise.



FESTBR®@)

c SREEREE®

(2)

(&)

i 2 BEM
RS BE BN SRR BEET
BB R B ERA R R
PR B o

BUE#ER

EREENDBESRE ZENER
KEREERBRELAKEE S
RMEECFARZIBARED R R
EREE - AR E E WA R
RoRBREREREER  BE
FFHERCUEEERERENE
i 2 T W R P R R 2 R T MR S
BRNE 28 - NERRARER -

BEBAOMAIRETERR &
HREME - B &SRR E
B BEERAZEHBELREE
HENRENREZHZEZR  ©
IBRRAER -

B EEEE

(&)

(2)

REWE
REMERFAIERGKER, 3
BEARERGz T RETHEE -
ZEWERAABEIABERE
xR REMEAABEEZEINHR
SEHFERAERERER -

EEILRE

FAYEAE EE AT IR AR 3 B 1 AR SR E
BIZIEEME  BE RERES K
NMERRFTREEE(NHE )T -
RABEMERESLL  BES
A BEERZEERARURZIEA
BrzHMBRAEEER -

ETRRTAIMEEXNABAGH
ZBEIEEE AR - AEEHD
ERERTRIFEMATESRME -

G

B BEMEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

()

®

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in the profit and loss account.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in the profit and loss account.

Fixed Assets

@

(b)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
which are held for long term rental and/or for capital
appreciation. Such properties are carried in the balance sheet
at their fair value. Changes in fair value of investment
properties are recognised directly in the profit and loss
account in the period in which they arise.

Construction in progress

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of construction
for production or administrative purposes or for purposes
not yet determined, are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes all construction
expenditure, professional fees, borrowing costs capitalised
and other relevant expenses directly attributable to such
projects.

No provision for depreciation is made on construction in
progress until such time when construction work is complete
and the costs of construction are transferred to the
appropriate category of fixed assets when available for use.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Fixed Assets (continued)

Other property, plant and equipment

Fixed assets other than investment properties and
construction in progress are stated at cost less accumulated

©

@

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation of other fixed assets is provided to write off the
cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account their estimated residual values, using the
straight line method. The residual values and useful lives are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease term
Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and
their estimated useful lives, being 20 to 5o years
Leasehold improvements 3 to 10 years or over the
unexpired term of lease,
whichever is shorter
Vessels 5 to 15 years
Cold storage facilities 10 years
Plant and machinery
Furniture and equipment

Motor vehicles

5 to 25 years
3 to 10 years
3 to 8 years

Leased assets

0]

Assets acquired under finance leases

Assets acquired pursuant to finance leases that transfer
to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases and are accounted for as if
purchased whereby an amount equivalent to cost is
recorded as fixed assets and as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided in accordance
with the Group’s depreciation policy. Payments to the
lessor are treated as consisting of capital and interest
elements. The interest element is charged to the profit
and loss account.
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B BEMEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Fixed Assets (continued)

()

(e

Leased assets (continued)

(i)  Operating lease charges
All leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

Rental income or expense arising from operating leases
(net of any benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease) is recognised
in the profit and loss account on a straight line basis
over the periods of the respective leases except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the time
pattern of the user’s benefit.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the property is
classified as an investment property.

Impairment of fixed assets

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external
sources of information are considered to assess whether
there is any indication that fixed assets other than
investment properties are impaired. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated and
where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce
the asset to its recoverable amount. Such impairment losses
are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the assets is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount. Such reversal of
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to the profit and loss account in the year in which
the reversals are recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal or retirement of an item of fixed

assets is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
profit and loss account.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Other intangible assets

On initial recognition, other intangible assets acquired separately
and from business combinations are recognised at cost and at fair
value respectively. After initial recognition, other intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Other intangible assets with finite
useful lives are stated at cost and are amortised on the straight
line method over their useful lives with amortisation commences
when the asset is available for use. The estimated useful lives of
other intangible assets with finite useful lives are as follows:

Brand names 10 to 20 years
These intangible assets are assessed for impairment at each
balance sheet date by comparing their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts. Where indication of impairment exists, an
impairment loss is charged to profit and loss to reduce the assets
to its recoverable amount. Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the assets is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount. Such reversal of
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in full on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements, with limited
exceptions. Deferred taxation assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred
taxation is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled.

Stock of properties

Stock of properties represents properties held for sale which is
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable
value is determined by reference to management estimates based
on prevailing market conditions.
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B BEMEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Other stocks

Other stocks which comprise raw materials, consumables and
packing materials, work-in-progress and finished goods are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprise direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads.

Cost is determined on the weighted average method or in the case
of retail business, cost is calculated on the first-in first-out basis.

Net realisable value is determined as the estimated net selling
price less all further costs of production and the related costs of
marketing, selling and distribution.

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition
is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the
asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its
present condition.

Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of the assets’ or disposal groups’
previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value at each
balance sheet date and are deemed as held-for-trading financial
assets/liabilities, unless they are designated and qualified as
effective hedging instruments. The Group designates certain
derivatives as either fair value hedges or cash flow hedges.

(@ Fair value hedges
Hedges are classified as fair value hedges when hedges are
made to hedge against exposure to changes in fair value of a
recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm
commitment.

For fair value hedges that qualifying for hedge accounting,
changes in the fair values of hedging instruments and
hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognised
in the profit and loss in the periods in which fair value
changes arise.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging (continued)

(b) Cash flow hedges
Hedges are classified as cash flow hedges when hedges are
made to hedge against exposure to variability in cash flows
that are attributable to a particular risk associated with a
recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast
transaction.

For cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting, the
effective portion of the gains or losses arising on the
changes in fair value of hedging instruments is initially
recognised in equity and transferred to the profit and loss
account when the hedged item affects the profit and loss
account. The ineffective portion is recognised immediately in
the profit and loss account.

For the hedge of a forecast transaction that subsequently
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-
financial liability, the associated gains or losses are removed
from equity and included in the initial cost or other carrying
amount of the asset or liability.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
derivatives that either do not qualify for hedge accounting or are
classified as held-for-trading financial assets/liabilities are taken
directly to the profit and loss account.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs
that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to an
asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to the profit and loss account over the expected useful
life of the relevant asset.

Recognition of revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods and
services provided in the normal course of business and net of
discounts.

Sales are recognised upon delivery of goods and provision of
services; and interest income is recognised in the profit and loss
account as it accrues.
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B BEMEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Recognition of revenue (continued)

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e. the
guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary
of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is amortised to the consolidated profit and loss
account over the guarantee period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are accounted for on the accrual basis and
charged to the profit and loss account in the year incurred, except
for costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
that assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale.

Fees paid for the arrangement of syndicated loan facilities and
debt securities are deferred, and are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Foreign exchange

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign exchange (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in the
profit and loss account in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of
the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income in the consolidated financial statements. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the balance sheet date, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the Group’s exchange
reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account in the period which the
foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1
January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
the translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation before 1 January
2005 is treated as non-monetary foreign currency items of the
acquirer and reported using the historical cost prevailing at the
date of acquisition.

Share-based payment

The Group has granted share options to certain employees and
other participants, for their services rendered, to subscribe for
shares of the Company in accordance with the Company’s share
option scheme. The fair value of services received is determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity (employee share-
based compensation reserve).
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B BEMEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Critical Accounting Estimates

Investment properties

The fair values of investment properties are determined annually
by independent valuer on market value for existing use basis or
calculated on the net rental income and allowing for reversionary
income potential.

In making the judgement, considerations have been given to
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing
at the balance sheet date and appropriate capitalisation rates of
the net rental income. These estimates are regularly compared to
actual market data and transactions entered into by the Group.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
Note 2E. Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amounts of cash generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated. The recoverable amounts have
been determined either based on value-in-use calculations or the
cash-generating units’ fair value less costs to sell. Details of the
calculation are disclosed in Note 18.

Deferred taxation assets

As at 31 December 2009, a deferred taxation asset of HK$64
million (2008: HK$50 million) in relation to unused tax losses has
been recognised in the Group’s consolidated balance sheet. The
recognition of the deferred taxation asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future assessable profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the actual
future assessable profits generated are less than expected, a
material reversal of deferred taxation assets may arise, which
would be recognised in the profit and loss account in the period
such a reversal takes places.

Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit
risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and currency risk. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated balance sheet.
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Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables, amounts due from associates, bank balances and
derivative financial instruments entered into.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk to trade
and other receivables as its customer bases are widely spread
across diverse industries and geographical locations. For its retail
businesses and some transactions in its beverage businesses,
sales of products are made in cash. The Group has policies in
place to ensure that open account customers are financially viable
and with an appropriate credit history. To minimise its credit risk
exposure, credit evaluations are performed for the determination
and approval of credit limits granted and other monitoring
procedures are implemented to ensure that follow-up actions are
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, regular reviews on
aging and recoverability are performed to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

In respect of bank deposits and transactions involving derivative
financial instruments, the Group has procedures and policies in
place to ensure they are made to counterparties with acceptable
credit quality.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Company as set
out in note 37, the Group does not provide any other guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk as at 31 December
2009.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash
and the availability of adequate committed credit facilities to fund
capital, prospective investment opportunities, debt servicing
obligations and dividend payments. Management also closely
monitors the Group’s rolling forecast and actual cash flows and
maturity profiles of financial liabilities.

Other than short term loans, long term loans and derivative
financial instruments, all other financial liabilities of the Group are
non-interest bearing. The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
borrowings and derivative financial instruments, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based
on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay. For derivative instruments
settled on a net basis, undiscounted net cash (inflow)/outflows is
presented. Whereas they require gross settlement, the
undiscounted gross (inflow)/outflow is presented.
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N, BIBEMREEEEREE®) 4. Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies (continued)
Z nwBEESERE:) B Liquidity risk (continued)
BRTAKREER
RERERE
R—Z=F R-ZRF Total
—FR P ZE  HBBEF  contractual REE
Within 1 Between 1 Between 2 Over undiscounted Carrying
year and 2 years to 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
B¥EERT AB¥EEnx ABY¥EER BY¥AREnR BY¥EER B¥EER
HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million  HKS million HKS million
“2ENF 2009
EEFIEEE Fixed rate borrowings
HABAFLEL Bank loans associated
4B AR AR 1T with a disposal group
R (fEtR) classified as held
for sale (note 15) 171 - - - 171 170
HiER Other loans 17 17 25 - 59 58
188 17 25 = 230 228
FBFREE Variable rate borrowings
RITER Bank loans 3,382 3,212 5,640 3 12,237 12,082
HiER Other loans 5 - - - - -
BERD Finance lease % - - - 2 .
3,386 3,212 5,640 3 12,241 12,085
3,574 3,229 5,665 3 12,471 12,313
fTETE-BEE Derivatives - net settlement
M &= H] Interest rate swaps 40 36 12 - 88 15
—EEN\E 2008
EEFREE Fixed rate borrowings
H b &R Other loans 130 20 32 - 182 182
FEANEEE Variable rate borrowings
EREMERES Trust receipts and overdrafts 4 - - - 4 3
RITER Bank loans 5,632 1,645 7,073 3 14,353 13,874
BEML Finance lease 2 - - _ 2 .
5,638 1,645 7,073 3 14,359 13,878
5,768 1,665 7,105 3 14,541 14,060
fTETE-B4E Derivatives - net settlement
M Interest rate swaps 16 16 14 - 46 11
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Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk mainly from its long
term and short term borrowings. Borrowings at fixed and floating
interest rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk and
cash flow interest rate risk respectively. To cover interest rate risk,
the Group maintains the loan portfolio in a preferred fixed/floating
interest rate mix and review regularly. To avoid undue
concentration of risk, the Group entered into interest rate swaps to
mitigate current and future corporate profitability from interest rate
volatility.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-derivative
instruments at the balance sheet date. For floating rate liabilities,
the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at the balance sheet date was outstanding for the
whole year.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year
ended 31 December 2009 would decrease/increase by HK$89 million
(2008: decrease/increase by HK$128 million).

This analysis is prepared by using certain assumptions on a
hypothetical situation. In reality, market interest rates would not
change in isolation. In management’s opinion, the analysis is used
for reference purpose and should not be considered a projection of
the future profits or losses.

Currency risk
Some subsidiaries of the Group are operating outside Hong Kong
and have their local currencies as their functional currencies.

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency sales and
purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
Approximately 4.62% (2008: 5.29%) of the Group’s sales are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
group entity making the sale, whilst approximately 96% (2008:
95%) of costs are denominated in the group entity’s respective
functional currencies.
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B BEMEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies (continued)
Currency risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the balance
sheet date to currency risk arising from recognised assets or
liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

—BBRhEF —TTN\F
2009 2008

BE &8f& BE afE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BEEHERT BYHExR Aaar AB¥EET
HKS million HKS million  HK$ million  HK$ million
AR Renminbi 273 23 216 55
=TT US Dollars 146 841 863 971
B HK Dollars 35 - 89 157

TRHFDBEHAREFRE %L ARE
BHEE  ERMBEXSET - BTix
THEAZBRTEEEAMBRE
MRBIEHBREDIT - FEGREST
EEBNINEHENERER - FERKH
BEE WRBINSEZN%EE - &
TRH - EBRREDGEEE L BHING
THEs5% » EF R E RS M- &
NEEEB L ARG Es%  $HEH K%
HitgamEERSFERRNEE -

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase
or decrease in the Hong Kong dollars against the Renminbi. Under
the linked exchange rate system, the financial impact on exchange
difference between Hong Kong dollar and US dollar will be
immaterial and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been prepared.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at year
end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates an increase in profit and other equity where the
functional currency strengthens 5% against the relevant foreign
currency. For a 5% weakening of the functional currency against
relevant foreign currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit and other equity.

HHBRN(BE) N e
Effect on profit/(loss)

HESHMARBIHZE

Effect on other components

after tax of equity
ZEEAF ZET\F ZEBEAF ZZT)\F
2009 2008 2009 2008
BEEErT ABaEr BY¥EEx B¥asrx
HKS million HK$ million HKS million  HK$ million
AR Renminbi (18) (19) _ _

e M TR IR R L R TE R R R 1B
17 RERBERT  MBEXTEEEN
& EEER/UANMAMBELE - T
AREAR OB K IR ROTER -

This analysis is prepared by using certain assumptions on a
hypothetical situation. In reality, market exchange rates would not
change in isolation. In management’s opinion, the analysis is used
for reference purpose and should not be considered a projection of
the future profits or losses.
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Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in note 29, cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company,
comprising issued capital, reserves and retained profits as
disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
regularly. The Group considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital, and will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues as well as the raise of bank borrowings or the redemption
of existing debt.

Turnover and Segment Information

—BEIF —ETNF
2009 2008
BYEET BEEST
HKS million HK$ million
HERE 2 EBNEXBEE Turnover from continuing
RETHEEZKA : operations comprises
revenue from:
HEEM Sales of goods 60,297 53,943
R ARTE R H A A Rendering of services and
others 3,286 2,856
HEWA Rental income 536 402
HEME Sales of properties 12 19
64,131 57,220
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N, BEERIEER @ 6. Turnover and Segment Information (continued)
wESD Operating segments
BRMT BHILEE
RiEH BEgE ¥R
Food RER ¥Bas  (METE)
Processing RENE Hitn$ 8 Continuing  Discontinued
BE #m and  Investment  Investments 4%  Operations  Operations A
Retail Beverage  Distribution Property  and Others Elimination Total (Note 15) Total

EREET EWEAET EWEER EWEER EWEER EWEAT BWEART B¥EER BEWEER
HKS million ~ HKS million ~ HKS million ~ HKS million ~ HKS million  HKS million  HKS million  HKS million  HKS million

HE-BRAE For the year ended
t-A=+-ALEFE 31 December 2009
i TURNOVER
HMAE External sales 35,864 20,401 7,350 516 - - 64,131 7,498 71,629
EBRHE* Inter-segment sales* 75 69 93 34 - (271 - - -
At Total 35,939 20,470 7,443 550 - (279) 64,131 7,498 71,629
PEEE Segment result 657 1,594 545 1,565 294 4,655 398 5,053
AEHBOD AT Unallocated corporate
expenses (117) - (117)
FISHA Interest income 89 9 98
BN Finance costs (195) 64) (259)
FRBEATRR Profit before taxation 4,432 343 14,775
BE Taxation (916) 76) (992)
REERR Profit for the year 3,516 267 3,783
R-BBAF+=A=1+-H As at 31 December 2009
BE ASSETS
SHEE Segment assets 26,360 30,001 6,777 9,225 532 72,895 1,230 74,125
EERRAE Deferred taxation assets 333 - 333
AREHE Taxation recoverable 37 - 37
REDBODRBHEE Unallocated corporate
assets 972 = 972
FREESE Consolidated total assets 74,237 1,230 75,467
af& LIABILITIES
AR Segment liabilities 14,358 15,120 1,172 163 3 30,816 544 31,360
TR Taxation payable 329 - 329
EEHEARE Deferred taxation liabilities 1,624 - 1,624
AEDBHDRBIHAE Unallocated corporate
liabilities 6,710 = 6,710
FABEEE Consolidated total liabilities 39,479 544 40,023
s OTHER INFORMATION
BARX Capital expenditure 1,435 3,871 488 1 1 5,796 198 5,994
HEREH Depreciation
and amortisation 888 1,067 162 13 1 2,131 333 2,464
PR EEE Impairment loss recognised 14 492 - 1 - 507 34 541
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EXBERDEER ) 6.

Turnover and Segment Information (continued)

BEED(H) Operating segments (continued)
BRI BERILER
K45 ot tidowd 2R
Food RER (%A (MEth)
Processing REME Bt %% Continuing ~ Discontinued
3 B and  Investment Investments £f3§  Operations  Operations h
Retail Beverage  Distribution Property and Others Elimination Total (Note 15) Total
BEAET A%EET  A¥EEr  B¥EER  BNASEr  A%EErT  A¥EEn  BBEER  BNASET
HK$ million  HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ milion  HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million  HK$ million
Bz-280\%F For the year ended
+ZA=+-HLEE 31 December 2008
BEE TURNOVER
HHMEE External sales 31,999 17,352 7,468 401 - - 57,220 7,408 64,628
ERRHE Inter-segment sales* 73 53 177 33 = (336) = = =
At Total 32,072 17,405 7,645 434 = (336) 57,220 7,408 64,628
PEXE Segment result 680 1,317 465 847 337 3,646 626 4,272
AEHBHOD BT Unallocated corporate
expenses (98) - (98)
FISHA Interest income 190 2 212
BBRA Finance costs (499 (104) (595)
BRBEADER Profit before taxation 3,247 544 3,791
A Taxation (763) (67) (830)
REERR Profit for the year 2,484 477 2,961
R-BBAF+=A=t-H As at 31 December 2008
'E ASSETS
AREE Segment assets 18,036 27,867 6,231 7,926 1477 61,537 7,636 69,173
BERBEEE Deferred taxation assets 123 4 164
AREFIE Taxation recoverable 70 5 75
AEPENNRBTEE Unallocated corporate
assets 45 - 45
RABEME Consolidated total assets 62,175 7,682 69,857
8% LIABILITIES
PREE Segment liabilities 9,701 13,756 1,177 333 4 24,971 2,870 27,841
EfHE Taxation payable 313 120 433
ELHBARE Deferred taxation liabilities 1313 25 1,338
FAMEDBODRBHARE Unallocated corporate
liabilities 5,747 - 5,747
FRARERE Consolidated total liabilities 32,344 3,015 35,359
HitrER OTHER INFORMATION
BARY Capital expenditure 2,165 4,041 572 - 1 6,779 453 7,232
FEREH Depreciation and
amortisation 758 823 158 14 2 1,755 309 2,064
PR ERE Impairment loss recognised 4 228 1 = = 233 34 267
* EBREEE DIRERTISERKE @ Inter-segment sales were charged at prevailing market rates



S

/N

B BEMEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEEIRSEER (@) 6. Turnover and Segment Information (continued)
HEE S Geographical segments
FER  HEEX
&5 Chinese Other St
Hong Kong  Mainland  Countries Total
BE¥EET B¥EEx BY¥EER BYBER
HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million
BIEt—2FAE+=-H=+—R8 Turnover from continuing
L FEERISERSE 2 BN operations for the year
B ended 31 December 2009 6,865 56,064 1,202 64,131
R-ZFFAFE+=-HA=+—H As at 31 December 2009
JEmENE EE (FIEE) Non-current assets (Note) 9,526 38,075 533 48,134
BIt—FZEN\E+=-F=+—H Tumnover from continuing
L FERIFERE BN operations for the year
R ended 31 December 2008 6,149 49,661 1,410 57,220
R=ZBZENFE+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2008
FERENE B (PTE ) Non-current assets (Note) 9,166 35,255 536 44,957
B3 Note:

HRBEETERERMTANEERBEE -
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+. HlA 7. Other Income
—EENE —EEN\F
2009 2008
BEEAER BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
HWABFETHISE ! Other income includes the
following:
BHERE2EK Continuing operations
REFETAIERERRE Dividends from unlisted
available for sale
investments - 3
SV ON Interest income 89 190
KEYESEERS Valuation gain on
investment properties 1,124 485
HER A AR Z TS F Profit on disposal of
associates 82 95
HERERE 25 Profit on disposal of
available for sale
investments 55 35
& E & TS i ) Profit on disposal of
fixed assets - 216
BRI Government grants
recognised 5 3
BRIERE SR Discontinued operations
REFLMAIERENRE Dividends from unlisted
available for sale
investments 3 3
M EUA Interest income 9 22
WEYEEGHER, (EE) Valuation gain/(deficit) on
investment properties 4 2

& BE B AR

Profit on disposal of
fixed assets
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B3 B A Finance Costs
—EENF ZZETNF
2009 2008
BETER BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
BHERE 2% Continuing operations
AR R FNBEBEE 2 RIT Interests on bank loans
B REMERFE and other loans wholly
repayable within five years 179 530
BENAFREBHEEZ Interests on bank loans not
RITERFE wholly repayable within
five years - 1
A H Financing charges 34 21
213 552
B EBEREBEMANH 2 & Less: Amount capitalised in
FEEANFI cost of qualifying
assets* (18) (61)
77777777 195 491
ERIERE XK Discontinued operations
ARAFANBEER ZIRIT Interests on bank loans
B REMERFE and other loans wholly
repayable within five years 63 94
BhE ST Financing charges 1 10
64 104
259 595
& HAERBEEREEZ —REEBMZH * Finance costs relating to the general borrowings used for obtaining the

ERADIR 4.37% & 6.72% (ZBT)\F :
3.16% £ 7.39%) ZEFEERBRERN -

qualifying assets have been capitalised at various rates ranging from
4.37% to 6.72% (2008: 3.16% to 7.39%) per annum.
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. RNFEERF

9. Profit For the Year

—EENF ZETNF
2009 2008
BEBER BEBEET
HKS million HK$ million
AEEBREMBRTHIEE ! Profit for the year has been
arrived at after charging:
BEKSE 2K Continuing operations
ZEEN IS Auditors’ remuneration 21 22
BEIXRA(BEESHE) Staff costs (including
directors’ emoluments) 6,212 5,254
e Depreciation
-BEEE — Owned assets 2,118 1,740
-ERRERNRENEE — Assets held under
finance leases - 1
EEEE B ERREEE Impairment loss recognised
(BREE—MRETHREAN) on fixed assets (included
in general and
administrative expenses) 33 58
RE ERRBEEE Impairment loss recognised
(BEE—MREITHRERAARN) on goodwill (included in
general and
administrative expenses) 13 -
FEZEERBEBEE(2E Impairment loss recognised
E—RERITHRERA)(KiEE) on stocks (included in
general and administrative
expenses) (Note) 460 172
H R & s Amortisation of other
(BEREE—MRETHREAN) intangible assets
(included in general and
administrative expenses) 13 14
T BT E OB R Operating leases charges
on land and buildings* 1,976 1,451
2 EEmEA Cost of goods sold 47,010 42,880
HEREEEEMSER Loss on disposal of
fixed assets 69 =
ERIERE %K Discontinued operations
izt Gilika Auditors’ remuneration 4 4
BEIRA(BEESHE) Staff costs (including
directors’ emoluments) 764 765
e Depreciation
-BEEE — Owned assets 333 309
BT EEZ EERRBEEE Impairment loss recognised
(BEE—REITHRERARN) on fixed assets (included
in general and
administrative expenses) 34 25
FEZBERAREERE Impairment loss recognised
(BEE—MRETHRERRN) on stocks (included in
general and
administrative expenses) - 9
T RIEFZ EERNER Operating leases charges
on land and buildings 429 396
EEEmA Cost of goods sold 5,635 5,437
& EE & EMSEE Loss on disposal of
fixed assets 4 -
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N, FEEBRF 9.  Profit For the Year (continued)
—EEhF —EENF
2009 oy 2008
BEEET EEEET
HKS million HK$ million
WEFA - And after crediting:
HERE 2 ¥ Continuing operations
el AER Gross rental income 536 402
R RSz Less: Related out-
goings (27) (28)
e WA F5E Net rental income 509 374
E BRERAESEE 2007 BETL(ZTZTNF: S Including contingent rent of HK$297 million (2008: HK$280 million).
B 280 BETT) ©
st - REESEEZRHEP —HRUEERE SH Note: Impairment loss was mainly made to those usable packing materials
BERFTEEILT R BERANBREYR arising from the change of packing design for one of the manufacturing
MH2ER ° business.
+. EEME 10. Directors’ Emoluments
—EEhEF —ETNF
2009 2008
BEEET BEEHETT
HKS million HK$ million
e Fees 1.75 1.77
ERF e K2 Basic salaries and allowances 11.83 11.85
NESHR Provident fund contributions 0.78 0.86
BEATEAT Bonus paid 7.61 5.97
21.97 20.45
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+. EEME ) 10. Directors’ Emoluments (continued)
e Hipih e
Fees Other Emoluments
HEEXHe
RIZEL DEEHR —EENE
Basic Provident Shr
Salaries and Fund ETEAL &5t 2008
—ZENE 2009 Allowances  Contributions Bonus paid- Total Total
E¥EER BY¥EET B¥EER AB¥EERT BYEET E¥EER
BEESA Name of director HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million
B Qiao Shibo 0.07 1.49 0.09 - 1.65 0.01
FREA Chen Lang 0.08 1.85 0.12 1.53 3.58 -
T Wang Qun 0.08 1.62 0.06 1.97 3.73 3.71
£ Lau Pak Shing 0.08 2.99 0.33 0.96 4.36 434
R Lai Ni Hium 0.04 1.59 0.04 - 1.67 -
EE Jiang Wei 0.08 - - - 0.08 0.08
Il Yan Biao 0.08 - - - 0.08 0.08
FaE Li Fuzuo 0.08 = = = 0.08 0.07
HXR Du Wenmin 0.08 - - - 0.08 0.08
PRE 2 Chan Po Fun, Peter 0.16 - - - 0.16 0.16
HEAE Houang Tai Ninh 0.16 - - - 0.16 0.16
TR Li Ka Cheung, Eric 0.16 = = = 0.16 0.16
BiER Cheng Mo Chi 0.16 = = = 0.16 0.16
BRE B Benard Charnwut Chan 0.16 - - - 0.16 0.16
A Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon 0.16 - - - 0.16 0.16
R Song Lin 0.03 0.61 0.09 0.82 1.55 3.47
PRIGIMR Chen Shulin - 0.15 0.01 0.94 1.10 3.22
& Kwong Man Him 0.04 1.53 0.04 1.39 3.00 3.58
FhbE Wang Shuaiting 0.05 - - - 0.05 0.08
ZBR Keung Chi Wang, Ralph - - - - - 0.77
A&t Total 1.75 11.83 0.78 7.61 21.97 -
—TTNF 2008 177 11.85 0.86 5.97 - 20.45
g TEADNBEMFE 2 LEHE - BRALTT 1 The bonus payment is determined with reference to the operating results,
ERBRRETSRABTEE - individual performance and comparable market statistics during both
years.
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T-. AfuESHFES 11. Five Highest Paid Employees
FRAENESFEEEFENM(ZESE The five highest paid employees during the year included four
A ESE FBEEHN L XM (2008: four) directors, details of whose remunerations are set out
T o B —(ZFTNF : —fL )&= % in note 10 above. The details of the remunerations paid to the
EEFTEZ S ZMEFBRT other one (2008: one) highest paid employee are as follows:

—EENF ZEENF
2009 2008
BERER BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
ER e K2R Basic salaries and allowances 1.72 1.67
NES MR Provident fund contributions 0.06 -
BEATEAT Bonus paid 0.70 3.12
2.48 479
—f(Z2TNF  —f)ESHMNT T The emoluments of this one (2008: one) highest paid individual
#) 18 JZ F 78 %5 2,000,001 2 78 ¥ 2,500,000 were within the band from HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 (2008:
(ZE2EZEN\F: & ¥ 4500001F 8 & HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000).
5,000,000) °
—.BEAES 12. Staff Provident Fund
B BE A Hong Kong

AEBFREZAEHBAZREESELE
BRI E - ZFABIZEERARE
BMEESHER YHBILEEZESRE
B HHBEIRBEEEAHFSZBER
S - MEBE TRESH 2 EME
Y AR SR BRI AR BARUAR AN SR B 2 AR o

The Group operates various defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all Hong Kong employees. The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The amount of
contributions is based on a specified percentage of the basic salary
of employees and any forfeited contributions in respect of
unvested benefits of staff leavers are used to reduce the Group’s
contributions.

—EENF —EE)N\F
2009 2008
BERER BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
AEBHBE NES 2 HR Group contributions to staff
provident fund 31 31
[REDE P2l ¢S Forfeited contributions
utilised - -
BireiEm ik 2 58 Amount charged to
consolidated profit and
loss account 31 31

= AR B A 2R W R

Un-utilised forfeited
contributions - -
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BEAEE W) 12. Staff Provident Fund (continued)
o ] A 3t B Chinese Mainland
AREEBEFBERNMHESHERNME M The employees of the Group in the Chinese Mainland are members
BT EENBERERRRENEEIRN of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
KE - REBAMRZTEZMETEREE respective local government in the Chinese Mainland. The Group is
BOLMER  (EAENES - ~NEEE required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to
I ERT B — B E R e - the schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to these schemes is to make the specified
contributions.
B Emh R A RKRETEIMELEESE The total cost charged to the consolidated profit and loss account
R PR A B A X EB B 628 BETT in respect of the above-mentioned schemes in the Chinese
(ZZZNF  B¥c36HET) © Mainland amounted to approximately HK$628 million (2008:
HK$536 million).
. BE 13. Taxation
—EENF —EEN\F
2009 2008
BEEER BEAET
HKS million HK$ million
HERE 2% Continuing operations
AEEHRE Current taxation
&% Hong Kong 108 85
FR B Chinese Mainland 708 615
)N Overseas 4 5
820 705
IEERE Deferred taxation
B Hong Kong
—REE — Current year 190 96
—TRBE - Change in tax rate - (59)
B A, Chinese Mainland (94) 21
916 763
DRIRE SR Discontinued operations
REEBIE Current taxation
B Hong Kong 5 8
AR Chinese Mainland 78 72
83 80
EEBE Deferred taxation
B Hong Kong
—ARFE — Current year ()] @
B i Chinese Mainland ®3) (12)
76 67
992 830




T=. BE)
BRI BRI 2 (A3t R B
PR B R 16.5%( = FF\F  16.5%) it
o

PR B AR ZAERIIRIEEER
A BIR (A 5 ERTOR N B © oMK
HRE AR CERTEAE -

AR BB RARR AR A 2 HIBEA BIR f
RAZBNGRBREAE ZERUA

13.

B BEMEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Taxation (continued)
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits for the year.

Chinese Mainland income tax has been provided for based on the
estimated assessable profits in accordance with the relevant tax
laws applicable to the subsidiaries in the Chinese Mainland.
Overseas taxation is calculated at the rates prevailing in the
respective jurisdictions.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong Profits

BT - Tax rate as follows:
“EThEF ZEENF
2009 2008
BEAER BEAET
HKS million HK$ million
E‘%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ?ﬁ‘l( TEIEEIRE & Profit before taxation
AT EREE) (excluding share of net
results of associates) 4,455 3,424
B R 16.5%( —TT)\F ¢ Calculated at a taxation
16.5% )5t B 2 Bi1E rate of 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) 735 565
HihADEABEER TR X Effect of different taxation
-7 rates in other jurisdictions 43 186
IR Z A Income not subject to
taxation (102) (147)
AR 2 Expenses not deductible for
taxation purposes 77 133
ERAFAIRERER A Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses (13) (54)
DS 7 Effect of change in tax rate - (59)
*ﬁﬁﬁauzmlﬁ Tax loss not recognised 381 276
EEZREBIE Overprovision on taxation in
previous year (28) (34)
e AIVNGIE T ) Income earning companies
exempted from taxation
(note) (174) (107)
Ko BCHE 2 FEHFTEH Withholding tax on
undistributed profits 73 71
MBS H Taxation charge 992 830

HiEE - AEESHETEALEENHB IR E
ETHBRRHRBBES - XN EEFE
ER R B APTSH -

Note: Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries operating in the Chinese Mainland are
eligible for certain tax holidays or concessions and were exempted from
Chinese Mainland income taxes for the year.
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Tm.

TA.

RE 14. Dividends
—EENF ZZETNF
2009 2008
BETER BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
“ZETAFENBRIREFHRE 2009 interim dividend paid of
TR A 0.14 7T HK$0.14 (2008: HK$0.15)
(ZBEN\E : B¥o157T) per ordinary share 335 359
ZETNFMEIRERIARE 2009 proposed final
BRI B 0.35 7T dividend of HK$0.35
(ZZTZTNF : Bo.257T) (2008: HK$0.25) per
ordinary share 839 597
1,174 956
EARRBIN 2T —TF=A =+ RBAHET At the meeting held on 25 March 2010, the directors proposed final
mEEL  EZRRERARESRTER dividend of HK$0.35 (2008: HK$0.25) per ordinary share. This
B 035 TL(ZZTZTN\F : B o0.257T) © proposed dividend, which is calculated on the Company’s number
B B IR AR RN BRITESE R E of ordinary shares as at the date of the board meeting, is not
HeE@RREEE - ZER S ENE recognised as a liability in these financial statements. The total
BMENEREBE - AFEEUBREFN dividends paid by the Company, including the final dividend for
REARRRMAREBEERE T the year 2008, amounting to HK$932 million (2008: HK$1,075 million)
NEERRERE - B ABE 932 BET are reflected in the current year financial statements.
ZEENF B 1,075 BEIT) ©
BRIELE XK SHEZHEA  15. Discontinued Operations/Disposal Group Held for Sale

BTETRZUVHEER  R-TTNEF
ToAE ARECEME=TN\ZE
BENEEEMMRBEEEHBERTE

RA] e

BE-—BEHR-TTNF+-H++H
MEEWmZ  AEERZEREKEREE
38.8 BILHI & miER W EMSHER - 1
BENDBRRET, UEHREBEEAEE
T EXBT °

In order to focus on the core consumer business, the Group
transferred its textile business at the end of December 2009 to its
parent company under the Asset Swap Agreement (as defined in
note 38B).

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 17 December
2009, the Group agreed to dispose of its brand-fashion distribution
operation for an aggregate consideration of HK$3,880 million,
which was previously included in the Group’s retail division for
segment reporting purposes.



T BRIEREZER SHEZHER 15

FEIERRIEE RIS ETSHEE N
I

B BEMEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Discontinued Operations/Disposal Group Held for Sale

(continued)

The results of the discontinued operations included in the
consolidated profit and loss account are set out below:

—EENF ZETNF
2009 2008
BYEET BEBEET
HKS million HK$ million
ERILRE R 2 RFERF Profit for the year from
discontinued operations
Wz Revenue 7,625 7,571
W Expenses (7,278) (7,025)
FEEEE A EIE TR Share of losses of associates (7] ®)
FR A5 AT A Profit before taxation 343 544
TiIE Taxation (76) (67)
CREESinail Profit after taxation 267 477
REL MNP BCR Profit for the year attributable
to:
RABRRE R Shareholders of the
Company 128 272
DY R A Minority interests 139 205
267 477
ERERO RIS XK BEFE Net assets of discontinued
operations transferred 3,385 -
ERILKREEBCRERE Cash flows from discontinued
operations
LEEB) 2R R AT Net cash from operating
activities 750 542
AR E RS2 FRE Net cash used in investing
activities (106) (382)
RARBE RS FHE Net cash used in financing
activities (591) (101)
FIRERE Net cash flows 53 59

ZMAIZAER DA China Resources Enterprise, Limited © Annual Report 2009 F 3k

147



148

A BEMTEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10, DRIEEE %% SHEZHEA  15. Discontinued Operations/Disposal Group Held for Sale
(#%&) (continued)
DaEGABEAREEBYNNEE—Z The major classes of assets and liabilities classified as held for sale
ThE+ZA=+—HIBEAFLENE as at 31 December 2009, which have been presented separately in
ZEENRABESBENT ¢ the consolidated balance sheet, are as follows:
—EENF
2009
BEEER
HKS million
=& Stocks 288
B 5 Rk E A e W R IE Trade and other receivables 213
W& RIRTTHER Cash and bank balances 574
Ht&E Other assets 155
DEAGHENEERRE Total assets classified as held for sale 1,230
E 5 R HMPERFRIE Trade and other payables (294)
REHEX Short term loans (170)
HibBE Other liabilities (80)
SEAFLENEE ZBHAERTE Total liabilities associated with assets classified
as held for sale (544)
X BRER 16. Earnings Per Share
—EENEF ZEEN\F
2009 2008
BEEER BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
BEKERCRLIEE ¥ For continuing and
discontinued operations
BREAREERF TIRE T The calculation of the basic
HIEHE - and diluted earnings per
share is based on the
following data:
&7 Earnings
FRAFTE SRR ER RS BT Profit attributable to
ARA AR FEAG 5 shareholders of the
Company for the purposes
of calculating basic and
diluted earnings per share 2,913 2,322
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TR, BRERN @) 16. Earnings Per Share (continued)
—EENEF T N\F
2009 2008
RHEHER Number of shares
FADARHE SRR E AN & ) 7 I A% Weighted average number of
INHEFHEL ordinary shares for the
purpose of calculating basic
earnings per share 2,390,477,417 2,387,587,624
¥EBARER BT e A Effect of dilutive potential
ordinary shares:
— BN — Share options 6,046,184 10,289,705
AU ESREE AT 0L mR Weighted average number of
INFET 8L ordinary shares for the
purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share 2,396,523,601  2,397,877,329
—EENF T N\F
2009 2008
BEEET BERET
HKS million HK$ million
BHERE 2 For continuing operations
ERRER RSB A TIRE T The calculation of the basic
BIRETH ¢ and diluted earnings per
share is based on the
following data:
EZR Earnings
FRAFTE G EAR RS BT Profit attributable to
ANA AR FEAG & shareholders of the
Company for the purposes
of calculating basic and
diluted earnings per share 2,913 2,322
W Less:
BRI EEB 2 AFIRE Profit attributable to
A& T shareholders of the
Company from discontinued
operations (128) (272)
FRAFTE SR ER RS R Profit attributable to
FBEEEB 2 AR TR shareholders of the
FEAE & Company for the purposes
of calculating basic and
diluted earnings per share
from continuing operations 2,785 2,050

BRERRN M ERE SR N ARG E R
EXX PRt —E o

DRIERE %75
RIEERIEEE 2 EEPTEERNARR K
REGEZF AEE28BET(ZTZN
F B2 2BB L) R EXFLNET
RERZBNREREERFNEEGE B
IR T SR SRR E AR R R T
SBAF DR ASREE .05 T(ZZEEN
F BB o) RERAEE .05 T(ZF
TNF - B oaTr) °

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for
both basic and diluted earnings per share.

For discontinued operations

Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share for the
discontinued operations are HK$0.05 per share (2008: HK$0.11 per
share) and HK$o0.05 per share (2008: HK$o0.11 per share)
respectively, based on the profit attributable to shareholders of the
Company from the discontinued operations of HK$128 million
(2008: HK$272 million) and the denominators detailed above for
both basic and diluted earnings per share.
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Tt. BEEE 17. Fixed Assets
BHEBAN
EERY
TR Hit% - BERRE
Interests in  Other property, plant and equipment
leasehold land =it
held for own HEEE BETEE
RAWE use under  gyjidings Other
Investment operating held for fixed N A&t
properties leases  own use assets  Sub-total Total
BEERER E¥EEL B¥EEx B¥EEx B¥%EER B¥EER
HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million
REE The Group
AR ffE Cost or valuation
RZEENF—HA—H At 1 January 2008 7,299 2,828 8,727 20,566 29,293 39,420
ERESR Exchange difference 65 132 537 1,275 1,812 2,009
IREEHTB AR /£ EA  Relating to acquisition of
subsidiaries/business — 21 77 9 86 107
HERE AR,/ £ Relating to disposal of
subsidiaries/business = = @) (3) (10) (10)
NE Additions = 652 338 6,096 6,434 7,086
HE Disposals (15) (51) (298) (1,061) (1,359) (1,425)
BHHE Reclassifications (179) 733 1,181 (1,780) (599) (45)
BHAR Adjustment on valuation 483 - 1 - 1 494
RZFENF At 31 December 2008 and
+-R=t—HkK 1 January 2009
—ZTNFE—A—H 7,653 4,315 10,566 25,102 35,668 47,636
ERER Exchange difference = - Q) ©) ) )
WEERB AR £/ A Relating to acquisition of
subsidiaries/business - 184 339 490 829 1,013
HEMBRE,/EBEEH  Relating to disposal of
subsidiaries/business — — () - (1) ()
WRAREH T EER Asset swap transaction involving
BEOBRLS entities under common
(MEF=+NZ) control (note 38B) (44) (318) (401) (3,535) (3,936) (4,299)
NE Additions - 514 502 3,748 4,250 4,764
HE Disposals (57) ©® (86) (759) (845) (908)
b Reclassifications 29 137 1,075 (1,306) (231 (65)
BEAR Adjustment on valuation 1,128 - 13 - 13 1,141
BENEENHEAGHEN Reclassified to assets classified as
BE held for sale (10) - - (263) (263) (273)
RZZTNE At 31 December 2009
+-A=+—-H 8,699 4,826 12,006 23,474 35,480 49,005
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‘I"t @Eﬁ%? 17. Fixed Assets (continued)
BEERAN
EERY
TR Hitpy% - BERRE
Interests in  Other property, plant and equipment
leasehold land =it
held for own HEEE BETEE
RAME use under  gyjidings Other
Investment operating  peid for fixed N &t
properties leases  oyp use assets  Sub-total Total
BEEER B¥EET B¥EEx B¥%EEx B¥%EER B¥EER
HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million
ZEHMERRE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
RZZZTNF—F—H At 1 January 2008 = 340 1,616 7,588 9,204 9,544
ERER Exchange difference = 17 115 512 627 644
HEHEAR, EHKEE L Relating to disposal of
subsidiaries/business = = (6) @) 8) @®)
REBHE Charge for the year = 79 332 1,639 1,971 2,050
HERRE Written back on disposals - (19) (182) (784) (966) (985)
BEREZMERSR Impairment loss recognised = = 22 61 83 83
EMAE Reclassifications - 115 (136) (24) (160) (45)
R-ZTENEF At 31 December 2008 and
+=-A=+—HBRK 1 January 2009
“ETNF—A—H = 532 1,761 8,990 10,751 11,283
BREREH TEEN Asset swap transaction involving
BEOHRRS entities under common control
(HEF=1TNZ) (note 38B) = (105) (318) (1,645) (1,963) (2,069)
AEEHE Charge for the year = 13 424 1,914 2,338 2,451
HERE Written back on disposals - - (21) (630) (651) (651)
ERRZRERSE Impairment loss recognised = = = 67 67 67
E g Reclassifications = 8 (32) (41) 73) (65)
BENEESHEAGHEN Reclassified to assets classified
BE as held for sale = = = (170) (170) (170)
R-ZZSNE At 31 December 2009
+-A=+—-8° = 548 1,814 8,485 10,299 10,847
REFE Net book values
R-ZETAE At 31 December 2009
+-A=+—H 8,699 4,278 10,192 14,989 25,181 38,158
RZET\F At 31 December 2008
+-BA=+-"H 7,653 3,783 8,805 16,112 24,917 36,353
BTN EASIRZEE Representing assets stated:
b WUN At cost = 4,826 12,006 23,474 35,480 40,306
BETNFEEMHE At 2009 professional valuation 8,699 - - - - 8,699
8,699 4,826 12,006 23,474 35,480 49,005
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+t. BEEE %) 17. Fixed Assets (continued)
HAW3% - BERFE
Other property, plant and equipment
REME HihEE
Investment g Others et 45t
properties  pyijldings assets  Sub-total Total
BEEELT BY¥EEx A¥BEERT A¥EER BY¥EER
HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million
NG| The Company
B AR Sk 4 B Cost or valuation
RZTZNF—A—H At 1 January 2008 51 2 21 23 74
NE Additions - - 1 1 1
RZZTT)\F At 31 December 2008 and
+=ZA=+—HBkK 1 January 2009
—EZNF-HA—-H 51 2 22 24 75
NE Additions - - 1 1 1
e Disposals - - @) @) €)
RZZETNF At 31 December 2009
+-A=1+—H 51 2 22 24 75
ZEMERRE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
R=ZZFZ\F—-HA—H At 1 January 2008 - 1 17 18 18
REEHE Charge for the year = - 2 5 5
RZZTTN\F At 31 December 2008 and
+-A=+—HK 1 January 2009
—ZThFE—-R—H - 1 19 20 20
REEHE Charge for the year - = 1 1 1
i & el Written back on disposals - - ® @ @
RZZZNF At 31 December 2009
+=-A=+—-H - 1 19 20 20
REFE Net book values
RZZZNE At 31 December 2009
+=-A=+—H 51 1 3 4 55
RZZTN\F At 31 December 2008
+-A=+—-H 51 1 8 4 55
BN AHFIRZ Representing assets stated:
BE
B At cost - 2 22 24 24
B_ETNFEEME At 2009 professional
valuation 51 - - - 51
51 2 22 24 75
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S SE TS RA B TR $RAE HO M 2 N iR A o

and equipments scrapped due to closure of a factory under one of

the manufacturing businesses.
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. BEEE %) 17. Fixed Assets (continued)
—EENF ZETNF
2009 2008
BYEET BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
V¥R 2 REERE Carrying amounts of the
property interests comprise:
EFH The Group
BB Hong Kong
RREZNFE 2WME Properties held on long
lease 5,774 4,758
LR ERANEE 2 Properties held on
medium-term lease 2,969 2,921
R A it Chinese Mainland
RREZNFB 2 WE Properties held on long
lease 3,680 3,946
LR ANEE 2 E Properties held on
medium-term lease 10,646 8,518
REBZNEB 2 E Properties held on short
lease 69 61
pisE Overseas
LR ANEE 2 E Properties held on
medium-term lease 14 14
REBZNEB 2 E Properties held on short
lease 17 23
23,169 20,241
AT The Company
BB Hong Kong
R ANEE 2 Properties held on
medium-term lease 51 51
FPEIRit Chinese Mainland
R ERANEE 2 Properties held on
medium-term lease 1 1
52 52

B —ETAF+-_A=1+—BHZ2EREVED A The investment properties have been valued at 31 December 2009
HBV EEABEMBERITERAREL by Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an independent professional
HE - HED2RAEVEE RO valuer. The valuation was arrived at by reference to market
SHEMEE ° evidence of recent transaction prices for similar properties.

Zz WRIEENF+-_A=+—8 FEEA B At 31 December 2008, fixed assets with carrying amounts of
B 221 AB T2 BEEEEERIERS HK$221 million are pledged for short term loans in the sum of
B ons BB ZEEERCEAR - HK$244 million.

A RAFE  BESBEXEREAEF L C  During the year, impairment loss was mainly made to those plant
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. BEEE %) 17. Fixed Assets (continued)
T HEuETEEFTEBIEEREIR  #eSR D  Other fixed assets mainly comprise construction in progress, plant
- SRS M SR%E R and machinery, leasehold improvements, vessels, cold storage
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MR TE

facilities, furniture and equipment and motor vehicles.

HENE
HEIR  HERB #E
Construction Plant and Leasehold Hity A&t
in progress  machinery improvements Others Total
BEERELT BY%EExT BY¥EEx B%EEx B%EER
HKS million ~ HKS million ~ HKS million ~ HKS million  HKS million
KEE The Group
A A Cost or valuation
RZEENF—F—H At 1 January 2008 2,539 13,101 2,305 2,621 20,566
ERES Exchange difference 157 901 134 83 1,275
WENB AR, EHEEA Relating to acquisition of
subsidiaries/business 1 5 - 3 9
HEMBAR/ RSN Relating to disposal of
subsidiaries/business - €} = = G)
RE Additions 4,953 340 4527 376 6,096
HE Disposals - (807) (88) (166) (1,061)
EE T Reclassifications (4,783) 2,895 50 58 (1,780)
R-BT)\E+-A=1—H At 31 December 2008 and
R=ZThE-A—H 1 January 2009 2,867 16,432 2,828 2,975 25,102
EXER Exchange difference ® @ = - Q)
{1 -UNS V371522 UN Relating to acquisition of
subsidiaries/business - 485 - 3 490
WREAREH TEENEE Asset swap transaction involving
EBRS(ME=+NZ2) entities under common control
(note 38B) 39 (3,993) 319 100 (3,535)
e Additions 2,447 531 439 331 3,748
HE Disposals ® (322) (247) (182) (759)
ES x| Reclassifications (3,606) 2,232 57 1 (1,306)
ERRENEAFLENEE Reclassified to assets classified
as held for sale - - (201) (62) (263)
R-FENE+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2009 1,738 15,363 3,195 3,178 23,474
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HEME
ERIR  BsRB £
Construction  Plant and Leasehold Hitr ait
in progress  machinery improvements Others Total
BEEERT BY%EEn BYEEnR BYEER BYEER
HKS million  HKS million ~ HKS million  HKS million  HKS million
ZEHTERRE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
R=FZ\E—F—H At 1 January 2008 - 5,053 1,078 1,457 7,588
ERER Exchange difference - 403 69 40 512
HEMBAR/ EHEEH Relating to disposal of
subsidiaries/business - @ = = @
KEEHE Charge for the year = 987 346 306 1,639
HERD Written back on disposals = (579) 67) (139) (784)
BRR L AEEE Impairment loss recognised = 56 = 5 61
E-bipaks Reclassifications - (22) = @) (24)
R-ZENE+-A=+—H At 31 December 2008 and
k—ETNF-F—H 1 January 2009 = 5,896 1,426 1,668 8,990
BREREGTERNEE Asset swap transaction involving
BB S(HE=TNT) entities under common control
(note 38B) = (1,604) (16) (25) (1,645)
AEEHE Charge for the year - 1,187 415 312 1,914
HERR Written back on disposals = (244) (222) (164) (630)
EHRRERE Impairment loss recognised = 65 = 2 67
Xk Reclassifications - (18) 10 (33) ()
ERBENEABIENEAE Reclassified to assets classified
as held for sale - - (123) (47) (170)
RZZZNE+ZR=1—H At 31 December 2009 = 5,282 1,490 1,713 8,485
REHFE Net book values
RZZTNE+ZR=+—H At 31 December 2009 1,738 10,081 1,705 1,465 14,989
RZFZN\E+-A=+—H At 31 December 2008 2,867 10,536 1,402 1,307 16,112
BRI EE - Representing assets stated:
BRA At cost 1,738 15,363 3,195 3,178 23,474
B-TTNFHEMRE At 2009 professional valuation = = = = =
1,738 15,363 3,195 3178 23,474
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TN EE

18. Goodwill
BEEET
HKS million
NEE The Group
BRANME Cost
RZZZNF—H—H At 1 January 2008 6,137
EHER Exchange difference 213
& TRl NGIVE 3 Acquisition of subsidiaries/business 3
BB A B IR A S Increase in equity interests in subsidiaries 36
RZZEZNF+ZA=+—HBK At 31 December 2008 and 1 January 2009
—EENF—-H—H 6,389
ERER Exchange difference )
URBEM B AT, %55 Acquisition of subsidiaries/business 63
I B N B IR AN RE RS Increase in equity interests in subsidiaries 114
WREREG T EENEETR Asset swap transaction involving
RH(KFE=1+N\2) entities under common control (note 38B) 2,683
—EENF+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2009 9,242
ZEPRERE Accumulated impairment losses
RZZZENF—A—H - ZZTTN\F At 1 January 2008, 31 December 2008 and
TZA=T—HAR=ZZEENF—HA—H 1 January 2009 4
EIER Z REEE Impairment loss recognised 13
RZZENF+ZA=1+—H At 31 December 2009 17
E-EETE Carrying values
RZZEThF+=R=+—H At 31 December 2009 9,225
R-ZEZEN\F+_A=1+—H At 31 December 2008 6,385

BERAE EZHRSEEEN
(fcGU)) » LTI AE BB ETHEERM
BT AEENEMBZEERR - UTA
PEESTRZ HERE -

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the cash

generating unit (“CGU”) representing an operating entity within the
operating segments identified by the Group for the purpose of
segment reporting. A segment level summary of the goodwill

allocation is presented below:

—EEBhF T N\F

2009 2008

BEHER B EET

HKS million HK$ million

=& Retail 4,023 1,250

/) Beverage 4,829 4,667
BT K AEH Food Processing and

Distribution 373 379

FAk3 Textile - 89




B BEMEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TN, B &) 18. Goodwill (continued)
CGUZ AT Bl 58 ik BB ETEAE The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based on a
F o ZEAERTEAEAREEEEREY value in use calculation. These calculations use cash flow
—FHMBTEEMEL 2B RE - projections based on financial budgets approved by management
B =FH RS RENAREE R XD covering a three-year period and a discount rate of 8.5% per
B8 MAARSRELRFEITERR annum. Cash flows beyond the three-year period are extrapolated
D ZNBERINASTEE - using the nominal growth rates stated below.
FHBEFTEEZEE®/R Key assumptions used for the value in use calculations:
HBHBESRENDHETZ
ERIERE
Nominal growth rate beyond
the initial cash flow projections
(%)
—EEhEF —ETNF
2009 2008
=€ Retail 8% 6%
N Beverage 5% 3%
RN L R AEsH Food Processing and
Distribution 3% 3%
Wk Textile N/A 3%
Th. RIMB ARz s 19. Interests in Subsidiaries
—EEhEF —ETN\F
2009 2008
BEEET BERET
HKS million HK$ million
RATE] The Company
FE MR - KAE Unlisted shares, at cost 15,665 17,410
JEURHI B A RIFIA Amounts due from
subsidiaries 5,174 420
FETHI B A RIFRIA Amounts due to subsidiaries (4,304) (422)
16,535 17,408
REZEZENF+_A=T—HBZxZHE Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2009 are
RRFIETIENFE 183 EEF 189 & © set out on pages 183 to 189.
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—t. BB EE

Other Intangible Assets

(5] :
Brand names
BYEEER
HKS million
NEME The Group
BN Cost
R-ZENF—HA—H At 1 January 2008 239
R ERE Exchange difference 25
RIEBEEN\F+_A=1t—"HBK At 31 December 2008 and 1 January 2009
—EENF-HA—H 264
WEE B ARl %15 Acquisition of subsidiaries/business 34
WRARZEG TEEBNEELGRR S Asset swap transaction involving entities
(Mz=E=+NZ) under common control (note 38B) 1
RE Additions 6
RZZZNF+_A=1+—H At 31 December 2009 305
REHEERE Accumulated amortisation and impairment
R_ZEENF—HA—H At 1 January 2008 158
TERERE Exchange difference 21
NEFHH Charge for the year 14
ERERZRERE Impairment loss recognised 3
RIEBEEN\F+_A=1t—"HBK At 31 December 2008 and 1 January 2009
—ETNF—H—H 196
REFHE Charge for the year 13
BRERZREEE Impairment loss recognised 1
R-BZNF+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2009 210
BREFE Net book values
RZZEZENF+=-_A=+—H At 31 December 2009 95
R-ZEENEFE+=-_A=+—~1 At 31 December 2008 68




B BEMEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- REE AR 2R 21. Interests in Associates
ZBEAF ZZETNF
2009 2008
BEEER BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
NEE The Group
LT Unlisted
EIEE/(&fE)FE Share of net assets/
(liabilities) 259 143
2 Goodwill 136 135
L & A B 5RIR Amounts due from
associates - 1,675
395 1,953
HE_ZZ/N\F+_A=+—HImEK The amounts due from associates as at 31 December 2008 were
Bt N B FRIE N AR R ROIRIR T IS B R unsecured and interest bearing at prevailing market rate. Certain
TEF B o EpH EAEE A REAINE major associates were disposed of as part of the asset swap as
=+ N\BEBENEEGR—HDMEE ° disclosed in note 38B.
AT RS E R & QR 2 BN 5 & The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
¥ associates is set out below:
—EThE  —TE)\F
2009 2008
BEEERL BEBEET
HKS million HK$ million
BEBE Total assets 1,964 45,866
BERE Total liabilities (938) (46,786)
BE,/(aE)FE Net assets/(liabilities) 1,026 (920)
AEBEEGHE QR BEETE Group’s share of
net assets of associates 259 143
& Revenue 11,655 14,066
NE A Profit for the year 2,971 3,415
A& FE (R B A RN g ) Group’s share of profits of
associates for the year 320 367
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il

AERE 22. Available for Sale Investments
—EThE ZETNF
2009 2008
BYEER BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
EFH The Group
REINM ETARG - AR EE Listed shares in Chinese
Mainland, at fair value 141 71
BRI LM Unlisted shares in Hong Kong 9 9
AR A 3E_E TR Unlisted shares in Chinese
Mainland 5 31
14 40
155 111
DT Analysed as:
FERE Non-current 142 40
mE Current 13 71
155 111
ETREREN AR BERLBMISRE The fair value of investment in listed equity shares are determined
MHEE © with reference to quoted market prices.
FE ETRMIZ AR & &8 B 2R ER The investments in unlisted equity shares are measured at costs
B - HREBARBEMATTHERAK - & less impairment at each balance sheet date. As the range of
AR SEHEEAAEE - reasonable fair value estimates is so significant, their fair values
cannot be ascertained reliably.
RAARBEFABRNEREE 23. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

REEZEFKBE)ERAR(ERE
B DR-_ZZNFTA-TNAARENE
EOBHE  AEBEERARKLIFRLE
% BESBESNEEBEEBNDH
PR ([ B3R ) - ZXNRERE
75 0.3 {8 7T AR BN — M E R Ko A R B A
MR LR EHERT o N - BEEHEEAS
RWEEI Z RN EFREHME - X
FABNAEE 33 BB RBEER - &
B TAREOBEBEHARBHLEE
SHBESSEN o WIREENPIEER
BAonBEFABENSREE -

—EENF A=+ —BZERAREE
AABRNEREECHBLEEGLER
BT E EREERAR D RIELAE
A ETHERI A B EERAME
E - HETEYIFABRGRN TS EURIE
REHE o

Pursuant to an asset swap agreement signed with China Resources
(Holdings) Limited (“CRH”) in 29 October 2009, the Group
transferred certain of its non-core businesses, being its entire
textile division and minority interests in container terminal
operations (“Port Interests”) plus a payment of a cash
consideration of HK$30 million in exchange for a brewery and a
hypermarket chain operating in the Chinese Mainland. In addition,
the Agreement preserved a right for the Group to share in any
upside potential from the container terminal operations should
CRH Group receive higher than average annual dividends or
interest in the future or sell the Port Interests at a price higher
than HK$3,300 million. This preserved right were designated as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss have been
valued at 31 December 2009 by Vigers Appraisal and Consulting
Limited, an independent professional valuer. The valuation was
arrived at by using the binomial option pricing model with inputs
that are not based on observable market data.



B BEMEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—tm, R RIE 24. Prepayments
ZBEAF ZZETNF
2009 2008
BEEER BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
REME The Group
R+—A=+—HzH&EELHA Rental deposits at
31 December 384 277
HR—FRNENR 2 5% Portion to be utilised within
one year 123 79
1R —F R E A 2 50 Portion to be utilised after
one year 261 198
R+ A=1+—HB2#&% Balance at 31 December 384 277
“tiLEE 25. Stocks
—EEhF —ETN\F
2009 2008
BYEER BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
NEME The Group
HEME Properties held for sale 119 131
RATH Raw materials 1,396 2,006
SFem R BEME Consumables and
packing materials 4,709 3,956
R Work-in-progress 321 429
2R G Finished goods 4,588 4,987
11,133 11,509
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St BEZREMEWT 26. Trade and Other Receivables
TEH PN
The Group The Company
—EENF —ZETNF ZEENF —EEN\F
2009 2008 2009 2008

BEEET BEEHETT BEEET BEHETT
HKS million  HK$ million  HKS million  HK$ million

EUE SRR Trade receivables 1,127 1,803 - -
IR Provision for doubtful debts (120) (168) - -
1,007 1,635 - -
I (E R FE UG IR Value-added tax receivables 1,346 956 - -
FEfT A Prepayments 1,016 1,333 - 1
Bfiize Deposits paid 312 375 3 33
HAtb U GRIA Other receivables 1,490 1,094 5 5
FEUHI B A RIFKIA Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 1,013 1,074
FEWEARIEE Amounts due from fellow
M8 RIFkIE subsidiaries 2 18 - _
e & A BIFRIE Amounts due from associates 39 33 - =
5,212 5,444 1,021 1,113
AEE—RGETEPUTZEER: The Group normally trades with its customers under the following
credit terms:
() BRI (@) cash upon delivery; and
(Z) "X ¢E (b) open credit within 6o days
REEANEKRE SRR ZRERS TN The following is the aging analysis of trade receivables at the
N balance sheet date:
—EENF —EEN\F
2009 2008
BEEET BERET
HKS million HK$ million
AEE The Group
0-30K o — 30 days 563 1,050
31— 60K 31— 60 days 180 239
61— 90X 61— 90 days 87 112
> 90K > 90 days 177 234
1,007 1,635
REERARNBNGEEBNE S R HEMFE The fair value of the Group’s and the Company’s trade and other
WEIB AR EEAERmERS © receivables at balance sheet date was approximate to the

corresponding carrying amount.
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26.

B BEMEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

RIRAEE 2 # 8 Movement in the provision for doubtful debts

—EEhF —ETNF

2009 2008

BYEEBT BEEET

HKS million HK$ million

R—HA—H At 1 January 168 165

BHERZBEEBE Impairment losses recognised 3 7
FE xR e HE e o/ Amounts written off as

uncollectible ©) 8)

W HERKT B A F) Acquisition of subsidiaries 2 =
WA RS T BB EE Asset swap transaction

ERZS(HF=1+N\2) involving entities under

common control (note 38B) (47 -

JERER Exchange difference - 4

R+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 120 168

BHR B SRR B BR =k 9 BR e Aging of past due but not impaired

—EEhF —ETNF

2009 2008

BYEEBT BEEET

HKS million HK$ million

BEITE 308 Less than 30 days past due 67 195

w31 - 60 H 31-60 days past due 55 71

#HI61 - 90 H 61-90 days past due 20 103

#mHlgo HAA L Over 9o days past due 40 47

182 416

HARBH - TMERERNEKTR - B RT
REERNEF » P FHEIERCE

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of

default.
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SttOTAESRIA

27. Derivative Financial Instruments

ZBEAE ZEEAFE ZETNF ZTTNF

2009 2009 2008 2008
BE af& BE =R
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

BETET ABY¥EExT Akagr BEEET
HKS million  HKS million  HK$ million  HK$ million

NEH The Group
LAY &=t ABRI2 2 Derivatives under hedge
PTETA accounting
WEeREBE Cash flow hedge:
== EE 4 Interest rate swaps 11 26 - 11
11 26 = 11
DT : Analysed as:
JERE Non-current 10 26 = 11
mED Current 1 - _ _
11 26 = 11

U BRIERME BRENNXZHE
B —RIRBREREE M - R AE
EREENAEZNEMHHNRSRER
g o A 45 2 N B R A0 I BUAS R (R B 3
£ BRRAMEENSE  EEKTEN
R EERRNME - EIERRAER -

¥R B A R s R A E - SRR R A
Hif R R & OANEERR - ITEARR
REMENTAETE -

FEBHMEE HER - SRR A=
F(ZETN\FA=F) , YEBAXKES
HEE—IR o AR ZEF R BB HR
7TRIZHF B (THIBOR]) °

All interest rate swap contracts exchanging floating rate interest
amounts for fixed rate interest amounts are designated as cash
flow hedges in order to reduce the Group’s cash flow exposure
resulting from variable interest rates on borrowings. The interest
rate swaps and the interest payments on the loan occur
simultaneously and the amount deferred in equity is recognised in
the profit and loss account over the period that the floating rate
interest payments on debt impact the profit and loss account.

The fair value of interest rate swaps at the reporting date is
determined by discounting the future cash flows using the curves
at reporting date and the credit risk inherent in the contract.

The interest rate swaps have a maturity up to three years (2008:
three years) from the balance sheet date and settle on monthly or
quarterly basis and the floating rate on the interest swaps is the
Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offer Rate (“HIBOR™).



St EZREMEMNRKIE

28. Trade and Other Payables

B BEMEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rEE ¥ N
The Group The Company
—EEAF ZZTTN\F ZBEAE —TIT)N\F
2009 2008 2009 2008
BYEEHERT AKAErT BYEEBER BBEET
HKS million  HK$ million  HKS million  HK$ million
BN E SR Trade payables 10,332 7,585 - -
TEWRIE Receipt in advance 4,560 2,911 - =
EIREA Accruals 3,670 3,214 20 3
Bilize Deposit received 2,496 1,959 - =
HAbFERFR Other payables 3,863 3,485 391 1
AN PNGIE R Amounts due to subsidiaries - - 91 85
e —MIRFARIFZIE  Amounts due to a

holding company 114 - - -

JENRFARIEEMNE  Amounts due to fellow
NGIE/ S| subsidiaries 72 118 - -
FERE N B FIA Amounts due to associates 14 30 - -
25,121 19,302 502 89

REEBOERNE SRR RER D40

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the balance

N sheet date:
—EENF T N\F
2009 2008
BEHER BERET
HKS million HK$ million

AEE The Group
0-30K o — 30 days 6,416 4,207
31— 60K 31— 60 days 2,128 1,490
61— 90K 61— 9o days 793 607
> 90K > 9o days 995 1,281
10,332 7,585

REBRARARGEE

NHBAAEERELREERS °

B H)E 5 & E A

corresponding carrying amount.
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TR EERER 29A. Short Term Loans
—EEBhF —EEN\F
2009 2008
BEHER BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
INEH The Group
RNERER1A Current portion
— R TE R — unsecured bank loans 458 564
— RGN E A R — long term obligations
under finance leases 1 1
RERTTREMER « FErElRRES Short term bank and
other loans, trust receipts
and overdrafts
—HBHEH — secured - 312
— R — unsecured 2,865 4,608
3,324 5,485
T REAER 29B. Long Term Loans
—EENF —ETNF
2009 2008
BEEET BERET
HKS million HK$ million
NEF The Group
AR AFNERZ EERRITER Unsecured bank loans
repayable within 5 years 9,232 9,027
AR A NEEEER 2 BERIRITER Unsecured bank loans not
wholly repayable within
5 years 3 60
AR AFNERZ EEERER Other unsecured loans
repayable within 5 years 42 52
ARAFRER 2 BRI EE Obligations under finance
leases repayable within
5 years 1 1
9,278 9,140
YR mE & E 2 B ER Current portion included in
current liabilities (459) (565)
8,819 8,575
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B BEMEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29B. Long Term Loans (continued)

—EENE —EEN\F
2009 2008
BEEAER BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
rEH The Group
REABE 2 IERNEAER (0 FEIZ DA T S ER(EIE The non-current portion of
long term liabilities are
repayable as follows:
SBITEM Bank Loans
—FUEEMFR After 1 year, but within
2 years 3,195 1,150
MELEZERFR After 2 years, but within
5 years 5,579 7,313
hEE After 5 years 3 60
HibERK Other Loans
—FUEEMFR After 1 year, but within
2 years 16 19
MELEERFR After 2 years, but within
5 years 26 33
8,819 8,575

AEEFESANEEABEERERELS
BeofBL - R_EENF+-_A=+—
H - EBRFEABE 765 BT ZTRN
F B 62f8IT)

REASEARDFAER 2 EBERIRT
ERz AR EEEERRAERAER
BERRA &L 35%F B RREZIRG
FH T EERARRE—RABRR 2 &1
(TmRERIEBENBARRERE
BRIER) -

REBMBUEE  ETRAREBENZ
FRAER - BEDFIEHIBOR « BBERTT
EZEHFE(TLUBOR]) KA ARRITHE
LB FE A o

AEBEEERZIERFMNEEER
0.41% £ 6.12%( = T T )\ F : 0.66% %
7.47%) & o

The aggregate amount of committed borrowing facilities available
to the Group is HK$8 billion. As at 31 December 2009, a sum of
HK$7.65 billion (2008: HK$6.2 billion) has been drawn down.

Under the terms of the agreements of the Group’s unsecured bank
loans repayable within five years, CRH, a holding company, is
required to remain as a beneficial owner of at least 35% of the
voting shares of the Company or remain as a single largest
shareholder (whether directly or indirectly through its subsidiaries)
of the Company.

The Group has floating rate borrowings denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars, US Dollars and Renminbi with interest rates linked to
HIBOR, London Inter-Bank Offer Rate (“LIBOR”) and the lending
rate stipulated by the People’s Bank of China respectively.

The effective annual interest rates on the Group’s floating rate

borrowings range from mainly 0.41% to 6.12%. (2008: from 0.66%
to 7.47%).
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=t. EEHIR

FRECHEEER BB 2 EEH(RF—
B 2 AR IHAT ) I T

30.

Deferred Taxation

The movement in deferred taxation assets and liabilities (prior to
offsetting of balance within the same taxation jurisdiction)
recognised during the year is as follows:

BB Hitr a&t

Tax losses Others Total
“EEAFE ZET)N\E ZBBAE ZTT/\& ZBEAF ZTI)N\F
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

BEEERT AYEErT BY¥EEx BYaET A%EER AYEER
HKS million  HK$ million  HKS million  HK$ million  HKS million  HK$ million

rEE The Group
EERIBARE Deferred taxation assets
w—A—H At 1 January 50 28 114 91 164 119
ERABRETE/  Credited/(charged)

(#08%) to consolidated profit

and loss account (12) 20 207 19 195 39

MELEH 2 Effect of change in tax rates - - - Q) - (1)
WRIFESITER  Asset swap transaction

MEEGHRRS involving entities under

(FFEE=+N2) common control (note 38B) 28 = - - 28 -
EXRE Exchange rate adjustment - 2 B) 5 ®) 7
BNBENBEARFLHE  Reclassified to assets

WAE classified as held for sale @ - (49) - (51) -
W+=A=+—H At 31 December 64 50 269 114 333 164

BRI IE B E AR BB Az 5 T nl e
RRERHBFEIR A LR - BFBEIE
HEEMER - R-_ETAFE+ A=+
—H AEBRERBBEEEEE
2,316 B BIL(ZFZT/)\F : ¥ 2,0688
En) MAEEREETILSAZRE
IR RAERTRIALE - LSRR
FERAFRER 2 AR BB EIEE S
#2077 BBIL(ZZEZN\F : B 1,675
BEBL) -

Deferred taxation assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profits is probable. At 31 December
2009, the Group has unrecognised tax losses of HK$2,316 million
(2008: HK$2,068 million) which is uncertain as to whether it can
be utilised to set off against future taxable income. Out of this
amount, the unrecognised tax loss of HK$2,077 million (2008:
HK$1,675 million) will expire within 5 years.
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B BEMEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Deferred Taxation (continued)

The components of deferred taxation liabilities recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet and the movements during the years
are as follows:

AABFEZ
BEMFEH
REMESME MEBEFRE  Withholding
Revaluation  Accelerated tax on
of investment tax undistributed Hith ait
property  depreciation profits Others Total
BEEET B¥EER  B¥EEx BY¥EERT  BYEER
HKS million  HKS million  HKS million  HKS million  HKS million
r5E The Group
RZZZN\F—F—H  At1]anuary 2008 916 327 - = 1,243
BiraBERik/ Charged/(credited) to consolidated
(tA) profit and loss account 133 61) 71 - 143
TER TR Exchange rate adjustment - 12 - - 12
Hkgg g2 Effect of change in tax rates (59) @ - - (60)
RZTTN\F At 31 December 2008 and
+-A=+—-HkK 1 January 2009
—TTNF—F—H 990 277 71 = 1,338
BiraERRITR Charged to consolidated profit
and loss account 198 13 73 - 284
B &t 2 E RNk Charged to other comprehensive
income = = = 4 4
WEEHTB AR Acquisition of subsidiaries - 13 - = 13
HRHREEE TEEEA)  Asset swap transaction involving
BEIHRRS entities under common control
(HEE=+NZ) (note 38B) () = 12 = 8
ENHEDEAFIEE  Reclassified to liabilities associated
HEEZRHEE with assets classified as held
for sale - - (23) - (23)
RZTZNF At 31 December 2009
+-A=+—FH 1,184 303 133 4 1,624

RIBHPEARKMBDER -

BIRFTEHA

HHBEHNBLARE T N\F—A—B#
BRER /9 7B P = 45 O BB T R o SRIER
AR S BL A E B TE P T8 R A 15 2R S
MRS A EREEE - RZTTNEF+=
A=+—8 WRAHRALMAELEHE
WADEFBEEABE 1,543 BE (=
EENF : B0 BEIL) ©

ARBZELEHRRAERE
W RIEFIA N E M E AR IR

BB WE - +
RETEYTE o

Under the Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1
January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has been provided for
undistributed profits to the extent that declaration of dividends are
anticipated in the foreseeable future. At 31 December 2009, no
deferred taxation has been recognised in respect of undistributed
profits amounting to HK$1,543 million (2008: HK$1,075 million).

The Company’s deferred taxation liabilities relate to the accelerated
tax depreciation of its investment property, land and building and
other assets.
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=t-. EU’(H?«F/MEJJEE

StoURAE

31. Other non-current liabilities
RZZZNF+A=+—8 ' EMIER At 31 December 2009, other non-current liabilities included
HEEBEBNHEEE 18 AE (= government grants of HK$185 million (2008: HK$149 million). The
TN\F B9 BETT) c BITHEEE government grants mainly represent subsidies granted by PRC
AREAREMERAF#EEEERE LT governmental authorities towards the purchases of leasehold land.
HoBO#EEL
32. Share Capital
—EEThE —ZTENF
2009 2008
RBEE HE & EE EE
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares Value shares Value
BER BY¥EER BEkR B¥AEET
million  HKS million million  HK$ million
JETE Authorised
EREEBE 1T Ordinary shares of HK$1 each
2 EmR 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000
BT MBI R Issued and fully paid
n—A—8 At 1 January 2,389 2,389 2,385 2,385
TTIE B Exercise of share options 7 7 4 4
Rt+t=-—A=+—H At 31 December 2,396 2,396 2,389 2,389

RABIRYERETE - BIRe2HEY
RARZHEE  BABBAAG 2 BIE
([FEFEI D) o BRILBASN - IBIBEAR A E)—I8
BER—_EE—F—A=1+—HBKIERE
RIAERAERETE - DEE THH
EmARTTER ([ E5tEl D) -

AR T2 F-—HA=+—HZRE
KAJ:ZéHt/& ﬁfﬁﬁ/\_; ZNENAZ
T HERF BB BRERER] I;‘HE’\
_?E*ZE*)EJZWL*EU:/% ZA/N
EG AR BB EER D ERE - EZ%
SERSEEQEREE 2 F TR
WTES(HEERZE2AT)  BAE
B2 EES - PITEFHIFNTESAA
BABEETTZ S8 - ANEE 2
TBAE - EE BEXREM ZEERK
Eﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ:ﬁ( SEREBEZ EATLT) - K
BETHRABSREZRR - AEEZ
’F‘é”&j RRARZESE  HRTBAE
REZRFEHBREA  TZERFHEER
(e Exﬁx%aﬂﬂ)lz@cﬂxﬁmwg
AIEER

The Company operates a share options scheme for the purpose of
promoting additional commitment and dedication to the objectives
of the Company by the participants (the “New Scheme”). In
addition, certain outstanding share options were still held under a
share option scheme which subsisted until 31 January 2002 and
was terminated on 31 January 2002 (the “Old Scheme”).

The New Scheme was approved by the shareholders in general
meeting on 31 January 2002, which was subsequently amended on
20 August 2004 by an ordinary resolution passed by shareholders,
and shall expire on 31 January 2012. The board of directors of the
Company may grant options to eligible participants including any
executive or non-executive directors of the Group (or persons
proposed to be appointed as such), any discretionary object of a
discretionary trust established by any employee, executive or non-
executive directors of the Group, any executives and employees,
consultants, professional and other advisors to the Group (or
persons proposed to be appointed as such), chief executive,
substantial shareholder of the Company, associated companies of
the Group, associates of director, chief executive and substantial
shareholder of the Company, and employees of substantial
shareholder and where a substantial shareholder is a company,
employees of subsidiaries of a substantial shareholder.
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=k iy . NG 32. Share Capital (continued)
B —RRENE 2 R RN E N HE Share options are generally either fully vested or vested over a
R R ANF Z BB AR T - 2R period of time up to a maximum of four years after the acceptance
Rz BRRETTERITE of a grant and exercisable within a period of 10 years immediately

after the date of grant.

RIEFEET 8137 2 B E B e F 15 228 Details of the movements of the share options granted under both
AT share option schemes are summarised as follows:
WRER A BEBEME
Number of share options > st
RI-ZENE  AAEAE
RIZZENE REFEE REEE REIEE REEE +=A  Estimated
—HA—H B T e KM =+—8 fair value of
i RATHE Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed BAR{TE  the share
RHAH {7fEf8 Outstanding at during during during during Outstanding at option
Date of grant Exercise Price 1/1/2009 the year the year the year the year 31/12/2009 granted
BT BT
HKS HKS
Bt
Old Scheme
20/06/2000 7.19 248,000 - 20,000 - - 228,000 -
21/11/2000 7.08 461,000 - 111,000 - - 350,000 -
709,000 - 131,000 - - 578,000
et
New Scheme
07/02/2002 7.17 284,000 - 100,000 - - 184,000 -
05/03/2002 7.35 605,000 - 174,000 - - 431,000 -
19/04/2002 7.40 244,000 - - - - 244,000 -
02/08/2002 8.32 250,000 - 100,000 - - 150,000 -
14/04/2003 6.29 4,000 - - - - 4,000 -
01/08/2003 7.10 30,000 - - - - 30,000 -
08/10/2003 8.90 122,000 - 50,000 - - 72,000 -
14/01/2004 9.72 3,628,000 - 1,574,000 - 28,000 2,026,000 -
20/04/2004 9.89 840,000 - - - - 840,000 -
25/05/2004 9.15 1,098,000 - 320,000 - - 778,000 -
02/06/2004 9.55 600,000 - - - - 600,000 -
22/07/2004 9.80 110,000 - 110,000 - - - -
04/10/2004 10.35 8,788,000 - 4,098,000 - - 4,690,000 -
17/01/2005 11.40 40,000 - - - - 40,000 -
22/07/2005 12.50 250,000 - - - - 250,000 -
16,893,000 - 6,526,000 - 28,000 10,339,000
17,602,000 - 6,657,000 - 28,000 10,917,000
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Stz RA () 32. Share Capital (continued)
BREHA
Number of share options
REBENE
R=BENE REFE REFE REFE REEFE +=A
—A-H =it T w8 £ Er=E
MRITE Granted Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed e RITHE
R B Outstanding at during during during during Outstanding at
Date of grant 1/1/2009 the year the year the year the year 31/12/2009
AT
Exercisable at the end of the year 10,917,000
INEFAITEE (BB L)
Weighted average exercise price (HK$) 9.76 — 9.90 — 9.72 9.67
BIRERBADTAT Holders of the share options are analysed as follows:
Eota
Old Scheme
{28 Employees 709,000 = 131,000 = = 578,000
Hatd
New Scheme
E = Directors 600,000 - - - - 600,000
{E & Employees 15,688,000 - 6,352,000 - 28,000 9,308,000
H{th2 8% Other participants 605,000 = 174,000 = = 431,000
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= gl ¥ N 32. Share Capital (continued)
ERESE
Number of share options BRRERE
2 fhEt
RZZTZENE RREE
RZZZNE REFE RAFE REAFE  REFE +TZH  Estimated
—A—R it fIfk: G| R =+—H fair value of
fEE MARITEE Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed HARITIE the share
EEl=p-1 Exercise Outstanding at ~ during the  during the  during the  during the Outstanding at option
Date of grant Price 1/1/2008 year year: year year 31/12/2008 granted
BT BT
HK$ HK$
Estal
Old Scheme
20/06/2000 7.19 314,000 - 66,000 - - 248,000 -
21/11/2000 7.08 813,000 - 352,000 - - 461,000 -
1,127,000 - 418,000 - - 709,000
Hata
New Scheme
07/02/2002 7.17 284,000 - - - - 284,000 -
05/03/2002 7.35 649,000 - 44,000 - = 605,000 =
19/04/2002 7.40 244,000 - - - - 244,000 -
02/08/2002 8.32 370,000 - 120,000 - - 250,000 -
14/04/2003 6.29 204,000 - 200,000 - - 4,000 -
01/08/2003 7.10 40,000 - 10,000 - - 30,000 -
08/10/2003 8.90 122,000 - - - - 122,000 -
14/01/2004 9.72 5,197,000 - 1,541,000 - 28,000 3,628,000 -
20/04/2004 9.89 840,000 - - - = 840,000 =
25/05/2004 9.15 1,716,000 - 618,000 - - 1,098,000 -
02/06/2004 9.55 600,000 - - - = 600,000 =
22/07/2004 9.80 110,000 - - - - 110,000 -
04/10/2004 10.35 9,896,000 = 998,000 = 110,000 8,788,000 =
17/01/2005 11.40 80,000 - 40,000 - = 40,000 =
22/07/2005 12.50 410,000 - 160,000 - - 250,000 -
20,762,000 - 3,731,000 - 138,000 16,893,000
21,889,000 = 4,149,000 = 138,000 17,602,000
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Stz RA () 32. Share Capital (continued)
RS A
Number of share options
RZZZENE
RZZZENEF RAEE RAEE RAEE RAEE +=A
—A—A i i Ea E =+—H
WARITE Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed BARITIE
EEqal=p-i Outstanding at during during during during Outstanding at
Date of grant 1/1/2008 the year the year: the year the year 31/12/2008
ARFLRITE
Exercisable at the end of the year 17,362,000
INEFAITEE BB T)
Weighted average exercise price (HK$) 9.69 — 9.41 — 10.22 9.76
ERERAE AT Holders of the share options are analysed as follows:
Eotal
Old Scheme
&8 Employees 1,127,000 - 418,000 - - 709,000
Hatd
New Scheme
%= Directors 600,000 = = = = 600,000
{28 Employees 19,513,000 = 3,687,000 = 138,000 15,688,000
Hih 288 Other participants 649,000 = 44,000 = - 605,000
B5E - Notes:
1. FRBTEBRENTTER B Z niEFH 1. The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share
REREE 23510 (ZTENF : B options exercised during the year was HK$23.51 (2008: HK$26.88).
26.88 JT) °
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REHE
AEBREBEZHFEHNE1w0EZT111EH
iR A RS EBE -

Reserves
The Group

B BEMEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 110 to 111.

EERH
wHERAE
Employee
R#%E share-based R A
Share compensation Retained &5t
premium reserve profits Total
BE¥EET AB¥EEBExT B¥EBx B¥EER
HKS million  HKS million  HKS million  HKS million
NN | The Company
R-ZZFEZ)\HF—HF—H At 1 January 2008 12,829 172 3,188 16,189
BT R (B Shares issued at premium 35 - _ 35
N[5 A Profit for the year - - 1,028 1,028
f& 8 Dividends - - (1,075) (1,075)
R-ZEBEZE)\F At 31 December 2008 and
+—A=1+—B8BK 1 January 2009
—ZEENF—H—H 12,864 172 3,141 16,177
BITRDRE Shares issued at premium 59 - _ 59
REEFEE Loss for the year - - (199) (199)
%8 Dividends - - (932) (932)
RZZZNE At 31 December 2009
+—A=+—H” 12,923 172 2,010 15,105

AARAESRTFRRZFEEABE
2000 BB TT(ZTEENF : B¥3118

e —

BIL) e

Reserves of the Company available for distribution to the
shareholders amounted to HK$2,010 million (2008: HK$3,141 million).
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StNEEHESRERME 34. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
B RETHZRLRE A Cash flows from operating activities
—EEhEF T N\F
2009 2008
BYEEBET BEBHETT
HKS million HK$ million
[ F AT S5 ) Profit before taxation 4,775 3,791
R Adjustments for:
NI E o Share of net results of
associates (320) (367)
LEMBR R EBAEET Profit on disposal of
subsidiaries/business - (2)
o B A Rl TS s A Profit on disposal of
associates (82) (95)
YA E A AR Profit on disposal of
available for sale
investments (55) (35)
FEEMAIERERSUA Dividend income from
unlisted available for
sale investments @3) 6)
FEUWA Interest income (98) (212)
MESZH Interest expenses 224 564
HEREEEFERCEF) Net loss/(profit) on disposal
of fixed assets 73 (217)
ERER 2 EEEEREEE Impairment loss recognised
on fixed assets 67 83
BRI E R E R 1R Impairment loss recognised
on goodwill 13 -
ERR KB EEREEE Impairment loss recognised
on other intangible assets 1 3
e Depreciation 2,451 2,050
H A B B i Amortisation of other
intangible assets 13 14
BEMESE R Valuation gain on
investment properties (1,128) (483)
B RN Government grants
recognised (5) ®3)
EIBEE S B EH 2 A Operating profit before
working capital changes 5,926 5,086
BRESES Prepayment for rental
deposit 1 72
SEMEEE) Changes in properties held
for sale 7 14
HiiFE 2 &8 Changes in other stocks 235 (2,401)
E 5 M E A EUWGRIA 2 & &) Changes in trade and other
receivables (550) (218)
B 5 K E A FETRIE 2 & Changes in trade and other
payables 3,242 2,687

REmSZEAT

Cash generated from
operations 8,861

5,096
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34. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

B Disposal of subsidiaries/business

—gBhE  —2E)\F
2009 2008
BYEET BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
HEEEFE Net assets disposed of:
BE&EE Fixed assets 2
Fa8 Stocks =
B 5 N H At EURIR Trade and other receivables 3
R RRITHETT Cash and bank balances 12 1
B 5 M HMPERFRIR Trade and other payables (%) (@
14 5
DB R M Minority interests (1) =
HEMB AR, EBERT Profit on disposal of
subsidiaries/business - 1
13 6
PNV ES N Satisfied by:
RERE Cash consideration 13 6
HEMBAR EXFEzRER Analysis of the net inflow of
ReLSERANFEIN cash and cash equivalents
in respect of disposal of
subsidiaries/business
EIRESRE Cash considerations
received 13 6
HER® RIRTTET Cash and bank balances
disposed of (12) (2)
1 5
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SR AEREREBRME 2

34. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)
A RBEHREAR ¥R C  Acquisition of subsidiaries/business
—gBhE  —2E)\F
2009 2008
BYEET BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
WS FEE 2 REE The carrying amounts/
NRfBE - fair values of the
net assets acquired:
& B 7 Fixed assets 1,013 107
HithmpEE Other intangible assets 34 =
REEE ARz s Interests in associates - 66
=r& Stocks 63 42
B 5 N E At FEURIR Trade and other receivables 1 9
Re RIRTTEETF Cash and bank balances - 203
B 5 M EMERRIA Trade and other payables (613) 68)
RIERIBE & Deferred taxation liabilities (13) =
485 359
DEARR Minority interests (46) (159)
W RERF B A 2 P Goodwill on acquisition 63 3
502 203
AR - Discharged by:
Be Cash 502 203
WEEHEBAR (KBS R Analysis of the net outflow of
REeZERLFEIM cash and cash equivalents
in respect of acquisition of
subsidiaries/business’s
undertaking
[RENE AR Cash consideration paid (502) (203)
WHEFSIR S RIRT T4 Cash and bank balances
acquired - 203
(502) -
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=R EREE 35. Capital Commitments
TEH VNN
The Group The Company
—EEhEF —EENF —EELEF —EEN\F
2009 2008 2009 2008

BEEET BEEHETT BEEET BEHETT
HKS million  HK$ million HKS million  HK$ million

REE R AR 2  Capital commitments
BARASEWT - outstanding at the balance
sheet date are as follows:
BERAE N REE Contracted but not provided

for 1,401 3,054 - =
BHLER R REL Authorised but not

contracted for 3,034 3,779 - -
4,435 6,833 - -

STAREERYRIE 36. Operating Lease Commitments

B EREEA A As lessee
rEH PN
The Group The Company

ZEEAF ETNF ZEEAF —ZETNF
2009 2008 2009 2008

BEHET BEEET BEHET BEEET
HKS million  HK$ million HKS million  HK$ million

REEE R - 18318 At the balance sheet date,

ST EAER the total future minimum
INTERRSIS M2 &(E  lease payments under
THEFIRETE non-cancellable operating
leases are payable as
follows:
—E—FR — Within one year 2,363 1,640 3 -
—HEE_FEZERF - In the second to fifth year
(PREEERE) inclusive 8,632 4,748 - =
—hEZ% — After five years 13,693 7,909 - =
24,688 14,297 3 -
EEREREERAEEERETEEMT Operating lease payment represents rental payable by the Group
RMESNzHEE - BOEER—E= for certain of its retail outlets and properties. Leases are negotiated
THEZEEFHEE - for lease terms principally ranged from 1 to 20 years.
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SHAVEEHEYERE &) 36. Operating Lease Commitments (continued)
Z fERHBEA B  As lessor
rEH bNNE
The Group The Company
—EEhE —ETN\F —EEhE —ETNF
2009 2008 2009 2008

BEHET BEEET BEHET BEEET
HKS million  HK$ million HKS million  HK$ million

REEE R - 1BIBTA] At the balance sheet date, the
S ERATR total future minimum
N ERRSIUCER 2 &K lease payments under

THEFIALEE non-cancellable operating
leases are receivable as
follows:
—E—FN — Within one year 954 762 1 9
—HEE_FEZERF - In the second to fifth year
(BREREEMT) inclusive 1,760 1,548 - 3
—hEZE — After five years 641 822 - -
3,355 3,132 1 12
WEMERTEEH AR ETZHAFTH These properties and retail outlets have committed tenants for
NF1ZE 204 © lease terms principally ranged from 1 to 20 years.
Tt RREE 37. Contingent Liabilities
rEH VYN
The Group The Company
—EENF —EEN\F —EENF —EE)\F
2009 2008 2009 2008

BEEET BEEET BEHET BEEET
HKS million  HK$ million HKS million  HK$ million

REEE R - AATA At the balance sheet date,
THARIRMEIEITE  there were contingent
HMEZIERMEL  liabilities in respect of
ZREE guarantees for banks loans
provided to subsidiaries - = 8,650 7,939
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38. Material Related Party Transactions

A Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are

related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. In addition to the
transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group entered into the following material related
party transactions.

ZEThEF ZETNF
2009 2008
BYEEET BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
M T3 ARBAESR Purchase of goods from
BATERY WEAT Fellow subsidiaries - 46
N Associates 163 185
BT AR 2 RIS Receipt of services from
—REERAR A holding company 1 1
BRAEEZHEAT Fellow subsidiaries 105 139
kNG| Associates 22 20
M T3 AREEE SR Sales of goods to
ISYNCIESE i) NG Fellow subsidiaries 79 17
B A A Associates 28 -
| 5 A R AR Rendering of services to
BAREEZHEB AR Fellow subsidiaries 3 13
kN Associates 13 14
EEMRKFIE Operating lease payment to
—RERAR A holding company 8 7
ISYNCIESE )= NG| Fellow subsidiaries 56 51
ik /NS Associates 8 3
RIR A S I8 ek M AR e 12 Transaction under
WREITR S godown management
agreement and
facilities management
ERNINGIE G S Receipt of service fee from
—RHIER AR A holding company 87 136
ISYNCIE el NG Fellow subsidiaries 87 107
M THRARZFAE Payment of monthly fee to
—RIER AR A holding company 10 12
BRAIEE 2 B A A Fellow subsidiaries 24 24
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SHNEXRBERS @)

BEEBRS
NZTBBANE+A=-F+HAB @ AAF)EEE
HEBEIISI R —RIIRGWEET R
#(BETRBE] Bt EZaSEM
HEHEEREWBAREEEETIEZL
¥ I RmEsEmnEEE
BRLBREELZ - SN NRSEES
#3,0008 70 AREBEERENER
AR —IER R B A A ELL - FdE - R
I RAPRIELE ZBEARBTER R
WA — AR - ZXZHFBEERR
TETNF+— AT HRBHTHE -

HEEMPERNEEREHNERZIRSE
AEER
AEBARGRTEEBRAR(ZARHA
TEBFEHET —ERAAREERZ
PRE - BREFEBHARREERAKERE
REETZRFZHN - REBTE B H 5
BAZ AP AP B U B s R S S

ERETEBER -EFZRA - BREE
BATEEI  ZEERYEE N ECK
SHEBGETAREE 2 PR EHER - HZ
SERETZR G (BREEEmMRK)
THEARRE—REFBEL - AEER
& REPTRM EX B BERSE
AR EFAREER -

TEREBEASZFHM
XNTFERERARB(EREARFES)
ZHEE R REE -

Sth it EM RS

F$103 B2 F 189 BTH 2 EREE &
EEeR T TFE=-A_F+HAH#E -

38.

39.

Material Related Party Transactions (continued)

Asset Swap Transactions

On 29 October, 2009, the Company entered into an asset swap
agreement (“Asset Swap Agreement”) with CRH which involves a
series of transactions to enable the Group to transfer certain of its
non-core businesses, being its entire textile division and minority
interests in two container terminal operations to CRH and its
subsidiaries plus the payment of a cash consideration of HK$30 million,
in exchange for a hypermarket chain operating in northern, north-
western, north-eastern and central China and a brewery plant in
Shandong Province from CRH and its subsidiaries. Details of the
transactions were disclosed in the circular dated 12 November
2009.

Transactions/balances with other state-controlled entities in
Chinese Mainland

The Group itself is a part of a larger group of companies under
CRNC which is controlled by the PRC government. Apart from the
transactions with CRNC group and the associates of the Group, it
also conducts businesses with entities directly or indirectly owned
or controlled by the PRC government in the ordinary course of
business. The directors are of the opinion that those entities other
than the CRNC group do not have the power to govern or
participate in the financial and operating policies of the Group. The
transactions including sales and purchases of goods and services,
with these entities are conducted in the ordinary course of the
Group’s business. The Group believes that it has provided, at the
best of its knowledge, adequate and appropriate disclosure of
related party transactions as summarised above.

Compensation of key management personnel
Remuneration paid for key management personnel include solely
the directors of the Company disclosed in note 10.

Approval of Financial Statements
The financial statements set out on pages 103 to 189 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2010.



B VNS =N
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

RZZFZTNF+=H=+—H At 31 December 2009

BRABT D
ERTTERKRAE Percentage of capital
e/ EmER AEEEE  ADEREE KHEARRSA
HEARRBEAT Nominal value of issued ordinary attributable to held by the held by FE£%
Subsidiaries and associates share capital / registered capital the Group Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
) =&
(1) Retail
RNEBZMRL
Incorporated in Hong Kong
FE(HB)BRAR 5,000,000 A% & 100.0 = 1000 TEEL
Chinese Arts & Crafts Ao 2 TRk Retail business
(H.K.) Limited 5,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$10 each
EHER(EB)BRAA 90,000,000% FREEE KT 100.0 = 100.0 MEHR  REERR
China Resources Vanguard TmR Emits
(Hong Kong) Company 90,000,000 ordinary shares Supermarket operations,
Limited of HK$1 each investment holding
and wholesale of
merchandise
EBYR(BRRE)ARAH 1,000,000 X ERE BB 17T 100.0 = 1000 BERAERRE
China Resources Logistics 2B Wharf & godown
(Yuen Fat Wharf & Godown) 1,000,000 ordinary shares services
Limited of HK$1 each
TR B 3t TR AR L
Incorporated in Chinese Mainland
o EEHERBRAA A R #1,903,000,0007T (it & #X) 100.0 65.0 35.0  JRMER
(China Resources Vanguard RMB 1,903,000,000 Supermarket operations
Co., Ltd.) (Registered capital)
A R #1,503,206,0007T (B W & 7)
RMB 1,503,206,000 (Paid up share
capital)
2 EHER(FM)BmAERAR 12,096,140 7T 100.0 - 1000  FAMES
(China Resources Vanguard US$12,096,140 Supermarket operations
(Suzhou) Supermarket Co.,
Ltd.)
& BREMARARF AE#582,820,0007T 85.0 - 85.0  FRMER
(Suguo Supermarket Co., Ltd.) RMB582,820,000 Supermarket operations
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BRABT D
ERTTERKRAE Percentage of capital
e/ EmER rEEEE  AARHE HWBARARE

HEARRBEAT Nominal value of issued ordinary attributable to held by the held by FE£%
Subsidiaries and associates share capital / registered capital the Group Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
- EE®
(1) Retail (continued)
AR Rt AL ()
Incorporated in Chinese Mainland (continued)
@ MIEEEREBMARAR AR #124,000,0007T 100.0 = 1000  TRTER
(China Resources Cikelong RMB 124,000,000 Supermarket operations
(Zhejiang) Supermarket Co.,
Ltd.)
@ EHEREERT(EM) AE#30,000,0007T 100.0 = 1000 HRTER
BRAT RMB 30,000,000 Supermarket operations
(China Resources
Vanguard (Guangzhou)
Superstore Co., Ltd.)
o ERERLEBTONT) AR #128,000,0007T 100.0 - 1000  FEMER
BRAR] RMB 128,000,000 Supermarket operations
(China Resources Vanguard
(Zhejiang) Superstore Co. Ltd.)
o REEFERLEBRMARARE AR™120,000,0007T 100.0 - 1000  JRAMES
RMB 120,000,000 Supermarket operations
= BRAEEERELEMARAE  AR60,000,0007T 100.0 - 1000 BTES
RMB 60,000,000 Supermarket operations
BALEREMARAR AE#5,000,0007T 100.0 = 100.0  AMHEZEKIZEER
RMB 5,000,000 Supermarket operations
and investment holding
@ EEEIBREAER AR 1,000,0005 7T 51.0 = 100.0  FREREHAME RS
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Wholesale and
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FEWBATREEAT PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

BRABT D
ERTTERKRAE Percentage of capital
e/ SfmER FEEEE  KAAREE HEBAREE
HEARRBEAT Nominal value of issued ordinary attributable to held by the held by FE£%
Subsidiaries and associates share capital / registered capital the Group Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
(3 #&
(2 Beverage
REBEZESEMA YL
Incorporated in British Virgin Islands
ERELREERAR 42,800,300X SR EE13E T 2 LBk 51.0 51.0 - REER
China Resources Snow 42,800,300 ordinary shares of Investment holding
Breweries Limited US$1 each
FAHR B A it AR 32
Incorporated in Chinese Mainland
& EBRETEH)I)EREE AR®124,143,8537C 51.0 = 100.0  BUEND HEEE R
NS RMB124,143,853 Manufacturing and
(China Resources Snow distribution of beer
Breweries (Sichuan) Co., products
Limited)
o ERETREER)ERET AE213,792,5017C 51.0 = 100.0 BUEFSHEEER
NG RMB213,792,501 Manufacturing and
distribution of beer
products
= ERERBRRGR)AERET A& #100,000,0007T 51.0 - 1000  BEMDHEEEED
NG RMB100,000,000 Manufacturing and
(China Resources Snow distribution of beer
Breweries (Mianyang) Co., products
Ltd.)
o FEREREEGE)ARAR AR 246,000,0007T 51.0 = 100.0  BUENSHEEEER
(China Resources Snow RMB246,000,000 Manufacturing and
Breweries (Anhui) Co., Ltd.) distribution of beer
products
@ ZHEEWEEDERAA AR #570,000,0007T 45.9 = 90.0 BUEFHHEEER
(China Resources Snow RMB570,000,000 Manufacturing and

Brewery (Wuhan) Co., Ltd.)

distribution of beer

products
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FEWEATIREE/AT PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

BRAEBD
ERTTERKRAE Percentage of capital
e/ EmER AEEEE  ADEREE KHEARRSA
HEARRBEAT Nominal value of issued ordinary attributable to held by the held by FE£%
Subsidiaries and associates share capital / registered capital the Group subsidiaries  Principal activities
=) #R®E
(2 Beverage (continued)
AAER ML (%)
Incorporated in Chinese Mainland (continued)
w FEEUEEGERATR 616735443857 510 woo  RAER
NG US$617,673,544.38 Investment holding
o EMERRREE)HRAR 60,814,189 T 51.0 100.0 BUEFDHEEEER
US$60,814,189 Manufacturing and
distribution of beer
products
L5 RNEEHEESRAERAR AR #96,000,00070 51.0 100.0  BUENMDHEEEER
(China Resources (Dalian) RMB96,000,000 Manufacturing and
Bangchuidao Brewery Co., distribution of beer
Ltd.) products
* ERSERBCNDROER AE#120,000,0007T 35.7 700  BUEMADHEEED
NS RMB120,000,000 Manufacturing and
distribution of beer
products
o ERERERGES)ERAR AR #50,000,0007T 51.0 1000 HENDHEEEER
(China Resources Snow RMB50,000,000 Manufacturing and
Breweries (Xichang) Co., Ltd.) distribution of beer
products
AE#12,000,0007T 100.0 1000  BUERIDHATOKER

@ FEHRIRMIHRI)
BRAHE
(China Resources C’estbon
Food & Beverage (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd.)

186

RMB12,000,000

Manufacturing and
distribution of purified

water products



FEWBATREEAT PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

BRABT D
ERTTERKRAE Percentage of capital
e/ EmER AEEEE  ADEREE KHEARRSA
HEARRBEAT Nominal value of issued ordinary attributable to held by the held by FE£%
Subsidiaries and associates share capital / registered capital the Group Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
(5) BRIIREH
(3) Food Processing and Distribution
REBEMAL
Incorporated in Hong Kong
HETERAT 1,046,258,000 % I E BB ¥ 0.17T 100.0 = 1000 EELRRVEHE B
Ng Fung Hong Limited LB B RRIERER
1,046,258,000 ordinary shares of R
HK$0.1 each Distribution of fresh, live
and frozen foodstuff,
abattoir operation, acting
as food agent and
investment holding
HBHES ERAER AT 60,000/ B IR I (B8 %1,0007T 35.7 = 5.0 ERERE
Chung Kong Luen Livestock TR Wholesale of live pigs
Company Limited 60,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1,000 each
NEESHEIMAL
Incorporated in Cayman Islands
rNe  (FEIEBAERR) 60,864 BIREE1E T Ek 51.0 - 5.0 REER
China International Fisheries 60,864 ordinary shares of US$1 each Investment holding
Corp
REBEZHBEMA L
Incorporated in British Virgin Islands
@ Victory Return Corporation EREEETZ TRk 51.0 - 1000 HRERREHWERT

1 ordinary share of US$1 each
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FEWEATIREE/AT PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

BABEDH

ERTTERKRAE Percentage of capital
e/ EmER AEEEE  ADEREE KHEARRSA
HEARRBEAT Nominal value of issued ordinary attributable to held by the held by FE£%
Subsidiaries and associates share capital / registered capital the Group Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
() BRNIREHE
(3) Food Processing and Distribution (continued)
TR B 3t TR B L
Incorporated in Chinese Mainland
@ TERMFRINERADR AR #543,000,0007T 70.0 = 700 BERE EHLE -
(Ng Fung Foods (Shenzhen) RMB543,000,000 AEMIRRS# %
Co., Ltd.) Livestock raising,
abattoir operation, meat
products processing and
poultry wholesaling
e N B EHARBERAR AR #50,000,00070 65.0 - 65.0  PUEARLERRE
(Hangzhou Ng Fung United Meat RMB50,000,000 Wholesale and
Co., Ltd.) distribution of meat
(m REDE
() Investment Property
RE B L
Incorporated in Hong Kong
ZERMEEB)ERAA 2 BREREEBSE Tz EBR 100.0 = 100.0 BRERRRMEER
CRE Properties (Hong Kong) 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Investment holding and
Limited property management
CRE Property (Lok Sing 2 REREESE T2 EBER 100.0 = 1000 WERE
Centre) Limited 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property investment
CRE Property (Argyle 2 BEREESE T L BR 100.0 - 100.0 MERE
Centre) Limited 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property investment
CRE Property (Silvercord) 2 BEREEEE T LB 100.0 = 1000 YEEKE

Limited

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

Property investment



FEWBATREEAT PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

BABEDH

ERTTERKRAE Percentage of capital
e/ EmER AEEEE  ADEREE KHEARRSA
HEARRBEAT Nominal value of issued ordinary attributable to held by the held by FE£%
Subsidiaries and associates share capital / registered capital the Group Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
(B) RERHEM
(5) Investments and Others
RE B
Incorporated in Hong Kong
EHAEMBERERAA 2 BREREESS Tz EBR 100.0 100.0 - B
CRE Finance (Hong Kong) 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Financing
Limited
RESHESIMRL
Incorporated in Cayman Islands
Purple Finance Limited IR EREE IR ERR 100.0 100.0 - BE
3 ordinary shares of US$1 each Financing
B E
Notes:
— BERA TEISIMEMERMEARFEEEREANLIR N EREFINUAEEXENEEATAZE N MBERRIRBE ARFE -
1. The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars of all subsidiaries and associates will be of excessive length and therefore the
above list contains only the particulars of the subsidiaries and associates which materially affect the results or assets of the Group.
- MREAFAEIN SRR EELEMERKIENEF MK FTEIDE o
2. Unless otherwise stated, the principal country of operation of each company is the same as its place of incorporation.
= EPEAMEMKZZ AT - HEXEBANS B ZHETERT
3. For companies incorporated in the Chinese Mainland, the English name is as shown in the Certificate of Approval of each company.

* pEGE

* Equity Joint Venture

e INEREE

LEd Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise
PXEAEE

A
a2 Chinese trade name

@ WIEHREE.FAER T ERITEZR 2 A F.

@ Companies not audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
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+RFEHMB

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

R=ZZFZNF+=H=+—H At 31 December 2009

AEE EBEHER
FribfEzR  (FFHK)
NE i ER 4R 5% Group’s  Floor Area Ar  HAEH
Location Lot number Interest (sq.m.) Type Lease term
BIEREY =
Properties held for investment
"B
Hong Kong
it A0 —ER TLBE A ER 126257 100% 7,216 5] KH
HOEEASDD » T30 1-41E - 412F 5 - ol AEZ - BEX HER C Long
KB PR 34 R M o B B SN R B S AR 2 & T E RSN FE
JLEERT A B 6885 an & £ 6555 Certain parts or
Argyle Centre, Phase | shares of and in
Portion A on Basement, Portion of G/F, Sections A, B and H
1 to 4/F and Flat Roof of 4/F, 5/F and of Kowloon Inland
Part of External Walls and the Signboard of Lot No. 1262
Portion A of Argyle Centre facing Sai Yeung
Choi Street South and Argyle Street and
Scavenging lane, 688 Nathan Road,
65 Argyle Street
Mongkok, Kowloon
FAEH L EEMHER 100% 7,075 /= HRHR
W31 M 78R EE AL 25857 2 c/cp Medium
Ao34-Ao41 ~ Aogs ~ A128 ETH5E
A4201 * A4301 * A4502 N2 A4602EE0] Sundry shares of and
B Z3ZEm GEFR) in Tsuen Wan Town
&3@*51%&%?6@?%6?%?&?2 = & Lot No. 258
FIAZLET LA 264-298
Nan Fung Centre
Lorry Parking Space Nos. 31 and 57 on Basement
Units Ao34-Ao41, Aoss, A128, A4201, A4301,
A4502 and A4602 and portion on 1/F-3/F with
Flat Roof and the space between the floor ceiling
and the original concrete ceiling over portion of 3/F
264-298 Castle Peak Road Tsuen Wan,
New Territories
=P A HEEEH R 1055 100% 1,337 ] KA
T 9B f-10A5R 4 [ — 2 ATH-CE ARz & T8RS C Long
BEAA B EEREI5R Part of and in
Star House Section A of

Shop 9B-10A on G/F & Shop A-C on 1/F
3 Salisbury Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

Kowloon Marine
Lot No. 10



FTEYEME SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

rEE EBHEE

FrihiEz  (F 77 3K)
NE i ER 4R 5% Group’s  Floor Area Ar  HAEH
Location Lot number Interest (sq.m.) Type Lease term
FEREMR (&)
Properties held for investment (continued)
EE )
Hong Kong (continued)
“hrgchop) NHER 834757 2 100% 8,982 5] KH
N 5-18%% + 20A ' 20B 2 20C 4L - BT DN C Long
fBMEADAADEHEADBAD) Certain parts or
1232 BN AERETE shares of and in
BB IRNBE G AT19-315% KB AT 2-85% Inland Lot No. 8347
Lok Sing Centre
Shop Nos. 5-18, 20A, 20B and 20C on G/F
Entrance at Yee Wo Street (Entrance A)
Entrance at Sugar Street (Entrance B)
the whole of 1/F to 3/F
and the whole Flat Roof on 4/F Level
19-31 Yee Wo Street and 2-8 Sugar Street
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
FTAAA TLBE AL ER 100% 7,849 /1 ~H]
b 38554 1065655 2 & T c/cp Long
112395 5 R 2 41575 4 EREAE
513 0 14 0 15 0 16 K75 EAL Certain parts or
NERABERE305R shares of and in
Silvercord Kowloon Inland
Shop No. 38 on the GfF, Lot No. 10656
Shop No. 39 on 1/F and Shop No. 41 on 2/F
Tower 1 and Car Parking Spaces
Nos. 13, 14, 15, 16 and 17 on Basement
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon
REXE HIE A B 30055 100% 13,900 T A
NEEEIE BB 165 5 Kwun Tong Inland I Medium

CAC Tower Lot No. 300
165 Hoi Bun Road
Kwun Tong, Kowloon
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TEYEME SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

AEE EBEHER
FrihiEz  (F 77 3K)

NE i ER 4R 5% Group’s  Floor Area Ar  HAEH
Location Lot number Interest (sq.m.) Type Lease term
FEREMR (&)
Properties held for investment (continued)
BEE)
Hong Kong (continued)
FREREANE FNBEAHEL 546258 100% 14,782  L/f& A
TR 5111 1318 15 B 20 1ERE BT ES I/ CP Medium
(BEXE) T 1-23 SRELL The Remaining
N R EIBME 11555 portion of New
Chung Dah Godown Building Kowloon Inland Lot
Ground floor, 5 to 11/F, 13/F , No. 5462
15/F to 20/F (including Main Roof)
and Car Parking Spaces Nos. 1 to 23 on
Ground Floor
115 King Lam Street,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon
R L LENRF 45040 100% 31,234 LB A HR
1 1B1019RE @ 2 RIEEETE - E¥ 93755 I/ CP Medium
6 1BER 21245 EBER Lot No. 937
B P1-P103 ' L1-L15 * L17-143 in Demarcation
FAZKIBELINE 88 It District No. 450
Riley House
Unit 101 on 1/F, The whole of 2/F, 3/F & Roof Flat,
Godown on 6/F, Cargo Lift Nos. 21-24,
Car Parking Spaces P1-P103, L1-L15, L17-L43,
88 Lei Muk Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories
e NBEARHLER 89% 9,599 5] A
TR M8 233-2395% 14025R CEL & C Medium
JD Mall, 233-239 Nathan Road, BRI ER
Jordan, Kowloon JUBE L ER

19935199455

Section C and the
Remaining portion
of Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 1402,
Kowloon Inland Lot
Nos. 1993 and 1994



FTEYEME SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

AEE EBEHER
FribfEzR  (FFHK)
NE i ER 4R 5% Group’s  Floor Area Ar  HAEH
Location Lot number Interest (sq.m.) Type Lease term
REREME )
Properties held for investment (continued)
BEE)
Hong Kong (continued)
EEFAE NBE B HEL 36555 100% 3,125 i) KH
R =40 AB DB X C Long
B SR EE P 558 4884905 CRR 2 & T B 1n
Hennessy Apartments Certain parts or
G/F-4/F shares of and in
488-490 Hennessy Road Sub-section 1 of
Causeway Bay Sections A and C of
Hong Kong Marine Lot No. 365
HER it
Chinese Mainland
BRATFImEREREENEE NEA 100% 59,447 ] FhHR
LI R B 1965 N/A C Medium
HWE - —E ZERNER—E=ENEDHD
TP R SRR — B 309% TEA 100% 21,888 5] R HA
MZERE N/A C Medium
HAEmRAPBED IR 705 TE A 100% 28,058 5] FRHR
=E=)\[E N/A C Medium
MEE EREEES & 2E5 N T:I%
Note: C: Commercial CP: Car Park O: Office I: Industrial
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hFUBENREE

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

—TEREF —EERF ZETAF —TENF —EEhE
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
BEEET B EETT BEEET BEEET BYEEER
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HKS million
mE¥EE Consolidated results
BEE Turnover 53,891 65,437 62,123 e 71,629
HR SR FE A 5 A Profit attributable to
shareholders 2,220 2,776 4,961 2,322 2,913
BRERZF| Basic earnings per share HK$1.02 HK$1.19 HK$2.09 HK$0.97 HKS1.22
IR E Dividend per share
AR HER Interim HK$0.13 HK$0.14 HK$0.15 HK$0.15 HKSo.14
RER Final HK$o0.25 HK$0.26 HK$0.30 HK$0.25 HKSo.35
HK$0.38 HK$0.40 HK$0.45 HK$0.40 HKSo.49
Rl o HA Special interim = HK$1.00 HK$0.60 - -
HABEAMBR Consolidated balance sheet
BEBE Fixed assets 21,436 23,040 29,876 36,353 38,158
[EES Goodwill 3,084 3,481 6,133 6,385 9,225
HtEREE Other intangible assets 630 113 81 68 95
RHEE Long term investments 1,147 1,206 1,493 1,993 537
WASEMEST A Financial assets at fair

Emnret value through profit

BE and loss - - - - 419
TESRMITA Derivative financial

instruments - - - - 10
iENE Prepayments 411 467 205 198 261
EEFTEE E Deferred taxation assets 140 123 119 164 333
MENEE/BE)  Net current assets/

HE (liabilities) 2,086 1,398 1,003 (524) (2,889)
EeER Employment of capital 28,934 29,828 38,910 44,637 46,149
A&7 Share capital 2,233 2,358 2,385 2,389 2,396
A Reserves 15,963 16,783 20,486 22,770 23,451
LT Shareholders’ funds 18,196 19,141 22,871 25,159 25,847
DERR R Minority interests 4,747 5,824 7:293 9,339 9,597
REIEH Long term loans 5,040 3,840 7,503 8,575 8,819
TEEMITA Derivative financial

instruments - - - 11 26
HEtREEE Other non-current liabilities - - - 215 236
RERIEEE Deferred taxation liabilities 951 1,023 1,243 1,338 1,624
EEAES Capital employed 28,934 29,828 38,910 44,637 46,149
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SUMMARY OF NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

ATHEESBRRBEASBEE ZREL - 5H
BEEXHBHENABRETE ZBHA -

EHAEBRAREITIRN_ZT—ZEFAA TN
HEMOTF=RK="129 REEBEFBLE
26 EHRNE 4 BETRAF S - AMERE
IFIE=2E

EBERER

1. HENEBEHE_TTAFt+_A=1+—
ALFEEEZ2MEREBEETSRE
RIB X B AR

2. EMREBERBRS -

3. BEREFISEINEBETHEEE2H8SE -

4 BEZHAEREEEZRETHMSE -

5. RYEE—RIBENELTEEE BT
7K 10% Z B A e

6. BTITEFREBUAZFTIEBE TR
7K 20% Z TSN ©

7. HEMARERREBEARBRFEBFABED
ZBEMEE - MEARNRZRF BB
BT 2 —RRIRHE -

Set out below is a summary of the notice of the annual general meeting,
the full version of which is set out in the circular to be dispatched to
shareholders separately.

An Annual General Meeting of China Resources Enterprise, Limited will

be held at 4th Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong on Friday, 28 May 2010 at 3:30 p.m. for the

following purposes:

Ordinary Resolutions

1. To receive and consider the audited Financial Statements and the
Directors’ Report and the Independent Auditors’ Report for the year
ended 31 December 2009.

2.  To declare a final dividend.

3.  To re-elect retiring Directors and to fix the fees for all Directors.

4. To re-appoint Auditors and authorise the Directors to fix their
remuneration.

5. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to repurchase shares
not exceeding 10% of the issued share capital.

6. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to issue additional
shares not exceeding 20% of the issued share capital.

7.  To extend the general mandate to issue shares under item 6 hereof

by the addition thereto of the number of shares repurchased under
item 5 hereof.
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